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THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED IS BUILDING A NEW
DESTINATION ON MACAU'S COTAI STRIP TO HOUSE
A UNIQUE COLLECTION OF REFINED AND REMARKABLE
LUXURY EXPERIENCES.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW
EHEE

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The 13 Holdings Limited ("The 13" or the "Company”) is a
hospitality, entertainment and construction group that combines
a unique ultra-luxury hotel and entertainment development on
Macau's Cotai Strip ("THE 13 Hotel”) with the Hong Kong-based
legacy business of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (‘PYE").

The 13

The Market

The Macau gaming market is the single largest gaming
destination in the world. For the year ended December 2016,
Macau generated gross gaming revenues of US$28 billion,
approximately five times greater than that of the Las Vegas
Strip over the same period. In addition, Macau generates the
world's highes’r gaming revenue per visitor at approximqfe|y six
times that of the Las Vegas Strip. There were 107 hotels and
guesthouses operating in Macau at the end of March 2017 with
a total of 36,000 guest rooms. Macau receives approximately
31,000,000 visitors annually with approximately 66% coming
from Mainland China and 24% coming from Hong Kong and
Taiwan.

THE 13 Hotel

THE 13 Hotel and entertainment complex, located at the
southern end of Macau's famous Cotai Strip, houses a unique
collection of refined and remarkable luxury experiences.
Designed by internationally acclaimed luxury architect, Peter
Marino, it will include a hotel with about 200 duplex suites, an
invitation-only "L'Atelier” offering only couture, bespoke and
limited edition products from the major luxury brands and the
only branch of a legendary Paris institution of haute cuisine.

The Company qppoinfecl infernoﬁono”y acclaimed architect
Peter Marino as the Executive Design Theme Architect and the
Interior Design Theme Consultant. Mr. Marino is the principal
of Peter Marino Architect PLLC, an architecture, planning and
design firm based in New York City, whose clients include some
of the most iconic names in the fashion and art worlds. He is
responsible for the flagship stores of many of the world's leading
luxury brands including Chanel, Louis Vuitton, Christian Dior,
Ermenegildo Zegna, Graff and Loewe.

With a gross floor area of approximately 945,000 square feet,
THE 13 Hotel is designed to ensure the highest level of luxury and
privacy, THE 13 Hotel will offer approximately 200 duplex suites
and villas beginning at 2,000 gross square feet ranging up

t0 12,000 gross square feet and a royal villa of over 20,000
gross square feet. Guests will arrive in one of the hotel’s fleet of
signature-red Rolls-Royce extended wheel base Phantoms with
the option for private check in. All guests will arrive in their rooms
via lifts that open directly into the suites.
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HOTEL DEVELOPMENT
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L'Atelier

The complex will house the world's first by-invitation-only
“L’Atelier.” For the first time under one roof, clients will have
the rare opportunity to view and purchase in complete privacy,
couture, bespoke and limited-edition products presented by
the most prestigious luxury brands in the world—products and
services that the top European Fashion and jewellery houses
currently deliver only to top VIP customers in their headquarter
maisons and ateliers.

The Restaurant

The fabled L'Ambroisie in Paris, which has held three Michelin
stars since 1988, will open its only other branch in THE 13 Hotel.
With only approximately 38 seats, the critically acclaimed Paris
restaurant is one of the most sought-after reservations in the
world.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ("PYE") is a 51% owned
subsidiary of the Company and is one of the leading
management contractors in Hong Kong and Macau. PYE
traces its origins to Shanghai in 1946 and has played a major
role in shaping the skyline and world-class infrastructure of Hong
Kong over the past seven decades.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, PYE is dedicated to providing
full-fledged engineering and property services, with operations
in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Hangzhou, Guangzhovu,
Chongging, Nantong, Shenzhen, Macau and Singapore.

With more than seven decades of experiences, PYE prides itself
on its ability to deliver integrated property development solutions
from concept to completion as well as on-going management.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS
ES k=

THE13
March 2016

Joint press conference with Rolls-Royce Motor Cars Limited
at the Geneva Auto Show to ceremonially deliver the first of
the custom red Rolls-Royce Extended Wheel Base Phantoms

September 2016

THE 13 named as one of the “finest design innovations of

1996-2016" in the 20th anniversary edition of Wallpaper®,

Time Inc.’s highly respected design magazine
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS
ES k=2

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP RERXEHE
Construction management contracting projects secured during RKEEFRIRNEAESESGNER
the year:
Basement and superstructure works for the residential c N EScARTEEERIBEMEN FEERTZ

development at Kau To Area 56A

Civil and building works for Unit L10 and Unit L11 (optional) - Y BEBHRIBEEIOLOMME LA (5% t A&
at Lamma Power Station Extension AIETRE
Construction management services for The University of . ZMFREBEEFRLOEEEERE

Chicago Center in Hong Kong

Construction of public rental housing development of Choi - BERXENE - HEETEREEEENESE
Fook Estate Phase 3 and sports centre, Kwun Tong BETE

Fitting out works for Grand Lisboa Palace at Cotai, Macau - CEPIRSIK CE REEAN TR

Main contract for the alteration and addition works at Nan - BEEWERIERNEIEEEAS SN

Fung Textile Mills

Main contract works for The French International School of - BEALBEBEBREREEERSRADEN T
Hong Kong at Tseung Kwan O

Main contract works for the residential development at Kai - BERIRIRETERERRASESNIE
Tak Area 1l Site 3
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Stephen Hung Ji ks Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Joint Chairman Bt & + & Joint Chairman B f&E T+ &
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CHAIRMEN'S STATEMENT
TERE

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

Development of our hotel project is nearly complete and
the results are fully in-line with our hope to claim the

title of the "world's most luxurious hotel”. In September
2016, we were both surprised and deeply honored

to see THE 13 named as one of the “finest design
innovations of "1996-2016" in the 20th anniversary
edition of Wallpaper®*, Time Inc.’s highly respected design
magazine. THE 13 appeared alongside such landmark
design milestones as Apple’s iPhone, the Guggenheim
Museum in Bilbao, the Ferrari Enzo, the 9/11 Memorial in

New York and the launch of Uber.

We share this great honor with the entire team at THE 13
as well as our many partners who have all contributed
their talent and passion to making THE 13 a singularly
unique vision of luxury and we would like to express our

deep gratitude to everyone involved.
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CHAIRMEN'S STATEMENT
TERE

UNIQUE HOTEL PROJECT IN MACAU

THE 13 is nearly complete and we are now undergoing the
process of various government inspection and we expect

to open in second half of 2017.

In November 2016, we sponsored Macau Gaming

Show 2016 as Crystal sponsor. Organized by the

Macau Gaming Equipment Manufacturers Association
and supported by Macau Gaming, Inspection and
Coordination Bureau, Macau Government Tourism Office
and Macau Trade and Investment Promotion Institute,
the Gaming Show was the first large scale gaming and
entertainment exhibition organized and run by Macau

organizations.

In December 2016, we were a Diamond sponsor of the
first International Film Festival and Awards-Macau and
were pleased to be able to assist the IFFAM Organizing
Committee in securing the participation of 2016 Academy
Award winning Director/Screenwriter Tom McCarthy.

We also participated in “Walk for a Million” in Macau
and the event raised over MOP16 million and the funds
will be used for medical and health service, elderly service,

community service, etc.
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CHAIRMEN'S STATEMENT
TERE

CONSOLIDATED FIGURES

We recorded a basic loss per share of 4.9 HK cents

in 2017 versus basic loss per share of 21.7 HK cents

in 2016. This was primarily due to the absence of
one-off pre-opening expenses in relation to hotel under

development segment as recorded in last year.

We expect consolidated losses to continue until THE 13
hotel is operational and generating revenue. We believe
that our niche strategy targeting a g|obc1| clientele of
customers seeking a unique luxury experience remains well

posiﬂoned in the Macau market.

Again, as at year ended 31 March 2017, we will not pay a
dividend as we are still developing THE 13 hotel.

Finally, we thank our employees for their dedication and

hord WOI’l(, Ohd our shoreho|o|ers, customers ond business

partners for their continued support.

Stephen Hung and Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Joint Chairmen

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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Walter Craig Power
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director) TTEER, Gl TE= )
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
TEGREE RS

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to report the annual results of The 13 Holdings
Limited (the "Company’, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group') for the year ended 31 March 2017, together with
comparative figures for 2016. The consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, financial position, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Group, all of which are audited,
together with explanatory notes, are set out on pages 103 to
256 of this annual report, which have been reviewed by the
Company'’s Audit Committee.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND
POSITIONS

Hotel Development

The Group is building an exclusive luxury hotel and
enfertainment complex, expected to open in the second half

of 2017 on a site of some 65,000 square feet located on the
Cotai Strip of Macau (the "Hotel"). The directors believe that the
completion and opening of the Hotel with provision of ancillary
facilities wi||, in due course, generate strong cash flows for the
benefit of all shareholders.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the hotel development
segment recorded assets of approximately HK$10,085 million
and liabilities of approximately HK$4,738 million, mainly

the cost of land, hotel under development, deposits paid for
acquisition of hotel fixture, furniture and equipment in Macau,
the liability portion of convertible bonds issued for financing
the hotel development and borrowings for hotel development.
Also included in segment assets and liabilities are transactions
with Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ("PYE") in respect of
construction of the Hotel. There was no segment profit from
hotel development for the year ended 31 March 2017.

As at 31 March 2017, HK$3,023 million was drawn from a
six-year term loan facility of HK$3,045 million provided by a
Mainland China-based bank.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
TEGREE RS

ENGINEERING BUSINESS - PYE

During the year under review, the demand for the engineering
services retreated from its peak both in Hong Kong and Macau.
In addition, influenced by funding approval delay from the
Legislative Council, the number of public projects, especially
infrastructure projects, decreased significantly. On one hand, this
relieved some pressure on human resources. On the other hand,

price competition in tender was intensified.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, segment revenue at

PYE and its subsidiaries ("PYE Group”) decreased 30% to
approximately HK$6,954 million (including approximately
HK$827 million for the Hotel project in Macau) from
approximately HK$9,960 million (including approximately
HK$3,148 million for the Hotel project in Macau) in 2016 due
to the decrease in new contract awarded last year. Segment
operating profit decreased approximately 18% to approximately
HK$129 million (2016: HK$158 million), including approximately
HK$35 million (2016: HK$132 miillion) for the Hotel project in

Macau, as a result of reduction in revenue.

The Group

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue including joint operations of approximately
HK$6,127 million (2016: HK$6,812 million), representing a
decrease of approximate 10% from that of last year due to the
decrease in new contract awarded last year.

Gross profit increased to approximately HK$247 million (2016:
HK$198 million) primarily due to less provisions made under
certain construction projects but partially net off by the decrease
in revenue as a result of the aforesaid reasons. Gross profit
margin increased to 4.0% (2016: 2.9%).

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year

was approximately HK$45 million (2016: HK$197 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 77% resulted mainly
from the absence of one-off pre-opening expenses in relation to
hotel under development segment as recorded in last year and
decrease in legal and professional fees. Basic loss per share was
4.9 HK cents.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
TEGREE RS

The Group maintained a strong financial position with total
assets standing at approximately HK$13,524 million as at 31
March 2017, approximately 8% increment compared with last
year. The equity attributable to owners of the Company slightly
decreased to approximately HK$5,680 million or 1% was mainly
due to the continuing loss for the year resulted from the hotel
deve|opmenf

Net cash flow from operating activities was about HK$30
million and net cash outflow in respect of investing activities was
approximately HK$1,396 million. Net cash inflow in respect of
financing activities was approximately HK$788 million, resulting
in a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of about HK$578
million for the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Hotel Development

The occupation permit in respect of the Hotel was issued by the
Macau government on 29 March 2017 and the Company is
now in the process of obtaining necessary licenses and approvals
for operation of the Hotel and related activities.

We are extremely pleased with the quality throughout the Hotel
and believe the results are truly spectacular. We were surprised
and deeply honored to be named by Wallpaper*, Time Inc.’s
highly respected design magazine as one of the “finest design
innovations of 1996-2016" in its 20th anniversary issue. The 13
shares this distinction with other modern design icons, including
the iPhone, the Ferrari Enzo, the Guggenheim Bilbao Museum,
the Bird's Nest at the Beijing Olympics and the Burj Khalifa in
Dubai among others.

The number of staff in hotel segment was over 300 by the end
of March 2017.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
TEGREE RS

ENGINEERING BUSINESS - PYE

Management Contracting division remained the core business
and the major contributor of revenue this year. Revenue of

this division amounted to approximately HK$6,951 million
(2016: HK$9,944 million), down by about 30%. The revenue
included approximately HK$827 million (2016: HK$3,148
million) for the Hotel project in Macau. This division reported
an operating profit of HK$126 million (2016: HK$158 million),
including approximately HK$35 million (2016: HK$132 million)
for the Hotel project in Macau. As at 31 March 2017, the value
of contracts on hand was approximately HK$27,223 million,
while the value of work remaining had stood at approximately

HK$11,424 million.

During the year under review, the Management Contracting
division secured new construction contracts with an aggregate
value of approximately HK$9,657 million, representing an
increase of approximately 98% as compared to the amount
of approximately HK$4,881 million for last year.. Subsequent
to the year end, the division secured further contracts of
approximately HK$1,063 million. Set out below are the new
contracts secured during the year and up to the date of this
report:

Basement and superstructure works for the residential
development at Kau To Area 56A

Civil and building works for Unit L10 and Unit L11 (optional)
at Lamma Power Station Extension

Construction management services for The University of
Chicago Center in Hong Kong

Construction of public rental housing development of Choi
Fook Estate Phase 3 and sports centre, Kwun Tong

Fitting out works for Grand Lisboa Palace at Cotai, Macau

Main contract for the alteration and addition works at Nan
Fung Textile Mills

Main contract works for The French International School of
Hong Kong in Tseung Kwan O

Main contract works for the residential deve|opmenf at Kai

Tak Area 1l Site 3

The Property Development Management division reported a loss of
approximately HK$2 million for the year under review. The value of
contracts on hand for Property Development Management division
at the year end was approximately HK$4 million.
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The Property Investment division reported a profit, through

its joint venture, of approximately HK$5 million for the year
under review. The joint venture holds an investment property

in Hangzhou, the Pioneer Technology Building, which is an
office building with gross floor area of about 20,000 square
meters. The building generated rental income of about HK$12
million (2016: HK$12 million) during the year and its occupancy
reached about 96% as at 31 March 2017.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 June 2017, a subsidiary of the Company entered into
sale and purchctse agreements in respect of the disposo| of its
51.76% interests in PYE, an indirect subsidiary of the Company
to ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITCP"), a listed company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (stock code 199) and Mr. Chan Fut Yan, the deputy
chairman and executive director of PYE and also the managing
director and executive director of ITCP for a total consideration

of HK$300,000,000.

For further details please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 June 2017.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group maintains a variety of credit facilities to meet
requirements for working capital. As at 31 March 2017, cash,
bank balances and deposits stood at approximately HK$377
million, of which approximately HK$301 million, HK$56
million, HK$13 million, HK$3 million, HK$3 million and HK$1
million were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi,
Macau Patacas, Singapore Dollars, Malaysian Ringgit and
Japanese Yen respectively. The Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$3,948 million at year-end of which
approximately HK$888 million are repayable within one year.
In addition, the Group also has outstanding convertible bonds
with a face value of approximately HK$2,219 million and a
liability component as at 31 March 2017 of approximately
HK$577 million. The convertible bonds mature in February
20925.

As at 31 March 2017, other than the convertible bonds, the
Group's variable-rate borrowings and fixed-rate borrowings

are approximately HK$3,648 million and approximately
HK$300 million respectively. The convertible bonds are interest
free. All borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.
The Group's ratio of total debt to total assets, based on total
debt of approximately HK$4,525 million and total assets of
approximately HK$13,524 million, was 28% at 31 March 2016
and rose to 33% at 31 March 2017 primarily due to increase in
total borrowings related to hotel development.
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As of 31 March 2017, the Group's current liabilities exceeded

its current assets by approximately HK$301 million and the
Group had outstanding capital commitments of approximately
HK$369 million. The Group has received non-binding offers of
financing significantly in excess of its net current liabilities and
capital commitments and the Group is working diligently to
complete the necessary financing.

EMPLOYEES
The Group had 1,808 full-time employees, including the

Directors of the Group but excluding contracted casual labour

in Macau, as at 31 March 2017. The Group offers competitive
remuneration packages based on overall market rates, employee
performance, and the performance of the Group. Remuneration
packages are comprised of salary, performance-based bonuses,
and other benefits including training, provident funds and
medical coverage. Three share incentive schemes (namely share
option scheme, share award scheme and share financing plan)

are in place to motivate and reward eligible employees.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group pledged hotel under
development, prepaid land lease payments, deposits paid for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, inventories and
bank deposits of approximately HK$7,718 million, HK$1,595
million, HK$158 million, HK$30 million and HK$16 million,
respectively, and charged the Group's benefits over certain
construction contracts and the Group's interests over certain
subsidiaries to secure the general banking and other facilities
granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in respect of indemnities of
approximately HK$50 million issued to financial institutions for
performance bonds on construction contracts of an associate
and joint operations and contingent liabilities in respect of
corporate guarantee of approximately HK$18 million issued to a
bank for general banking facilities granted to an associate as at
31 March 2017.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
hotel under development of approximately HK$187 million and
HK$182 million respectively.
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SECURITIES IN ISSUE

During the year ended 31 March 2017, 2,100,000 share
options were granted and 150,000 share options lapsed.

As at 31 March 2017, there were 920,867,010 shares in issue.
Additional shares may be issued by way of: i) exercise of share
options of the Company for up to 91,632,000 shares of the
Company depending on the fulfilment of vesting conditions
attached to the options; ii) exchange for up to 10% of the
shares in Falloncroft Investments Limited ("Falloncroft”) for

up to 88,235,294 shares of the Company depending on the
ultimate equity capitalization of Falloncroft and achievement
of certain performance targets related to hotel development;
and (i) conversion of three 2025 convertible bonds which if fully
converted would result in the issuance of 465,814,719 shares of
the Company.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for

the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
of the Company’s listed securities.

OUTLOOK

The global economy continues to face political uncertainties
while growth in Mainland China and the US is rebounding
cautiously. As economic conditions improve in the world's

two |orges’r economies, both central banks are refocusing

on monetary tightening and debt reduction, whether it be

the central bank balance sheet or in the broader economy.

This secular change is coming after nearly a decade of
unconventional monetary policy and during a period of growing
political and trade uncertainty arising from populist movements
in the Eurozone and the US. In addition, China will be holding
its 19th Party Congress later this year during which important
decisions will be made in respect of the pace of continued
reform of the Chinese economy. While most baseline global
macroeconomic forecasts remain sanguine, the scope of the
po’ren’rio| secular chonges also increases the pofenficd for
unpredicfob|e oufcomes.
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Hotel Development

Overall Macau gross gaming revenue ("GGR") declined in
calendar year 2016. GGR for the full year was approximately
HK$217 billion reflecting a 3.3% decline from 2015. However,
beginning in the second half of 2016, GGR rebounded,
increasing 5.7% year-on-year ("Y-O-Y"). GGR continued to grow
for the five months ended May 2017 recording an increase of
15.8% Y-O-Y. February 2017 GGR was the highest recorded in
Macau since January 2015.

Visitation to Macau recorded an increase of 6.9% Y-O-Y for the
four months ended April 2017 and had a slight increase of 0.8%
for full year 2016.

Macau GGR is rebounding on the back of increasing nominal

Gross Domestic Product ("GDP") growth in China. In the first
quarter of 2017, China recorded 11.8% Y-O-Y nominal GDP
growth. The Organization for Economic Co-operation and
Development is forecasting nominal GDP growth in China
of 11.5% for full year 2017 versus actual growth of 8.0% in
2016 and 7.0% in 2015. 2015 represents China's lowest rate
of nominal GDP growth since the Asian Financial Crisis of

1998-1999.

Engineering Business - PYE

Affected by the overall political and economic environment,
the Hong Kong construction market is still subject to many
challenges. Meanwhile, the progress of the Legislative Council
has been impeded, leading to a considerable backlog in
processing funding approval for public works. It is expected
that the competition in construction market will remain fierce in
the foreseeable future. Nevertheless, the HKSAR Government
continues to adopt multi-pronged approaches to increase land
and housing supply so as to provide more residential units. In
view of this, the medium-term and long-term development
prospects of the construction industry remain promising.

For Macau, the gambling industry is gradually recovering,

and it is expected that total expenditure on Macau's public
infrastructure will increase due to the sustained effort by its
government to advance infrastructure, bringing a glimmer of
hope to the construction industry. In addition, we are paying
close attention to the Southeast Asian market in order to explore
more development opportunities, and we continue to expand

or develop the local construction business by using cautious
tendering strategies.
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In order to grow the Group's business and reputation, we
reconfigured the organiza’rionq| and management structure last
year, with the aim of enhancing operational performance and
implementing the strategic plans and directions more effectively
by drawing on the Group's strengths and resources. As a leading
integrated contracting services company in Hong Kong, we

will continue to be innovative. We will also gather wisdom and
capabilities from various parties, so that every outstanding
management feam can give full p|0y to their expertise and

move towards a better future.

Walter Craig Power
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director)

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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Stephen Hung, aged 58, has been the Joint Chairman (Executive Director) of the
Company since February 2013. He is also the Chairman of the Executive Committee
of the Company, and a member of the Nomination Committee, Finance and
Investment Committee of the Company, and a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. He has over 34 years of experience in the finance and investment
industries. He is the Chairman of The Taipan Investment Group and the Vice
Chairman of Rio Entertainment Group, which operates the Rio Hotel & Casino
through its affiliates in Macau. Mr Hung was formerly co-head of investment
banking for Asia at Merrill Lynch and subsequently formed his own investment
banking firm, Amida Capital Limited in 1992. From 2000 to 2002, Mr Hung
served as the Vice Chairman of eSun Holdings Limited (0571.HK). From 2000

to 2004, he also served as a non-executive director of AcrossAsia Limited (8061.
HK). Mr Hung graduated from University of Southern California, Los Angeles with
a master's degree in business administration in 1981. Mr Hung is also a director of

| Hung Limited, S Hung Limited, Pride Wisdom Group Limited and Chief Wise

Limited, all of which have interests in the shares/underlying shares of the Company

which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Joint Chairman (Executive Director)
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Peter Lee Coker Jr., aged 48, has been the Joint Chairman (Executive Director)

of the Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Finance and
Investment Committee, Disclosures Committee and Executive Committee of the
Company, and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 26
years of experience in the finance and investment industries. He is the Managing
Partner of Pacific Adveriers, and is also a partner of TDR Capital Investment

Ltd (a Shenzhen-based private equity firm). Mr Coker served as an officer of the
Bridge Companies prior to joining Wellington Securities (New Zealand) in 2002.
During his service with the Bridge Companies, Mr Coker held the title of Managing
Director-Asia, Chief Executive Officer of E-Bridge and Managing Director of Bridge
Asia where he was responsible for the firm's equity business in Japan and South East
Asia/Australia. From 2000 to 2001, Mr Coker served as the Chairman of IRESS
Market Technology Limited (formerly BridgeDFS) (ASX: IRE). From 2002 to
2005, Mr Coker served as the Chairman of Wellington Securities (New Zealand).
From 2006 to 2009, Mr Coker served as the Chairman of Global Trading Offshore
Pte (Singapore). Mr Coker graduated from Lehigh University in the United States
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1990.
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Joint Chairman (Executive Director)
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Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, aged 66, is the Deputy Chairman (Executive Director) of the
Company. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Finance and Investment Committee, Disclosures Committee,

Corporate Governance Committee, PYE Committee and Executive Committee

of the Company. He is also the Deputy Chairman and non-executive director

of a subsidiary of the Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lau has over 40 years' international corporate development and
management experience in infrastructure deve|opmenfs as well as construction and
engineering services invo|ving the road, rail, port, power, telecommunications, mining
and resources sectors in the Asia Pacific Region. Mr Lau has been the Deputy
Chairman of the Company since January 2005. He has been re-designated from
Non-Executive Director of the Company to Executive Director of the Company since
February 2013. Mr Lau is the Chairman and Managing Director of PY| Corporation
Limited (0498.HK), a significant developer and operator of major bulk cargo

ports in the Yangtze River Region in China. He is also the Deputy Chairman and

non-executive director of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (0310.HK) and
he was an independent non-executive director of China National Building Material
Company Limited (3323.HK) until November 2011.
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Walter Craig Power, aged 63, has been the Chief Executive Officer (Executive
Director) of the Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Finance
and Investment Committee and Executive Committee of the Company, and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is one of the longest serving
casino executive expatriates in Macau's gaming industry. Arrived in Macau in
January 2003, Mr Power has held the positions of Chief Operating Officer of New
Cotai Entertainment, an investor and developer of Macau Studio City, as well as
Senior Vice President of Operations of Venetian Macau Limited. Mr Power was
instrumental to the success of the deve|opmenf, opening and operation of the Sands,
the first western casino in Macau. During his tenure at the Sands, he was responsible
for casino operations, hotel operations, all food and beverage outlets and security
operations. He was also a member of the Compliance and Credit Committee. Being
one of first western executives to enter the Macau gaming market, and having
worked in Macau for over fourteen years, Mr Power is known inferngﬁona”y for his

extensive knowledge of Macau gaming to include junket, VIP, and mass market

operations. A 25-year gaming indusfry veteran, Mr Power accumulated extensive
international gaming experience through executive operational positions at casino
resorts in the United States, Argentina, South Africa and the Philippines, in addition

MR WALTER CRAIG POWER to his work in Macau. Mr Power, a former United States Marine Corps Major and
Walter Craig Power 524 Naval Aviator, received his BA and MBA from the University of Michigan. He is also
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director) a graduate of the casino industry’s Executive Development Program offered by the
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IRJAMES CHIU
A TA26M

Independent Non-Executive Director

BIFFTES

SFEEEN

James Chiu, OBE, JP, aged 78, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since March 2006. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and PYE Committee
of the Company. He is also the Chairman and independent non-executive director
of a subsidiary of the Company, and an independent non-executive director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Ir Chiu has served Hong Kong's construction industry for
53 years. He was the Managing Director of the General Electric Company of Hong
Kong Limited from 1984 to0 1998.

Ir Chiu has held a number of important industry roles. He was a president of The
Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors Limited, The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a Chairman of the British Chamber of
Commerce in Hong Kong. Currently, he is a Council Member of Hong Kong
Electrical & Mechanical Contractors Association and Hong Kong Electrical
Contractors Association Limited. He was a director of BEAM Society Limited until
15 June 2017.

Ir Chiu is an Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, and a
Fellow of Hong Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences.
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MR IAIN FERGUSON BRUCE
mELEE
Independent Non-Executive Director

BIIFITES

SFEEEN

lain Ferguson Bruce, aged 76, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman of the Finance

and Investment Committee and Disclosures Committee of the Company, and a
member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and PYE Committee of the Company. He is also an independent
non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr Bruce joined KPMG in
Hong Kong in 1964 and was elected to its partnership in 1971. He was the Senior
Partner of KPMG from 1991 until his retirement in 1996 and served as Chairman of
KPMG Asia Pacific from 1993 t0 1997. Since 1964, Mr Bruce has been a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland, and is a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants with over 50 years of international
experience in accounting and consulting. He is also a fellow of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, and the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
and MSIG Insurance (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr Bruce serves as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on the boards of several publicly listed companies in Hong
Kong, including, Wing On Company International Limited (0289.HK), Tencent
Holdings Limited (0700.HK) and Goodbaby International Holdings Limited (1086.
HK). He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Yingli Green Energy
Holding Company Limited, a company whose shares are traded on the New York
Stock Exchange. Mr. Bruce was an Independent Non-Executive Director of China
Medical Technologies, Inc., a China-based medical device company that was listed
on NASDAQ, up to 3 July 2012. He was an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (0345.HK) and retired from that company's
board on 4 September 2014, and was the Chairman of KCS Limited until 1 August
2015. He was an Independent Non-Executive Director of Sands China Ltd. (1928.
HK) until 11 March 2016. He was also a Non-Executive Director of Noble Group
Limited, effective from 1 March 2017, a company whose shares are listed on The
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and resigned from that company's
board on 11 May 2017.
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PROFESSOR LEE CHACK FAN
S
Independent Non-Executive Director

BIIFITES

SFEEEN

Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP, aged 72, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Company, and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and PYE Committee of the Company. He is also an
independent non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company. Professor Lee
is the chair professor of geotechnical engineering and is the Chancellor of the Chu
Hai College of Higher Education. He is also an academician of Chinese Academy
of Engineering. Professor Lee graduated from The University of Hong Kong in
1968 and subsequently received his master's degree from the University of Hong
Kong in 1970 and a Ph.D. from the University of Western Ontario, Canada in 1972.
Professor Lee is an internationally renowned expert in geotechnical engineering.

He worked for Ontario Hydro in Canada for some 20 years before he joined his
alma mater in 1994. He has participated in the design of many massive dams and
nuclear power stations. He has served as a specialist consultant or an advisor to
many international bodies such as the United Nations Development Plan, World
Bank, Asian Development Bank, etc. on numerous energy and infrastructure projects
in many parts of the world. Professor Lee's eminent achievement in civil engineering
has been highly recognized; he was awarded the KY Lo Medal in 2000 by

the Engineering Institute of Canada and was elected the academician of the
Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2003 in recognition of his contributions to the
engineering profession. He has been appointed as Justice of the Peace by the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government in July 2003, and he has been
awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and Gold Bauhinia Star in July 2005 and July
2013 respectively.

Professor Lee is currently the Chairman of Hong Kong Institute for Promotion of
Chinese Culture, member of the Commission on Strategic Development, and the
President of the Fu Hui Charity Foundation.
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MR FRANCIS GOUTENMACHER
FRANCIS GOUTENMACHER %t4

Independent Non-Executive Director

BIIFITES

MR CHAN KOK CHUNG, JOHNNY
BRERIE

Independent Non-Executive Director

BIFNTES

SFEEEN

Francis Goutenmacher, aged 75, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Goutenmacher has been with
Richemont Luxury Group, S.A. ("Richemont”), one of the world leading luxury goods
groups, for over 30 years. He has been the managing director and chief executive
officer of several prestigious brands, like Cartier and Piaget, encompassed by
Richemont. After retiring as the regional chief executive of Richemont Asia Pacific
Limited, Mr. Goutenmacher is now running a marketing consultancy firm, Gouten
Consulting Limited, and is a director of this consultancy company. Mr Goutenmacher
holds a Bachelor's degree from Ecole Nationale des Arts Decoratifs in Paris, France.
He is an independent non-executive director of |.T Limited (0999.HK). He was an
independent non-executive director of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited (0157.
HK) until 18 December 2015.
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Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny, aged 57, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since November 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr Chan has over 32 years of experience in investment
banking and investment management industry. He is a co-founder of Techpacific
Capital Limited since 1999, and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Crosby Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited from 2002 to 2016, Mr Chan is
the President of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity Association. He
is also the Secretary General of the Asia Venture Capital and Private Equity Council.
Mr Chan is a member of the Innovation and Technology Commission from 2014 to
2017. He is a member of the Choate Rosemary Hall Parent Advisory Council. He is
an Independent Non-Executive Director of CNQC International Holdings Limited
(1240.HK) and a Director of Repton International (Asia Pacific) Limited. Mr. Chan
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from City University Business
School in the United Kingdom, a postgraduate diploma from The Securities Institute
of Australia and a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) degree in Economics from the London
Metropolitan University.
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MR RICHARD LIAO
BtAHkE

Chief Financial Officer
IF5HREL

MS MUI CHING HUNG, JOANNA
HBERAL/) A

Corporate Counsel and Company Secretary

EBEBFRNEWE

Richard Liao, aged 53, has been the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since
May 2013. He is also a member and alternate secretary of the Executive Committee of
the Company. Mr Lico has over 30 years of experience in finance and private equity.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr Lico was a Managing Partner of Brookfield Asset
Management (*Brookfield”) and Head of Real Estate Investment for Brookfield in
Europe. Prior to his appointment at Brookfield in 2010, Mr Liao served as Managing
Director, Real Estate Investment Banking for Bank of America Merrill Lynch ("Merrill
Lynch"), London, a position he held since 2005 and was employed for the preceding

7 years at Citigroup in both London and New York as a Managing Director of Real
Estate Investment Banking. Before moving to New York in 1998, Mr Liao spent 11
years in Hong Kong initially with Merrill Lynch and then co-founded Amida Capital
Group Limited with Mr Hung in 1992. Mr Lico graduated from Harvard College with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in 1986.
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Mui Ching Hung, Joanna, aged 48, is the Corporate Counsel and Company Secretary
of the Company. She is also the secretary of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Disclosures Committee, PYE Committee and Executive Committee of the
Company, and the company secretary of various subsidiaries of the Company. She

is responsible for legal, regulatory compliance, corporate governance and company
secretarial matters of the Group. Ms Mui has over 25 years’ experience in company
secretarial field. She joined the Group in 1997. Ms Mui holds a Bachelor (Hons) Degree
in Law and a Master of Arts Degree in Language and Law. She is an associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
BEEBWE

The 13 Holdings Limited (the "Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the "Group") is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance because we believe that

is the best way fo enhance shareholder value. The Company
places strong emphasis on an effective board (the “Board”) of
directors (the "Directors”) of the Company, accountability, sound
internal control, appropriate risk-assessment procedures, and
fransparency fo all shareholders.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the "Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) (the "Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2017 and has adopted most of the recommended best
practices stated therein.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-Executive Directors to ensure independent viewpoints in all
discussions. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
nine Directors, including four Executive Directors and five
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Board members are
listed below:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS &= &

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HITES

Stephen Hung (Joint Chairman)
KB (R £ %)

Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Joint Chairman)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (EfE L)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman)
AER @ER)

Walter Craig Power (Chief Executive Officer)
Walter Craig Power (1T FEEY)

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on pages 24
to 31 of this annual report and on the Company's website. In
odclifion, a list containing names of Directors and their roles and
functions is published on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BIFERITES

James Chiu

T

Lee Chack Fan

=183

lain Ferguson Bruce

mEL

Francis Goutenmacher
Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny
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BEEBWE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2017, at least one-third
of the Board was made up of Independent Non-Executive
Directors, one of whom had appropriate professional
quadlifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise, as required by the Listing Rules. There is no
relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

The composition of the Board (with five Independent
Non-Executive Directors out of nine Directors) exceeds the new
Listing Rules requirement to have independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the board.

The Company has established a policy concerning diversity of
Board members (the "Board Diversity Policy”). In the Board
Diversity Policy:

1. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its

pencormonce

2. With a view fo achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
deve|opmenf.

3. In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

4. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objectives criteria,

having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skill, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.
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The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the
Board:

Independent
Non-Executive
Directors

_
1Y

FHITES

N NN U1 O 4 00 O

Executive
Directors
WITES
|
No. of Directors Designation
EEAY BAL

Role and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company's strategic
direction and the controls applied to its activities, and ensuring
that Management has appropriate processes in place for
risk—qssessmen’r, management, and internal control over the
Company's day-to-day affairs.

The Board has in place a list of decisions that are to be retained
for the Board decision. These matters include:

1. Corporate strategy;

2. Financial reporting and control;

3. Madjor financial arrangements;

4. Risk management;

5. Succession planning;

6. Notifiable transactions under Chapters 14 and 14A of the
Listing Rules; and

7. Recommendations to shareholders regarding the

appointment of external auditor, dividend payments, capital
reorganizations and schemes of arrangement.

The Board has delegated all day-to-day operations and
management of the Company's business to Management under
the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer

The Joint Chairmen of the Company are Mr Stephen Hung
and Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr. The Chief Executive Officer of the
Company is Mr Walter Craig Power.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the positions of
the Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
held by different individuals, with separate duties. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairmen and Chief Executive
Officer is clearly established and set out in writing.

The role of the Joint Chairmen of the Company is to oversee
the Company's strategic direction and the controls applied to its
activities. The Joint Chairmen provides leadership for the Board
and ensures that the Company establishes sound corporate
governance practices and procedures. They also encourage all

Directors to make a full and active contribution to the affairs of

the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall
performance of the Company and plays a leading role in
delivering a growth strategy. He provides leadership for
Management, oversees the day-to-day operations of the Group,

and monitors the achievement of Company's objectives set by

the Board.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors were appointed for

a term of approximately three years expiring at the conclusion
of the third annual general meeting from the date of their
appointment/re-election, subject to the Company’s Bye-laws.
Pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement from office by rotation at least once every three years
and are eligible for re-election by shareholders.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has given
an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Nomination Committee of the Company is responsible for
assessing the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors. As a good corporate governance practice, every
member of the Nomination Committee abstains from assessing
his own independence.
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Board Process

The Board meets regu|dr|y and at least four times a year.
Regu|c1r Board meetings are usu0||y scheduled at the beginning
of the year to give all Directors adequate time to plan their
schedules to attend. Directors receive at least 14 days prior
written notice of regular Board meetings and an agenda. The
Board papers, including supporting analyses and relevant
background information, are normally sent to all Directors

at least 3 days before the Board meeting. For other Board
meetings, Directors are given as much notice as possible in the

circumstances.

In order to have an effective Board, Directors are provided with
information on activities and developments in the Group's
business on a regular and timely basis to keep them apprised
of the latest developments of the Group. The Directors have
full access to information on the Group and are able to seek
independent professional advice whenever they deem it

necessary.

In addition, in order to enable the Board and each Director to
discharge their duties, it has been the Company's practice to

provide all Directors with monthly updates giving a balanced

and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,

positions and prospects since 2007, way ahead of the
implementation of new Code on 1 April 2012.

To avoid conflicts of interest, Directors who have declared
their material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to
be discussed are not counted in the quorum of meetings and

abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions.
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Details of Directors” attendance at Board meetings, Board EEENEE_ S t&E-_A=+—HIEEREHE
committee meetings and shareholders’ meetings during the year BEELEE. EELERLFINREAGCFHFERIN
ended 31 March 2017 are set out in the following table: ™

Meetings attended/held during the year ended 31 March 2017

BE_E—tF=-A=+—HULFERHE BTEE

Finance & Corporate PVE
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination  Investment Disclosures  Governance . AGM
Board ) ) ) ) ) ) Committee
g9 Committee  Committee  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee REpy k&
ERZEE FNZEE RAZEE MER RKREZE8E GEEAR 258 BERE
REZEE Z8g -
Number of meetings
held during the year
. 5 3 1 1 2 2 3 4 1
FRNET
BEZRE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #{TZ 5
Stephen Hung
-~ 5/5 11 2/2 11
SHOK B / / / /
Peter Lee Coker Jr. 4/5 2/2 2/2 VAl
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 5/5 1 1”1 9/2 2/2 3/3 4/4 o/1
=R
Walter Craig Power 5/5 2/2 11
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS &3 JFHITE S
James Chiu
N 5/5 3/3 1N 3/3 4/4 11
=S
Lee Chack Fan
e 5/5 3/3 1N 11 4/4 1N
lain Ferguson Bruce 5/5 3/3 1”1 2/2 2/2 3/3 4/4 1
mEL
Francis Goutenmacher 5/5 3/3 11 1N

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny

i 5/5 3/3

38
THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
BEEARE

In addition to the Board meetings, the Chairman holds regular
meetings with Independent Non-Executive Directors without the
presence of Executive Directors in March 2017.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings with
sufficient details of matters discussed are kept in safe custody
by the Company Secretary, and are open for inspection by

Directors.

Induction and Development

Management and the Company Secretary liaise with the newly
appointed Directors to acquaint them with their duties and
responsibilities as Directors and the business operations of the
Company. On appointment to the Board, Directors receive a
package of orientation materials on the Group and provided
with a comprehensive induction on the business operations and
practices of the Group, as well as the general and specific duties
of directors under general law and the Listing Rules. All Directors
are also given a Directors’ Manual on their appointment

which set out, amongst other fhings, directors’ duﬁes, terms of
reference of the Board Committee and corporate governance

practices of the Group.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development ("CPD"),
details on legal and regulatory changes are provided to alll
Directors. Directors are also recommended and encouraged

to attend forums or seminars relating to the roles, functions

and duties of a listed company director. The costs of such
forums or seminars are borne by the Company. The Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company is responsible

for reviewing and monitoring the Directors training and
development.
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The Directors are required to provide the Company with details
of the CPD training undertaken by them. Based on the details
so provided, the CPD training undertaken by the Director during
the year ended 31 March 2017 is summarised as follows:

DIRECTORS

B THEIR UPDATES
Stephen Hung

KB 4

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
B R

Walter Craig Power

S
Lee Chack Fan
=155

lain Ferguson Bruce

v
v
v
James Chiu v
v
mELT 4

v

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny .\/
@E/u\

The Company has received confirmation from each current
Director that he has given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017.
Besides, Directors have disclosed to the Company their interests
as director and other office in other public companies and
organisation in a timely manner and update the Company on
any subsequent changes.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To facilitate the work of the Board, Board committees have
been set up with written terms of reference which clearly

define the ro|e, cu’rhorify, and functions of each committee.
Each Board committee is required to report their decisions or
recommendations to the Board. Details of Directors” attendance
at the Board committee meetings during the year ended 31
March 2017 are shown on page 38 of this annual report.
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The role and function of, and a summary of work done by, each
Board committee during the year ended 31 March 2017 are set
out below:

Audit Committee
Composition
The Audit Committee consists of five members, all of whom are

Independent Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired by an

Independent Non-Executive Director.

The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Professor Lee Chack Fan, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce,
Mr Francis Goutenmacher and Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny.
None of them is a partner or former partner of Messrs Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the Company's external auditor.

Role and Function

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include oversight
of the Group's financial reporting system, risk management

and internal control systems, review of the Group's financial
im‘ormoﬁon, and review of the re|c|ﬁonship with the external
auditor of the Company. This Committee also meets regularly
with the Company’s external auditor to discuss the audit process

and accounting issues.

Summary of Work Done

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2017:

1. Review of the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2016;

2. Review of the interim results of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2016;

3. Review of the Group's financial information, financial
reporting system, risk management internal control systems
and financial and accounting policies and practices;

4. Approvo| of remuneration and terms of engagement of the

external oudi’ror;

5. Recommendation to the Board to re-appoint the external
auditor at the 2016 annual general meeting;

6. Review of the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, and
review of policy on engaging the external auditor to supply
non-audit services;

7. Review of the audit plan for the financial year ended 31
March 2017;
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8. Review of the Company's systems of financial controls,

internal control and risk management;

9. Review of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, fraining programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting function;

10. Review of internal/external auditor’s significant findings
and recommendations, and monitoring of the subsequent

implementation;

1. Review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function of
the Company;

12. Approval of the 2018 internal audit plans;
13. Review of the continuing connected transactions; and

14. Meeting with the external auditor, in the absence of
Management.

Remuneration Committee
Composition

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, the
majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
This Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director.

The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Professor Lee Chack

Fan.

Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee has been established to ensure
there is a formal and transparent procedure for setting policy
on the remuneration of Executive Directors and for fixing the
remuneration packages for all Directors. This Committee is
mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the Company'’s policy and structure for remuneration

of Directors and Senior Management, and making
recommendations on the manpower deployment plan. This
Committee also determines, with delegated responsibility,
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors

and Senior Monogemenf, and makes recommendations on
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.
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Summary of Work Done

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 March 2017 included review of the remuneration
policy of the Company.

Remuneration Policy

The Company ensures that the remuneration offered is
appropriate for the duties, in line with market practice and pay
levels, and effective in attracting, retaining and motivating
employees (including Executive Directors). For Non-Executive
Directors, the Company ensures that they are sufficiently but
not excessively compensated for their efforts and time dedicated
to the Company. No individual determines his or her own

remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the remuneration

paid to one Senior Management was within the band

between HK$1,000,000 to 5,000,000, and one Senior
Management was within the band between HK$5,000,001 to
HK$10,000,000.

Nomination Committee

Composition

The Nomination Committee consists of five members, the
majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
This Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director.

The current members of this Committee are Professor Lee Chack
Fan (Chairman), Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom,

Mr lain Ferguson Bruce and Mr Francis Goutenmacher.

Role and Function

This Committee was established to ensure there is a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new Directors. The duties of this Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board cmc|, if
necessary, recommending changes. It is also responsible for
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board, selecting or making recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals to be nominated for directorships,

and reviewing the effectiveness of the Directors.
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Summary of Work Done

The fo||owing is a summary of the work pencormed by the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 March 2017:

1. Nominated the retiring Directors for re-election at the 2016
Annual General Meeting;

2. Review of the structure, size and composition (inc|uding the
ski||s, know|edge and experience) of the Boctrd; and

3. Assessment of the independence of the |nc|epeno|enf

Non-Executive Directors.

Nomination Procedure

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and makes recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes.

Appointments of new Directors are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. In considering the appointment of a
Director, this Committee applies criteria such as professional and
educational background, relevant experience, and qualifications.
The recommendations of this Committee are then put to the
Board for consideration and approval. Thereafter, all Directors
appointed to fill casual vacancy are subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.

Finance and Investment Committee

Composition

The Finance and Investment Committee consists of five
members, and is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director. The current members of this Committee are Mr lain

Ferguson Bruce (Chairman), Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Peter Lee
Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr Walter Craig Power.

Role and Function

The Finance and Investment Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on matters

re|oﬁng to investing in assets, evo|uctﬂng the budgefs of all key
expendifures, reviewing financial pencormcmce against forecast,
and considering dividend payout.
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Summary of Work Done

The work done by the Finance and Investment Committee

during the year ended 31 March 2017 included:

1. Review and evaluation of actual-to-budget results for the
year ended 31 March 2016 and for the six months ended 30
September 2016 (including budget of all key expenditures);

2. Review of financial performance against forecast;

3. Discussion on changes in accounting standards which may
affect the Company's financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016 and for the six months ended 30
September 2016; and

4. Consideration of the payment of the 2016 final dividend
and 2017 interim dividend.

Disclosures Committee
Composition
The Disclosures Committee consists of three members, and

is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director. The
current members of this Committee are Mr lain Ferguson Bruce

(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Role and Function

The Disclosures Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing
disclosures to shoreho|ders, the pub|ic, and relevant statutory
authorities, and for overseeing compliance with any applicable
legal requirements for disclosure.

Summary of Work Done

The work done by the Disclosures Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2017 included the review of the content of
announcements relating to the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2016, and the interim results of the
Group for the six months ended 30 September 2016.

Corporate Governance Committee

Composition

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of three
members, the majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. This Committee is chaired by an Independent
Non-Executive Director. The current members of this Committee
are Ir James Chiu (Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and

Mr lain Ferguson Bruce.

Role and Function

The Corporate Governance Committee was established with
delegated responsibility of the Board to perform the corporate
governance duties and to further strengthen the Company's

corporate governance.
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The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee
were revised in November 2016 to include an additional duty to
this Committee to review corporate social responsibility matter of
the Company.

This Committee is mainly responsible for all corporate
governance and corporate social responsibility matters of the
Company.

Summary of Work Done

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Corporate Governance Committee during the year ended 31
March 2017

1. Review of the Company's corporate governance policy;

2. Review of the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

3. Review of the Company's compliance with the Code for
the year ended 31 March 2016 and six months ended 30
September 2016;

4. Review of the Company's disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2016; and

5. Approval of the corporate social responsibility policy of the
Company.

PYE Committee
Composition

The current members of the PYE Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Professor Lee Chack Fan

and Mr lain Ferguson Bruce.

Role and Function

The PYE Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing,
monitoring and supervising the overall management and
operation of the construction business of the Company

Summary of Work Done

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the PYE Committee
reviewed the results of the construction business of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2016, for the four months ended 31
July 2016, for the six months ended 30 September 2016 and for
the ten months ended 31 January 2017.

Executive Committee
Composition

The Executive Committee consists of five members. The current

members of this Committee are Mr Stephen Hung (Chairman),
Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr Walter
Craig Power and Mr Richard Liao.

Role and Function

This Committee is mainly responsible for handling the
management and operations of the day-to-day business of the

Group.
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Management Functions

The division of responsibihfies between the Board and
Management are clearly set out in writing to ensure that there is
a segregation of duties with clear accountability.

The Board, under the leadership of the Chairman of the
Company, has de|egc|fed all the day-fo-doy operations and
management of the Company’s business to Management,
under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Management is required to report to the Board on

their decisions or recommendations.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2017.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation
to the Group.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the
accounts deporfmenf, the Directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared on a going concern basis
and in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
financial reporting standards. The Directors also ensure that
the financial statements of the Group are published in a fimely
manner.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company
regarding his reporting responsibilities of the financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 100 and 102 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Chairman, Board and
Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and that
Board policy and procedures are followed. She is responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates
the induction and professional development of Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible to the Group's
compliance with all obligations of the Listing Rules and Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases.
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The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. She reports to the Joint Chairmen and
the Board as a whole. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary in respect of their duties
and the effective operation of the Board and Board Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company Secretary
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update her
skills and knowledge.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

At the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 16 August
2016, shareholders approved the re-appointment of Messrs
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditor
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

The fees paid to Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for audit and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 March 2017 (and the
comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2016) are as

follows:

RNEMERENTZEE, HESSFHE®D, jﬁﬁﬂﬂéx
BIRRESSFHEEER. 2EEFYIERRD
W%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%&%%@&%%é%@tﬁ?ﬂﬁfﬂ%f#%ﬁ
8] MR 5o

BE_E—tF=ZA=1T—HLFE, REWEBES
15/ B DBz BRI, WUEHTE R R R A H.

SNESIZEEm

REEB—RNENATAHETZARNEIREREERSE
&L, REMEERELS-AERS ST ARLBE
EIFE—TLF=-A=1+—HULEMBFE N EREE,

BE_E—CHF-A=T—HLFE REBE_F
—RNEZRA=+—HLEFEZHFTHR), BIEH-H
BRAGFENT B NIRRT 2 ERWT ¢

2017 2016

—E—tf —E—AE

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

F35 7 F5

Audit fee %EE A 4,644 4,419
Non-audit services fees IEBRFEE B

Interim review fee FHEEE R 980 980

Tax services IR EARTS 347 364

Provident fund audit NEEZEN 27 26

Forensic services EFE RS - 2,353

1,354 3,723

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and ensuring the continuing objectivity and
independence of the external auditor. The Audit Committee of
the Company has resolved to recommend the re-appointment
of Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the
Company. This resolution has been endorsed by the Board and
is subject to final approval and authorization by the shareholders
at the 2017 Annual General Meeting.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Introduction

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Company's
risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness. In meeting its responsibility, the Board seeks
to increase risk awareness across the Company's business
operations and has put in place policies and procedures which
provide a framework for controls and management of risks.

Such risk management and internal control systems are

designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and to provide reasonable, though
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management

The Group has established an enterprise risk management
framework to identify potential events that may be affecting
the Company, to manage risks within its risk appetite and to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the
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Company's objectives. It comprises of three lines of defence to }%U
provide Management, Audit Committee and the Board with the
confidence that the Company is managing its risks and they are:
RISK /&
BUSINESS OPERATIONS Operational processes, project risk and control OPERATIONAL
FIRS-I: LINE OF DEFENSE E3 et activity business level monitoring MANAGEMENT
BBk wE2, R AR R EHE aEE
MER
CORPORATE OVERSIGHT Business planning, policy and procedure setting, SENIOR
SECOND LINE OF DEFENSE . . MANAGEMENT
e FUEIC'UOT‘LS functional oversight \ \ B
NFIEE A STSIRB, BRI, AL 38 F
RISK &%
INTERNAL /EXTERNAL AUDIT Monitoring compliance and provide independent AUDIT
THIRD LINE OF DEFENSE AN TR challenge and assurance COMMITTEE
B=1BHR BRI TR R T E R R R EEAS

THE BOARD
E5g

(Audit Committee)

(BREES)
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Significant risks are considered and identified by the Board
when setting the Company's strategic objectives. Such risks

are evaluated and assessed based on their impact and
likelihood. Management ensures effective and appropriate risk
management and infernal control procedures and measures are
established and across business operations and functional areas.

This enterprise risk management framework will enable the
Company to have the following potential benefits:

Greater likelihood of achieving business objectives;
Higher share prices over the longer term;

Reduction in management time spent “fire fighting”;
Increased likelihood of change initiatives being achieved;
More focus internally on doing the right things properly;
Better basis for strategy setting;

Achievement of competitive advantage;

Fewer sudden shocks and unwelcome surprises; and

Early mover into new business areas.

Internal Control

The Company has had in place an integrated internal control
framework in complying with Code Provisions of Listing Rules.
Internal control is defined as a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in

relation to the following:

Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
Reliability of financial reporting; and

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company's internal control framework is divided into five
inter-related components: control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, monitoring and information & communication.
It serves as criteria for the effectiveness of the internal control
system in supporting the achievement of the separate but
overlapping operational, financial reporting and compliance

objectives.
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The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s system
of internal control and assessment of risks. The responsibility

of day-to-day management of operational risks and the
implementation of mitigation measures lies with Management.

Built into our system are checks and balances such that no single
party can “monopolise” a transaction, activity or process to
conceal irregularities. Hence, Management has undertaken the
following additional checks and balances procedures:

+ Aclear functional organizational structure was set up
with well-defined lines of authority, accountability and
responsibilities. Each division clearly understands their scope
of business and authorities delegated by Management;

- A monfhiy reporting system on the performcmce of each
division, and actual financial performonce results against
budgeis to Management was well established. The
Board reviews the Company’s operations and financial
performance on a quarterly basis;

«  The Board reviews onnuoiiy, in poriicuior, ooiequocy
of resources, qualifications, experience of staff, training
programme and bucige’r of the Company's accounting and
financial reporting function as required under the Listing
Rules;

+ The Audit Committee assesses and monitors the
effectiveness of internal control system in ciefeciing fraud
and other irreguioriiies by reviewing the work of the internal
corporate audit ciepctr’rmenf and its Finoiings; and

+ The Company has in place a disclosure of price-sensitive
information policy for identifying, handling and
disseminating inside information in compliance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571) of the
Laws of Hong Kong. Procedures such as limit access to
inside information to those who need to know and requiring
outside parties to execute confidentiality agreement have
been implemented by the Company to guard against
mishandling of inside information. In-house training about
inside information is provided to senior management and

relevant officers regularly.
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Internal Audit

The internal audit function of the Group reviews the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, including assessing
the adequacy and effectiveness of the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls as well as management
oversight of the in-scope areas and process. Risk management
and internal control review is conducted at least once a

year. The procedures consist of process evaluations through
interviews with various personnel of the in-scope processes,
review of relevant policies and procedures, and sample testing
of controls. During the internal audit process, the Group's
internal audit function identifies internal control weokness,
makes recommendations and obtains remedial action plan
from Management with timelines, for strengthening the internal

control of the Group. Internal audit function of the Group will

also follow up with Management status of remedial action plan.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the internal audit
function of the Group has conducted a review on the

Group's risk management and internal control systems. Internal
audit report, containing observations, recommendations

and remedial action plan, has been submitted to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

The Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Company's risk management and internal control systems
during the year ended 31 March 2017, and was not aware

of any significant issues that would have adverse impact

on the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. Such review

covers all material confro|s, inc|uo|ing Financiq|, operoﬁono|

and compliance controls, and adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

In order to enhance shareholder and investor understanding
of the Group's business, the Company has established several
communication channels with shareholders and investors,
including (i) printed copies of corporate documents (including
but not limited to annual reports, interim reports, circulars and
notices of shareholder meetings); (i) general meetings where
shareholders can offer comments and exchange views with the
Board; (iii) the Company’s website: www.thel3.com; and (iv)
the Company's share registrar with whom shareholders register
their shares. The Company has established a shareholders’
communication policy to set out the Company’s procedures

in providing the shareholders and investment community with

ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable

information about the Company.
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In addition, shareholders are encouraged to attend all general
meetings of the Company, where the Joint Chairmen of the
Company, Chairmen of Board Committees, other Directors and
the external auditor are available to answer questions on the
Group's businesses. In order to conduct the general meetings in
a transparent manner, it has been the Company's practice to
conduct poll voting at general meetings since 2005, way ahead
of poll voting being made mandatory for all general meetings
effective on 1 January 2009.

The most recent general meeting of the Company was the
annual general meeting held on 16 August 2016. The Joint
Chairmen of the Board, Chairmen of the Board committees
attended the annual general meeting and were available to
answer questions. The resolutions put forward are set out below:

«  Consideration of audited financial statements and reports of
directors and auditor of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2016;

Re-election of Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom as Director;
Re-election of Ir James Chiu as Director;

«  Re-election of Mr lain Ferguson Bruce as Director;
Fixing of Directors’ remuneration;

Re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
Company's auditor;

Granting of general mandate to Directors to issue shares
of the Company not exceeding 20% of Company's issued
shares;

Granting of general mandate to Directors to repurchase
shares of the Company not exceeding 10% of the
Company's issued shares;

Refreshing of 10% limit on grant of share options under the
Company's share option scheme; and

Amendment of the Company’s bye-laws.

The above resolution was passed. The results of the poll voting
have been published on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Under the Company's bye-laws, shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the total voting rights at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called for
the business specified in such requisition.

Also, shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting righ’rs at generc1| meetings or not less than 100
shareholders have to right to submit a written request to the
Company stating the resolution intended to be moved at the
annual general meeting.
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Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board's REIERENESECEAEANGIRNE AT EE
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company's principal EHRE, ML AE B TEEETITIAEF L ERT/IL2901ZE,
place of business in Hong Kong at 2901 AIA Central, 1 NEIAEW B
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.
Details of the interests of Directors and shareholders in the EENRERANBRNDZERFBEDNENAFIRE
shares of the Company are shown on pages 72 to 74 and 86 to TOET4E N EE86 T E,
91 of this annual report respectively.
OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION Htt R B &R
Memorandum and Bye-Laws %‘H%ﬁt%*ij(%ﬂ&‘f‘mﬁu
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company's bye-laws BE_S—tH&-A=f+—HILFER, ZIS 72%&%
were amended in line with the amendments to the Listing Rules. BEF1E DT, DIE EmiRE B, B2 _F—tF=
There were no changes to the Company’s memorandum during B=T—HILEERN, AN j%ﬁ%ﬁi*ﬁjﬁ%ﬂlﬁg‘@jo
the year ended 31 March 2017.
Key Corporate Dates NEIEEHH

EVENTS DATES

E =B B A

Announcement of 2017 interim results 15 November 2016

N ZE—tFEFHES —_E—RE+—A+IH

Announcement of 2017 annual results 28 June 2017

P _EBE—tELFERE —E—tFSAZ+/\H

2017 annual general meeting 23 August 2017

E—CERBBEFAE —_E—tF/\AZ-+=H
Public Float Capitalisation NAFFERTE
The public float capitalisation of the Company was ANER_E—tEFE=A=1+—AEEBREHHAZIAM
approximately HK$975.8 million on 31 March 2017, and T E D R#9975,800,00075 70 M £91,069,300,0005
approximately HK$1,069.3 million on the date of this report. TTo
By order of the Board AEEGD
Mui Ching Hung, Joanna MERRAL
Company Secretary NEIWE
Hong Kong, 28 June 2017 &%, _F—tHF,B+/\H
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This Environmental, Social and Governance Report provides
an annual update on corporate social responsibility ("CSR”)
performance of The 13 Holdings Limited (the "Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2017.

This report aims to provide a balance presentation of the
Group's CSR key issues covering its two core businesses, namely
hotel deve|opmen’r and construction.

This report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

CSR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has delegated power to the Corporate Governance
Committee to review CSR matter of the Company. A CSR

work group (which comprises department heads of various
departments and business units) has been formed to promote
CSR and ensure strategies, policies and guidelines are
developed based on the principles set out in the Company’s CSR
policy.
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PARTIES CSR RESPONSIBILITIES
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Board of Directors + Has overall responsibility for the Company’s CSR strategy and reporting
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Corporate Governance Committee + Review CSR matter of the Company
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Executive Committee +  Ensure the effectiveness of CSR risk management and internal control systems
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CSR Work Group + Promote CSR, and organizing and implementing CSR initiatives
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Departments and Business Units +  Develop and formulate CSR risk management and internal control systems
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+  Implement CSR practices
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+ Ensure CSR compliance in daily operation
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APPROACH TO CSR

The Company considers potential risks and impacts that
environment and social factors can have on the long-term risks
and returns to the Company and its shareholders. The Company
is committed to be a responsible corporate citizen by operating
in a manner that is economically, socially and environmentally

sustainable.

The Company’s CSR policy consists of a set of CSR principles
focusing on 4 aspects, namely (a) Operating Practices, (b)
Employee Management, (c) Environmental Protection and (d)
Community Investment, which are instrumental in enabling our
businesses to operate in a sustainable manner.
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CSR ASPECTS
ERTERERE

Environmental

Protection
RIERE

Operating
Practices
EEER

Within each of these CSR aspects, strategies, policies and
guidelines are developed based on the principles set out in the
Company’s CSR policy, for our daily operations.

MATERIALITY

The Group has identified CSR issues of the Group, and assessed
their materiality based on their impact to the Group's key
stakeholders and business. The CSR issues considered to be
material are listed out below and will be described in detail in
this report.
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ASPECTS

LA

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
RIBRE

Emissions

21967

Use of Resources

BRfER

The Environment and Natural Resources

RERXAER

EMPLOYEE MANAGEMENT
BTERE
Employment

(=5

Health Safety
RERELe

Development and Training
RIS

Labour Standards

% T#ER|

OPERATING PRACTICES
EESR

Supply Chain Management
HrEfEEE

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Anti-Corruption

P

R&E5

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
ElEtE

Community Investment

Ol E

MATERIAL ISSUES

Carbon emission
BREEAD
Waste management

ZESYNSbE

+  Electricity management
REEE
Water management
KEREHE
Employee environmental awareness
ETREEH

Green procurement

TREHE

Employee welfare and working conditions

EBTEMNNTIERE
+ Work-life balance
TEEEF S

+  Occupational health and safety
BxRRREZ e

Staff training
8T

Human rights and equal opportunities

NERFEH S

Supply chain management

fHrESEEIE

Quality management
mBEEE

Protection of data

ERMRE

Whistle-blowing
syl

Business ethics

ES e

« Community investment
[CleRit e
. Emp|oyee engagement in community

ETRHERH
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Emissions
Carbon Emission

As a good corporate citizen, the Group puts the principle

of sustainability into practice in every aspect of its business
operations. It has established a sound environmental and
energy management system in compliance with internationally
accepted 1SO14001 and ISO50001 standards, the scope

of which includes constant review of existing work, planning
and implementation of new initiatives, progress monitoring

and seeking advancement, with the aim of maximising the
effectiveness of energy saving as well as reducing emissions and

waste.

Our construction business adopted construction designs

such as the double-decker podium to reduce heat gain

in the Studio City, Macau project. Its hotels adopted
high-performance E-glass panels for the hotel curtain wall
system, to reduce the air conditioning load of the project.
Ultimately, these measures allow Studio City to function with six
three-thousand-refrigeration-ton chillers generating 18,000 air
conditioning tons, instead of seven chillers generating 21,000,

thereby reducing carbon emissions.

Woaste Management

The Group's waste management policy is aimed at minimizing
generation of waste for disposal as far as reasonably
practicable, encouraging use of sustainable and reusable
materials which are technically and economically viable and
requiring recyclable materials be separated from the waste pile
and reused as much as possible.

Our hotel development business strives to minimize negative
environmental impact from construction wastes in respect of the
development of THE 13 Hotel generated by the Group and its
contractors.

Use of Resources

We are committed to the well-being of our planet and its
present and future inhabitants. Our objective is to ensure that
resources are not wasted and that materials are reused and

recycled.

We strive to promote sustainable construction methods, so as to
make better use of resources and reduce material consumption
and construction waste. We also pay close attention to changes
in related environmental requirements, and refer to international
environmental standards and procedures to manage our
business.

Staffs are informed of our Energy Policy Statement, which is an

important part of our daily business management.
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Electricity Management

Our construction business uses Ultra Low-Sulfur Diesel to fuel
our machines, and c|ose|y monitor the qu0|ify of diesel procured
by our sub-contractors. We purchase air-conditioners with
environmental refrigerants and use solar mosquito-trapping

devices at our sites.

Water Management

We place notices in prominent locations in offices and sites
to encourage water saving, and proactively implementing
water-saving related measures, such as reusing treated
wastewater for spraying to suppress dust, so as to reduce

consumption of water resources.

Our construction sites reused treated wastewater to wash vehicles, so

as to reduce water consumption

Tt BASTBRERIE S ACE B W, LURDABKE

The Environment and Natural Resources
Employee Environmental Awareness

As a concerned global corporation, we have a responsibility
within our industry to be a good steward of the environment.
This includes pollution reduction and conservation of natural

resources in a fiscally responsible manner.

As for our hotel development business, Environmental Policy
(IMS Manual) is in place to establish and maintain documented
targets and objectives to reduce pollution and natural resources
consumption, o review progress towards those targets and
objectives at regular intervals while we strive for continuous
improvement, to operate the business in accordance with the
environmental laws impacting our industry, to communicate to
our staff the importance of good environmental stewardship and
the role we all play in making a positive impact and to make our
pledge towards good environmental stewardship available to
the public.
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We have participated in "Earth Hour”, an initiative of the World
Wide Fund for Nature with the aim of combating climate change for

consecutive years
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, our hotel development

business has organized the following events to our employees:

Training on Environmental - Recycle (September 2016)
Training on Environmental - Introduction (October 2016)
Green Walk in Seac Pai Van (2016 Summer)

Green Walk in Seac Pai Van (2016 Autumn)

R AR

BE_F—CtFEZRA=+—HLFE, HMANVESEERE
%?%EIﬁGTWE@-

BEREII-E (CFE—RFNE)
BEREII-BNH CE—RFTH)
HEERET (CE—RFE)
EHHERRET (CTE—REW

We have orgonised Training on Environmental - Introduction in October 2016

RPN ZFB—RETARTTREEII-BN

Green Procurement

As for our construction business, we co||ecf, sort, reuse and
recycle construction and demolition waste, and only use disposal
as the last resort. We also recycle most of the inert waste we
collect, including metal, paper and plastic materials. Moreover,
we construct sound barriers along with hammer shields before
carrying out percussive piling work, in order to reduce noise

levels, and we use air filters to reduce air pollution.

In addition, in recent years, the Group has participated in
various construction projects with a conservation element,
including The Mills and the University of Chicago Center in
Hong Kong. To strengthen the conservation knowledge of our
colleagues, the Group has organised special courses related to
heritage conservation and tree preservation, striving to protect
the precious historical culture and natural resources in the

community.

We have organised Green Walk in Seac Pai Van in 2016 Autumn
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Noise and Emission Monitoring, Review and Management

ERRE HEEERs

Heya Crystal, situated in Cheung Sha Wan, is an Urban Renewal Project of the Hong Kong Housing Society. The project included
the construction of three 26-storey residential towers and a five-storey podium with a two-storey basement car park. As the site was
surrounded by residential buildings, the project team strived to minimise disturbance to the neighbourhood during construction. Not
only was it executed to the highest environmental and sustainability standards, for example through the use of suitable recycled
building materials, but review and improvement systems were established. They included weekly noise and air quality monitoring,
quarterly energy savings meetings, and reviews of gas emissions and waste discharge. The project was granted the Hong Kong Green
Organisation Certification, issued by 11 organisations including the Environmental Campaign Committee, recognising the Group's
effort and contribution to environmental protection. The Group was very encouraged by this achievement and remains committed to
improving environmental performance at all its sites.

UREAVENEE, REEFFERERE TNTREREE, HEIKRER-ERsT \BNETAE. —ELES
T aEMBEMERER, AR ITMERASETETTE, SULIEE BEE M TR RS R E R
ERE. MAKRTBRTESNTHAFEREENRREER, MINBEEXRBREVEIFHERI, BRIIBMAVERET R
HEKS, 2ESERREARSINERSRER URB=ERETHRERIERNEES. LBEEERARRE
HEESSFH T (EARBECMNEEREHRERT ), URBAEERIRENVEEM Y. FEEHIRZE,
W DA 73 B MR IR AT B T B ERIR R IR,

EMPLOYEE MANAGEMENT BTERE

Employment =

Employee Welfare and Working Conditions BITEMNRIIERIE

Acknowledging that our employees’ contribution and effort drive HPRBEENASRE B TN R, KEBE
our dynamic achievements, we aim at providing them with a NAETIRHIEEN TERE,

great place to work.

Our Group has established a series of internal guidelines setting AEBEHRBRNEIES|VBRE. . #BENMR SRR
out employment, promotion, dismissal and anti-discrimination &, BMERIFRERNTRIE, &%k, Bl %E5 L8
policies to ensure that employees of different ages, positions, BENETERIEENSENERE., BT AMMIESR
genders and nationalities can enjoy a fair and healthy work ERSHINFMNEE. BIlBEUREXRERKE, U
environment where they feel valued and encouraged. We offer EMMEMM EEIENR.

competitive remuneration packages, training programmes and

career development opportunities to motivate them to give their

best.

The Group values its employees as family members. We have AEERETAREN—HT, BILBRT —XRIIK
put in place a series of family-friendly employment policies ERERFBERNERR, AIURIIAR. FER &L
and practices, including compensation leave, paternity leave, R, HBIEESE, UAMMAMmE—EEZEMNTIER
volunteer leave and a training allowance, aiming to create B, BRENENEBR.

a supportive work environment and strengthen their sense of
belonging.
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To encourage employees to express their opinions, we have
established a number of two-way communication channels,
such as site visits, festive luncheons, volunteer activities and
the publication of staff bulletins. These channels help to
facilitate communications between staff and management.
Our Construction business has received a Family-Friendly
Employer award this year, presented by the Home Affairs
Bureau and Family Council, as well as-once again-the Happy
Company Label, presented by the Promoting Happiness
Index Foundation. These awards indicate that we value the
deve|opmenf and we||being of our emp|oyees, and that we are
trying to build a harmonious enterprise culture.

Work-life Balance

Our hotel development business has implemented a Personal
Enrichment Program (PEP) to provide classes, internal and
external, for staff relevant to their personal interests with a view

to building knowledge and personal satisfaction.

Health Safety
Occupational Health and Safety

We value our people as our most precious asset. Occupational

safety and health are our priority in our commitment to our staff.

As for our construction business, we are precouﬁon—orienfed

on the issue of safety and health. Apart from providing
comprehensive personal protective equipment to our staff, we
set up rest areas, medical centres, mist fans and donger zone
alarms at our sites in order to raise the standards of comfort and
safety for our staff. We care not only about the physical health
of our staff, but also about their minds. We organise yoga
classes and Chinese medicine health talks regularly, to help our
staff to release their work and mental stress. We encourage our
staff to participate in the Happy Run activity organised by the
industry to promote a healthy and positive lifestyle.

The Safety, Health, Environment & Quality (SHEQ) Policy
Statement of our construction business sets out compliance
guidelines for construction sites and is reviewed yearly

in order to assess its effectiveness. In oddiﬁon, we odop’r
a"Plan-Do-Check-Act’safe working cycle to monitor and review
each working situation. To enhance the safety awareness of
our staff and sub-contractors, we organise a variety of health
and safety demonstrations and talks every year, as well as
training programmes, in order to share statutory information
and industry regulations with them. Our ultimate goal is zero
accidents.
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Industry Awards acknowledging Site Safety Culture

FRARBERFIHELEXL

This year, the West Island Line Project (Contract 713): Re-provisioning of Kennedy Town Swimming Pool (Phase 2), and the HEC
Projects Division Contract: Supplies Building Renovation in Lamma Power Station achieved outstanding performance in health and
safety, which earned them great recognition from the industry. The former project site won the Silver Award-Best Safety Culture Site
at the Construction Safety Forum and Award Presentation 2016, organised by the Occupational Safety & Health Council, the Labour
Department and the Construction Industry Council. The latter project site also earned the Bronze Award-Considerate Contractors Site
Awards (Non-Public Works-RMAA Works). These two project teams strived to promote safety culture and measures at their sites,
achieving the Group's prior commitment to ensuring its staff's safety at work. Their safety measures included:

AEE, ALEFENTEEESRIEER (§1713) | BRMMFCIEE LR (B2 AR ITREEZREGN BV &
FAIEHEE R B LTRETRERTZ 2NELRIE, BEXARZ . iiERNHBXLZ2RBRR. 5 LENEEXZ
BEMNEEXRZ LN ZEERTMUEB016 BE TRETEXUME IR ; RERNER OB ARRE — )
CGEIBIE—HE. RE IERMEIR . U LEESRH#ESH T RER, SRTAEETRES
TZeNEERHR, HEmIE

Reducing job hazards by conducting different types of risk control meetings;
BERTERBERAREREE, BREENEE;

Setting up movable acoustic barriers at the sites and providing acoustic material for indoor areas in order to reduce noise;

RIMFRERDAREITEES, MRNERNNRBERBDRE ;

Providing mini dust filter systems in order to reduce dust in the work environment and ensure that there were no hazards to workers'
|'1e0|’r|'1;
REXRIMBERFLURD THENER, THERTEEEIRERE;

Providing an air-conditioned tent and arranging watermelon gatherings during the hot summer season; and

RER, RIMRESRIRERZHANEUEE ; &

Providing free physical check-ups to workers to help them monitor their bodies in hot weather.

RERENSRRE, FELREERRA N THE NS ERT,

Development and Training
Staff Training

Staff training is 0|Wc|ys regorded as a worthwhile |ong-Term

investment for the Group.

Our hotel development business's staff training includes a
combination of hard and soft skills training. Blended learning
strategies and programs that empower our staff to best achieve
understanding of their job junctions, become self-sufficient,
improve job performance and ultimately drive results that

support the Group's objective.
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As for our construction business, staff training strategy includes
in-house and external training programmes. The in-house
programmes include the Non-Graduate Training Programme
and the Graduate Trainee Programme. We also organise

a variety of courses, seminars and workshops for all levels

of employees, on subjects from languages to conservation
knowledge and legal training, as well as skills and experience
sharing. In addition, we offer education sponsorship and
examination leave to encourage emp|oyees to take up
continuing education related to their scope of duties and
professioncd quo|ific0fions, in order to enhance their professioncﬂ
knowledge. We also promote a positive work-life balance
through social activities, personal development and voluntary

services.

Labour Standards
Human Rights and Equal Opportunities

We provide a workplace without discrimination and guarantee
equal treatment. We also establish processes and practices that
support workforce in their current and future work

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

Suppliers play a vital role in the business operations of the
Company. We cooperate closely with them to formulate

safe working conditions, nurture a culture of respect towards
employees, and implement responsible environmental initiatives.
We regard suppliers and sub-contractors as our business
partners, and carry out comprehensive management measures

to ensure partnering on a win-win basis.

As for our construction business, in order for us to pair up

with reliable partners from potential organisations, the senior
management closely monitors the whole process of selection,
and requests that suppliers complete questionnaires to illustrate
the company's track records in law compliance, standards or
guidelines of sustainability adopted, corporate governance,
regu|ofions of Wor|<p|c1ces, and performance on community
projects and environmental affairs. In addition, we implement
ongoing and effective assessments on selected suppliers

and sub-contractors, to ensure that fhey provide stable and
reliable services and products as well as executing the work of
sustainability.
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Product Resonsibilities EmEE

Quality Management mEEIE

Since 1993, our construction business’ quo|ify management E—N=FR, RfAREEFHNREESERGDILE
system has been developed and updated from time to time in BB AR ZEISO 900N T I FFIE B 3T, HA U B NEZEE
accordance with the ISO 9001 international standard. On the MY ) AER, REZERBHETRREAHE TIEW
basis of right-first-time”, we adopt various types of quality tools KNIRBER, ahEEB I S RS IFHETS
and initiatives to enhance our o|c1i|y work eﬁ(iciency and service =z, MERFAN—HRBEEEE2EIT. A, &
quality. The senior management also conducts regular meetings g lEasgEmanNElRER P ESHENE
with various departments, ensuring that sound and consistent B, BRIE=EERNMRBE =

quality standards are fully implemented. In addition, we collect
opinions from clients or sub-contractors via questionnaires or
interviews, in order to constantly optimise products and service

quality.

Harmony Place won the Grand Award at the Quality Building Awards As an industry leader, we are renowned for our quality work and strive
2016, demonsfrdﬁng the excellent performcmce of the Group in to achieve |ong—ferm sustainable cleve|opmenf in Hong Kong
undertaking unique projects ERAERNBEEEC—, HAURERB, IBOBREEE
SEFENERITNEEZRAR006TEFALE, BREEH BRI FEER

FARFEIEE ENSHRIR

PYE first Hong Kong Contractor to win NEC Large Project of the Year Award

REREXNATEERAEBEREN IIESHAEIRERKE

During the year under review, PYE, together with the MTR Corporation Limited (‘"MTRC"), was proud to be awarded the NEC Large
Project of the Year 2016 from the United Kingdom's NEC Users” Group in London. PYE is the first contractor in Hong Kong to receive
this prestigious honour.

NREEER, REEZERESHBERELE (AR N —RARELREFH TESKE P EBIEEN 2016 FEH
TREAEN-—ARETREEEAE, REEXERAEEAEEEEBESIILRSHE.

The NEC Large Project of the Year recognises excellence in project delivery and showcases best practices through collaboration from
across the world. The award-winning Re-provisioning of Kennedy Town Swimming Pool (Phase 2) is the first collaboration by the Group
and MTRC to adopt NEC. Under the NEC model, an'integrated team”partnering approach was adopted, employing a variety of
approaches, such as different meetings, training sessions, activities and an electronic project management system, to ensure effective
communication and mutual trust between all parties: the Group, MTRC, contractor, orchi’rec’r, construction consultant and government
depar’rmen’rs. The NEC contract effec’rive|y ensures that common approoches are odop’red to ensure that the objectives of all concerned
groups are met on critical areas such as construction cost, fee, quality, safety, environmental protection and community care. It
significantly benefits project development and stakeholder engagement.

e — AR TIEBEEAE | EEXBEAZMERERXMREFHEXRRSHUAF TEGNER, BENR
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Protection of Data

Protection of company data and privacy of information is very
important to the Compcmy. In order to gain frust from our

all stakeholders, the security of their personal information is
important to us. The Company acknowledges the importance
in carefully handling all personal information. We have policies
in place to monitor how the personal information of our
stakeholders is collected, used and managed. The personal
information is usually collected from our, vendors, employees

and other business associates.

The Company understands stakeholders use their personal
information for different purposes while performing business
activities. Therefore, it is important for us to handle this
information with care. To keep all company's data from any
unauthorized access, accidental loss and or desfrucﬂon, the
Company adopts appropriate security and data protection
measures in the transfer and storage of the personal data and
only processes corresponding information when necessary. In
order to ensure that our data would be safe from aHocks, we
have implemented multiple layers of security features, data
protection mechanisms which protect and monitor the integrity
of information. Reference to best practices for cyber security
and data protection methods and the use of various software
and hardware tools, further strengthens our data protection and

network security measures.

Anti-Corruption
Whistle-Blowing

The Company has in place a whistle-blowing policy and system
which enables employees and those who deal with the Group to
raise concerns, in conﬂdence, with the Audit Committee about
possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group.

Business Ethics

Building and ensuring the culture of integrity within the

Group has |ong been a major component in management.

All management and staff must comply with the Code of
Conduct, which sets out our position and standards regarding
operating ethics and employee conduct, including preventing
bribery and avoiding conflicts of interest. Any breaches of the
Code are handled in strict accordance with internal disciplinary

procedure&

In addition, protecting the privacy of stakeholders is an essential
task. Non-disclosure agreements are included in our tenders and
contracts for sub-confrdc’rors, in order to prevent the |ec1koge of

relevant information.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
Community Investment
Community Investment

The Group upholds its commitment and actively gives back to
the community while continuing to operate its business.

We actively promote and participate in endeavours that
foster community harmony and development in the aspects
of educoﬁon, chori’ry and social services, ensuring that our
community investment will have a long-term, continuous and
positive influence on society.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, our construction
business made charitable and other donations of approximately
HK$519,000 in support of community welfare, environmental
protection and healthcare initiatives.

As youth are the future pillars of our community, our construction
business team provide a variety of activities for members of the
younger generation who aspire fo join the construction industry.
For excmp|e, we organise career talks and site visits, as well as
offering internships and job opportunities to assist their career
planning. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
again cooperated with the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education, providing a nine-week internship opportunity to 22
students from the disciplines of engineering and architecture.
This practical work experience was aimed at helping them with
their career path decision.

As in previous years, the Group has continued to support
hard-working students from less privileged backgrounds in

Hong Kong and mainland China through the Future Stars
Programme-Upward Mobility Scholarship under the Bless Hong
Kong Campaign and Friends of Hope Education Fund.

In addition, in order to encourage sports development in Hong
Kong, the Group sponsored the Paul Y. & Kukri Mini Cup

of Nations 2016 tournament, organised by the Hong Kong
Rugby Union. About 20 teams of primary students of various
nationalities living in Hong Kong showed their enthusiasm on
the field. For these young players, the tournament represented a
valuable opportunity for mutual exchange.
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Employee Engagement in Community

The Group cooperates with a number of non-profit and
government organisations to hold various community activities
every year, extending the reach of social service to people with
different needs.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, staff and their family
members’ participations of our hotel development business

has joined the'2016 Walk For a Million” in Macau and the
event raised over MOP16 million and the funds will be used for
medical and health service, e|o|er|y service, community service,
etc.. In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2017, the
volunteer team of our construction business partnered with the
Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council to organise elderly visits
in Lam Tei, Tuen Mun before the Mid-Autumn Festival, and
co-organised a MicroForests Workshop with the Hans Andersen
Club for children from Lamma Island.
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We have joined the "2016 Walk For a Million” in Macau
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Volunteer team regularly visited the elderly in Lam Tei, Tuen Mun
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DIRECTORS REPORT
EERHS

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of The 13 Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates, joint
ventures and joint operations as at 31 March 2017 are set out in

note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group's business performance
during the reporting period, as well as the principal risks and
uncertainties and future prospects of the Group are set out in
the Chief Executive Officer's Report of the annual report, the
discussions thereof form part of this Directors’ Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group understands the importance of sound environmental
management practices and sustainable business operations.
The Group has in place environmental policy and is committed
to minimise adverse impact that its operations may have on
the environment. The Group has implemented a number of
environment-friendly measures such as installation of LED
lighting and adoption of electronic internal administrative
processes fo replace the use of paper.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

During the year ended 31 March 2017, as far as the Company
is aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The sustainable development of the Group depends on the
supports and efforts of all parties concerned inc|uc|ing our
customers, supp|iers and contractors, por’ricu|c1r|y the efforts
and contribution of all our staffs. Accordingly, our senior
management has kept good communication, promptly
exchanged ideas and shared business updates with them when
appropriate.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
103 of the annual report and in the accompanying notes to the

consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 March 2017, the five largest customers

and the single largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 61% and 33% of the revenue of the Group,
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group during the year was less than 30%
of the purchases of the Group.

A director and/or his associates, within the meaning of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) have an interest of less than 0.0001% in shares
of one of the five |0rges’r customers of the Group for the year

ended 31 March 2017.

Save as disclosed obove, as far as the directors are aware, none
of the direcfors, their close associates, within the meaning of the
Listing Rules, or those shareholders which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital
have an interest in any of the five largest customers of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currenﬂy maintains a variety of credit facilities to
meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2017,
the Group's total bank and other borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$3,948,354,000 with approximately
HK$888,070,000 repayable within one year and
approximately HK$3,060,284,000 repayable more than
one year but not exceeding five years. In addition, the Group
also has outstanding convertible bonds with face value of
HK$2,218,542,350 and liability component as at 31 March
2017 of approximately HK$576,707,000. The convertible
bonds mature in February 2025. Cash, bank balances and
deposits as at 31 March 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$376,676,000. The Group's total debts to total assets ratio
was approximately 0.3 as at 31 March 2017.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group spent approximately
HK$227,406,000 on property, plant and equipment and
deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
for the purpose of expanding its business.

In addition, the Group spent approximately HK$1,578,947,000
for the hotel under development erected on the Cotai Strip of
Macau.

Details of these and other movements in the hotel under
development, property, plant and equipment, deposits paid
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments of the Group during the year are set out
in notes 14, 15 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 34 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option schemes and details of
movements in the share options of the Company and Falloncroft
Investments Limited ("Falloncroft”) during the year are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2017 comprised the contributed
surplus of approximately HK$35,497,000.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors

Stephen Hung (Joint Chairman)

Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Joint Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman)
Walter Craig Power (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive directors

James Chiu, OBE, JP
Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP
lain Ferguson Bruce

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company's
Bye-laws, Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr. and

Mr Walter Craig Power will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All retiring directors, being eligible,

will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term of
approximately three years, and they are subject to retirement by

rotation under the Company’s Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BEERKRG. HARMRESZESERLXE

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,

RIB-—LFZA=1—H, ARAEFAREBTH
ABRARBHERERER (E&ERESRAEKRD
(TEE S RAE D) BXVER) 2. BRI M R EZ
PRERBESLNEGASESEBRFERARTE
SRR %R, SREETRAIC LHREES
ETRHFR 52 FER] (MRESPR) MASTHNER
NENEEBMZ AR EOARNT

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFQ")), as recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

"Model Code") in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Name of director

Long position

Number of
shares of the
Company held

P AR
BRI E

RAR T BRI AR R 7 2

Number of

underlying shares Total

(in respect of number of

the share options shares and Approximate

percentage of

(unlisted equity underlying
derivatives)) of the

Company held

AR EBRRE
GEEMRAITETLR)
HRRN#E

shares of the shareholding

of the Company

RN
BRiE
BBt

Company held

i /N
17 K A28
RIHEH

Stephen Hung Beneficial owner Long position 5 12,807,500 (Note 1) 12,807,500 1.39%
pavidisi EREBA e i)

Stephen Hung Interest of spouse Long position - 180,000 (Note 4) 180,000 0.02%
pavidisi FofB Lt e (P 5E4)

Peter Lee Beneficial owner Long position 5,796,600 12,807,500. (Note 1) 18,604,100 2.02%
Coker Jr EREBA "a (BrEf)

Lau Ko Yuen, Beneficial owner Long position - 12,807,500 (Note 1) 12,607,500 1.39%
Tom EREBA P~ (k&£

ZBR

Walter Craig Beneficial owner Long position = 12,807,500 (Note 1) 12,807,500 1.39%
Power EREEA 55 (B &£

James Chiu Beneficial owner Long position - 1,176,000 (Notes 2 & 3) 1,176,000 0.13%
ficRi= ERFEBA e (M5t R%3)

Lee Chack Fan Beneficial owner Long position = 1,176,000 (Notes 2 & 3) 1,176,000 0.13%
e EREBA " (T 5E2R3)

lain Ferguson Beneficial owner Long position 81,7 1,176,000 (Note 2 & 3) 1,257,711 0.14%
Bruce EREBA e (f5E23)

BEL

Francis Beneficial owner Long position = 1,176,000 (Notes 2 & 3) 1,176,000 0.13%
Goutenmacher  B##EA A 9= (P aEoR23)

Chan Kok Chung,  Beneficial owner Long position - 816,000 (Note 3) 816,000 0.09%
Johnny EREBA e (B5£3)

BRER
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EENRM. ERRNRESCERKXE ()

DIRECTORS INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

Interests in shares and under|ying shares of the Company

(Continued)
Notes:

1. 3,600,000 share options were granted to Mr Stephen
Hung, Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom,
Mr Walter Craig Power on 12 July 2013 under the share
option scheme of the Company adopted on 7 September
2005 (the "2005 Share Option Scheme”) and entitle

each of them to subscribe for shares of the Company upon

exercise at an exercise price of HK$6.80 per share. The

share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third on 12

July 2013, as to a further one-third upon topping out of

the hotel under development on the Cotai Strip of Macau

and as to the final one-third upon opening of the hotel

under development on the Cotai Strip of Macau. The share

options are exercisable from the dates on which the share
options are vested until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).
9,207,500 share options were granted to Mr Stephen
Hung, Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom,
Mr Walter Craig Power on 18 September 2015 under the

share option scheme of the Company adopted on 11 August

2015 (the "2015 Share Option Scheme”) and entitle each
of them to subscribe for shares of the Company upon
exercise at an exercise price of HK$3.00 per share. The
share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third on 18

September 2016, as to a further one-third on 18 September

2017 and as to the final one-third on 18 September 2018.

The share options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting

dates until 17 September 2019 (both dates inclusive).

2. 360,000 share options were granted to Ir James Chiu,
Professor Lee Chack Fan, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce and

Mr Francis Goutenmacher on 12 July 2013 under the 2005
Share Option Scheme and entitle each of them to subscribe

for shares of the Company upon exercise at an exercise

price of HK$6.80 per share. The share options shall vest in

3 tranches, as to one-third on 12 July 2013, as to a further

one-third upon topping out of the hotel under development

on the Cotai Strip of Macau and as to the final one-third

upon opening of the hotel under development on the Cotai
Strip of Macau. The share options are exercisable from the
dates on which the share options are vested until 11 July 2017

(both dates inclusive).
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

Interests in shares and under|ying shares of the Company
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

3. 816,000 share options were granted to Ir James Chiu,
Professor Lee Chack Fan, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce,
Mr Francis Goutenmacher and Mr Chan Kok Chung,
Johnny on 18 September 2015 under the 2015 Share
Option Scheme and entitle each of them to subscribe for
shares of the Company upon exercise at an exercise price
of HK$3.00 per share. The share options shall vest in 3
tranches, as to one-third on 18 September 2016, as to
a further one-third on 18 September 2017 and as to the
final one-third on 18 September 2018. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates until 17
September 2019 (both dates inclusive).

4. 180,000 share options were granted to Ms Deborah
Alejandra Valdez Perez, an advisor of the Company and
the spouse of Mr Stephen Hung, on 15 March 2016 under
the 2015 Share Option Scheme and entitle her to subscribe
for shares of the Company upon exercise at an exercise
price of HK$3.00 per share. The share options shall vest
in 3 tranches, as to one-third on 18 September 2016, as to
a further one-third on 18 September 2017 and as to the
final one-third on 18 September 2018. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates until 17
September 2019 (both dates inclusive).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

(i) 2005 Share option scheme

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on
7 September 2005 (the "2005 Share Option Scheme”)

expired on 7 September 2015. Details of movements in the

share options of the Company granted under the 2005
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March
2017 are as follows:

BARMDHERE LB

—EERFBERESE

ARBNZEEBAFNA CARMWBRESE (T
SELFERESE)), —EEOFEREEIE
\ZE-AFNACHEmR BE_S—tF=A
T+ HIEFEARARE ST FERESE
RECEREEBEHFHOT

Number of shares of the Company to be

issued upon exercise of the share options

IREERIEETERALNESHITROBE

Closing
price of the
Company's
shares
Granted Lapsed Exercise | immediately
Outstanding during the during Outstanding  Jprice per before date
Name of grantee | Date of grant at 1.4.2016 year the year at 31.3.2017 share of grant | Exercise period
N\ZE—RE RIE—tHF SEEH
mE—H =B=+—H BR |BERALRE
AR EHAH HATE | FARE | FAKRH HATE | THE | ROKHE 1718
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors Z3
Stephen Hung 12.7.2013 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
HKE “E—=Fth+H HE
Peter Lee Coker Jr.  12.7.2013 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
—E-HFtA+CH L2l
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom  12.7.2013 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
ABER “E—=FtA+"H FryaE
Walter Craig Power 12.7.2013 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
—g-=#tA+-q B
James Chiu 12.7.2013 360,000 - 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
IR —EF—=FtA+=H gz
Lee Chack Fan 12.7.2013 360,000 - 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
ES ) “E—=FtA+CH FiE
lain Ferguson Bruce  12.7.2013 360,000 - 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
izt —E-HtA+CH liEal
Francis 12.7.2013 360,000 - 360,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
Goutenmacher “E-=FtA+ZH iEa)
Sub-total 15,840,000 - 15,840,000
/NG
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BARMDIERELZHE (8)
DEBENTURES (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share option scheme (Continued) () —=SSHFERESE (8)

Number of shares of the Company to be

issued upon exercise of the share options

RBREETERANBRETRNEE

Closing

price of the

Company's

Shares

Granted Lapsed Exercise immediately

Outstanding | during the during Outstanding  Jprice per before date

Name of grantee | Date of grant at 1.4.2016 year the year at 31.3.2017 share of grant | Exercise period
RIE—"F = L
mE—H SR |RERALQE

SN G2 B8 HATE | EARE | ERRY AT TEE | BRHKHE 17155
HK$ HK$
AT BT

Employees (In aggregate) 8 (551)

12.7.2013 3,600,000 = = 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 Note 1
“E—-—FtA+ZH FER1
19.7.0013 400,000 - - 400,000 6.80 645 Note 2
“E—=Ft/A+TH (ED)
12.7.2013 900,000 - - 900,000 6.80 645 Note 3
“E—=FtA+=H a3
12.7.9013 1,160,000 - (150,000) 1,010,000 6.80 6.45 Note 4
“E—=FtA+=H Bista
12.7.2013 1,150,000 = 5 1,150,000 6.80 6.45 Note 5
“E—=FtA+ZH Fff5Es
19.7.0013 460,000 - - 460,000 6.80 6.45 Note 6
“E-=FtA+IH 5t
19.7.9013 138,000 - - 138,000 6.80 6.45 19.7.2014 to
5 =FtB+=H 11.7.2017
—5uF
tB+IHE
—E—tF
tB+—H
30.9.2013 688,000 - - 688,000 6.90 6.89 Note 7
“E—=FhA=+H WiEE7
1510.2013 289,000 = > 289,000 810 793 Note &
“E—=F1+A+AH fsEs
18.7.2014 299,000 - - 299,000 6.80 5.98 Note 9
ZE-MEEF+/\H Tfiz+o
16.4.2015 401,000 - - 401,000 6.80 287 Note 10
“E-HFEA+AH F5t10

Sub-total 9,415,000 - (150,000) 9,265,000

NG
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR ARG REES 2 ZH (18)
DEBENTURES (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share option scheme (Continued) () —=SSHFERESE (8)

Number of shares of the Company to be

issued upon exercise of the share options

RBREETERANBRETRNEE

Granted Lapsed
Outstanding | during the during Outstanding  Jprice per
Name of grantee | Date of grant at 1.4.2016 year the year at 31.3.2017

i
MA—H

SN G2 B8 HATE | EARE | ERRY AT 17158

HK$

AT

Other Participants (In aggregate) Eft1 2 & (§51)

Closing
price of the
Company's

shares
immediately
before date

of grant
L
BEARIALE
RRABITE
HK$

BT

Exercise period

1718

19.7.0013 1,150,000 - - 1,150,000 6.80 6.45 Note 3
“E=FtEA+CZH fi5E3
19.7.2013 450,000 - - 450,000 6.80 645 Note 4
“E—=FtA+ZH BiEE4
12.7.2013 260,000 - - 260,000 6.80 6.45 Note 11
“E=FtA+H BN
28.3.2014 112,000 - - 112,000 8592 8.97 Note 12
—E-mE=ZA"t+/\H FiEH2

Sub-total 1,972,000 . = 1,972,000

INEt

27,227,000 27,077,000
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ERGHE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) 2005 Share option scheme (Continued)
Notes:

1.

The share options shall vest in 3 ’rronches, as to one-third
on 12 July 2013, as to a further one-third upon topping
out of the hotel under development on the Cotai Strip
of Macau and as to the final one-third upon opening

of the hotel under development on the Cotai Strip of
Macau. The share options are exercisable from the
dates on which the share options are vested until 11 July
2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third
on 12 July 2014, as to a further one-third on 12 July 2015
and as to the final one-third on 12 July 2016. The share
options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 8 tranches, as to 10%,
15%, 15%, 15%, 10%, 10%, 15% and 10% on 31 May 2013,
31 August 2013, 30 September 2013, 1 April 2014, 30
September 2014, 31 January 2016, 31 March 2016

and 31 December 2016, respectively, subject to the
fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The share options
are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on which
certain vesting conditions are fu|fi||ec|, but in any event,
exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 7 tranches, as to 15%,
15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15% and 10% on 31 August 2013,

1 April 2014, 31 December 2014, 31 March 2015,

31 January 2016, 31 March 2016 and 31 December
2016, respectively, subject to fulfilment of certain
vesting conditions. The share options are exercisable

for 18 months from the dates on which certain vesting
conditions are Fu|fi||eo|, but in any event, exercisable until
11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 4 tranches, as to 25%,
25%, 25% and 25% on 31 August 2013, 1 April 2014, 31
August 2014 and 31 January 2016, respectively, subject
to fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The share
options are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but in any
event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to 30%,
30% and 40% on 31 May 2013, 31 December 2014
and 31 March 2016, respectively, subject to fulfilment
of certain vesting conditions. The share options are
exercisable for 18 months from the dates on which
certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but in any event,
exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).
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DIRECTORS REPORT
ERGHE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) 2005 Share option scheme (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

7.

The share options shall vest in 3 fronches, as to one-third
on 30 September 2014, as to a further one-third on 30
September 2015 and as to the final one-third on 30
September 2016. The share options are exercisable from
the aforesaid vesting dates until 29 September 2017
(both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third
on 15 October 2014, as to a further one-third on 15
October 2015 and as to the final one-third on 15
October 2016. The share options are exercisable from
the aforesaid vesting dates until 14 October 2017 (both

dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 ’rronches, as to one-third
on 18 July 2015, as to a further one-third on 18 July 2016
and as to the final one-third on 18 July 2017. The share
options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 17 July 2018 (both dates inclusive).

. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third

on 16 April 2016, as to a further one-third on 16 April
2017 and as to the final one-third on 16 April 2018. The
share options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting

dates until 15 April 2019 (both dates inclusive).

. The share options shall vest in 2 tranches, as to 75%

and 25% on 15 January 2014 and 31 December 2015,
respectively, subject to fulfilment of certain vesting
conditions. The share options are exercisable for

18 months from the dates on which certain vesting
conditions are Fu|ﬁ||eo|, but in any events, exercisable
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third
on 28 March 2015, as to a further one-third on 28
March 2016 and as to the final one-third on 28 March
2017. The share options are exercisable from the
aforesaid vesting dates until 27 March 2018 (both dates

inclusive).

No share options of the Company granted under the 2005

Share Option Scheme were exercised or cancelled during

the year.

Particulars of the 2005 Share Option Scheme are set out in
note 35(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
EEYHE

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BARGCREERE CLZH (18

DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) 2015 Share option scheme (i) ZS—AFERETE
On 11 August 2015, the Company adopted a new share ARNBINIISE—AFN\A+—HFWERESE
option scheme (the "2015 Share Option Scheme”). Details ZE—hFERESE). #E2"F—t5=8
of movements in the share options of the Company gronfed — T HIEFEARNEIRE_S—HFERETS
under the 2015 Share Option Scheme during the year BB RS e SEIF T -

ended 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Number of shares of the Company to be

issued upon exercise of the share options

REEREETERENERBETZROBE

Closing

price of the

Company's

shares

Exercise immediately

Outstanding Granted Outstanding price before date

Name of grantee Date of grant at1.4.2016 during the year at 31.3.2017 per share of grant Exercise period
RoB—AE St SRR
mE—H BEARIALE]
AT LESFENE BRITHE RRADIRTE
HK$ HK$
T BT

Directors and their spouses Z 58 N HL LB

Stephen Hung 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - 9,207,500 3.00 298 Note 1
KB “E-AFNA+N\RB L
Peter Lee Coker Jr. 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - 9,207,500 3.00 2.8 Note 1
“E-REAB+\H hgEd
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - 9,207,500 3.00 2.98 Note 1
2BE “E-AFNA+N\RB By
Walter Craig Power 18.9.2015 9,207,500 - 9,207,500 3.00 298 Note 1
“E-REAB+\H (il
James Chiu 18.9.2015 816,000 - 816,000 3.00 2.28 Note 1
R “E-RFAA+TNR BiEE
Lee Chack Fan 18.9.2015 816,000 - 816,000 3.00 298 Note 1
Zlss5 “E-RFARTNH LS
lain Ferguson Bruce 18.9.2015 816,000 = 816,000 3.00 298 Note 1
mEtL “E-HFNATN\H L
Francis Goutenmacher  18.9.2015 816,000 - 816,000 3.00 2.928 Note 1
“E-HFARTNH BiEh
Chan Kok Chung, 18.9.2015 816,000 - 816,000 3.00 298 Note 1
Johnny —=-RFNA+/N\H FiEH
&R
Deborah Alejandra 15.3.2016 180,000 - 180,000 3.00 2.08 Note 1
Valdez Perez (spouse  —F—/"E=H+HH =)
of Stephen Hung)
CHK B EC(®)
Sub-total 41,090,000 - 41,090,000
NGt
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ESTWS

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR ARG REESE 2 ZH (18)
DEBENTURES (Continued)
(i) 2015 Share option scheme (Continued) (i) —S—RAFERESE (8)

Number of shares of the Company to be

issued upon exercise of the share options

REEREETERELNERETZROBE

Closing
price of the
Company's
shares
Exercise immediately
Outstanding Granted Outstanding price before date
Name of grantee Date of grant at1.4.2016 during the year at 31.3.2017 per share of grant Exercise period
RIF—RE Q== ST
MA—H BHEARIALE]
ESTIN <= R B8 HARITE EARITE BRITHE RRADIRTE
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Employees (In aggregate) 1B & (&351)

18.9.2015 19,200,000 - 19,200,000 3.00 298 Note 1
“E-AFNA+N\R FEh
15.3.2016 875,000 - 875,000 3.00 2.08 Note 1
“ENFE=F+HH (Gl
8.9.2016 - 2,100,000 2,100,000 3142 316 Note 2
“EENANE L]

Sub-total 20,075,000 2,100,000 22,175,000

it

Other participants (In aggregate) EL {2 8 (55T)
18.9.2015 1,290,000 - 1,290,000 3.00 298 Note 1
“E-RFNARTNH BiEh

Sub-total 1,290,000 - 1,290,000

INEH

62,455,000 2,100,000 | 64,555,000
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) 2015 Share option scheme (Continued)
Notes:

1. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third
on 18 September 2016, as to a further one-third on 18
September 2017 and as to the final one-third on 18
September 2018. The share options are exercisable from
the aforesaid vesting dates until 17 September 2019
(both dates inclusive).

2. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one
third on 8 September 2017, as to a further one-third on
8 September 2018 and as to the final one-third on 8
September 2019. The share options are exercisable from
the aforesaid vesting dates until 7 September 2020
(both dates inclusive).

No share options of the Company granted under the 2015
Share Option Scheme were lapsed, exercised or cancelled
during the year.

Particulars of the 2015 Share Option Scheme are set out in
note 35(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

(iii) Share award scheme

This scheme, which was adopted by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows the Company to make bonus
payments to eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) by way of
the Company’s shares acquired by and held through an
independent trustee until fulfilment of specified conditions
before vesting.

A total of 1,537,500 shares were vested during the year.

None of the directors of the Company were awarded any of
the Company’s shares under this share award scheme during
the year or as at 31 March 2017.

Particulars of the share award scheme of the Company
are set out in note 36(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

BARNDNERE L (]

(i) —F—AFBERETS (8
P&t -

. BRESIZHMEER — 0 —<BRER_F—N
FART/N\BFB, ZN=n—<BRER_F
—tEFNBT/\BRE, BER=7—ZBRER

“E\FABtN\HRB. BRESRREE
BECAEE"_S-NFNATCHEE (2
BEMX) Pl F17E,

2 BREN-HEE, —/H—<BEREN _=—t
FNANOHRBE, BN =D BRENR_S
—N\ENBN\BRE, 8% =-9P—vBRERC
E-NFNLEN\BHEB. BERESERBERS
ZEtiff:EEﬂﬁtEﬁﬁﬂ@%E%ﬁ
xK) Al FAT1H,

FN, BEARFRE _F-LFRRESEED
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CE—AFERENEIFRINREHBERERW G
35(a)(ii)o

(iii) B0 2 Eh5TE
K VERIEBARFNANBHENEEIEE £
RABEERAL (BEAEEZRE. BEF B
. A RARIEAN) UAR TZ&@W%K&%T
i, ERMFE— 2B USSEABANEE
EIEENBBIRIERS L.

FEREERE S 1,537,500 8 110
FENIR_E—LF=—F=+—H, HELRNTE
ERBUILRG ER T EER TR ALN B R,

RRB R EZRFTRFBHNIRE M B IRERMEE
36(a)o
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EERHS

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(iv) Share financing plan

This plan, which was adopted by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows eligible persons (including
employees, directors, consultants, advisers and agents of
the Group) to borrow funds from the Company or from a
company within the Group to acquire new or old shares

of the Company on a non-recourse basis with the subject
shares pledged to the Company as security subject always
to connected transaction and other relevant provisions under
the Listing Rules.

None of the directors of the Company acquired any of the
Company's shares under this share financing plan during the
year or as at 31 March 2017.

(v) Share option scheme of Falloncroft

On 5 February 2013, prior to the completion of the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Falloncroft
(as described in a circular of the Company dated 5 January
2013), Falloncroft adopted a share option scheme and
granted options that would, for a subscription and capital
contribution, in cash, of up to HK$600,000,000,

entitle Chief Wise Limited ("Chief Wise"), an affiliate of

Mr Stephen Hung (joint chairman and the executive director
of the Company), to subscribe for 600,000,000 number
of the shares of Falloncroft. Chief Wise may assign these
options to the management of Falloncroft as it sees fit.

Holders of the options subscribing for shares of Falloncroft,
on exercise of the options, have the right to require the
Company to purchase their respective holdings of the shares
of Falloncroft in exchange for an allotment and issue of new
ordinary shares of the Company.

Particulars of the share option scheme of Falloncroft are set
out in note 35(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the directors, chief executives or their spouse or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of
the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

BARNDNEET 2ZHE (B
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BRANFIIRBEEN, FARBNEEARBAE, REA
EFEESMERET I ERLH, USEARBDEFAE
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KA+ N\BZ F L EREBBARNEES, TERF
RITREERIZEER.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

None of the directors of the Company are interested in any
businesses apart from the Group's businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group during the year or as at 31 March 2017.

DIRECTORS MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 23 September 2016, the Company and ITC Properties
Holdings Group Limited, a subsidiary of ITC Properties Group
Limited ("ITC Properties’, together with its subsidiaries, the
“ITC Properties Group”) entered into a new business services
agreement (the "ITCP Business Services Agreement”) for the
period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 with the annual
cap amount of HK$120 million. ITC Properties is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The entering into of the ITCP
Business Services Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of these were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 23 September 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group entered info
the following transactions with a subsidiary of ITC Properties

and entities jointly controlled by the ITC Properties Group:

EFENBHR R R BE

FRIN-_FB—EF=A=1+—H, BREEBEHIN,
ARBBEREAERXBERNBEBNRF A E
BAHFEEESD, BEEE TER.

EENEARS. THERGNZERER

ARBEZEZFAERARNANETAMBLREANAFERE
BREARTAREEIICERR . T RGHNTHE
B S E AR,

HHERAER S
RIBE—FRFENA - +=H, XLFMITC Properties
Holdings Group Limited (Bt I EE BB RN B) (MEHEH
El, EREWBLE, cRIMEFmESE)) <HBR
B)) Al LT EF R B (ITCPEHERBE HaE)) , F5
H_S—RNEFMA—HE_SF—t&E=F=+—H4A
1k, FE FR&%EE4120,000,0005 70, BRFHIETHA
REIZFERR, B ETHRAIEL4AZE, STIITCPER
ARFE HE B AL B FHERER 7. AREFIEHRNA
NEIHMAA _E—ARNEFNLA - +=Hz &,

HE_E—tF-"FS=+—HILEFERN, KEHEMEBEEF
i o — BT B N B) N Bt A 5 B (B0 B 85T
TR S

Name of party Nature of transactions Amount
R %8 ®%8
HK$'000
FHET
Keen Step Corporation Limited ("Keen Step”) Construction works charged by the Group 16,952
= CESYEYNEIN (= 23)) FEEWNENIIZE
Fortress Jet International Limited, Pine Cheer Limited and Construction works charged by the Group 9,585
Sino Able Investments Limited (collectively referred to as AREBWEEKW LIRS
“JVs of the ITC Properties Group”)
FERFEIFEHFE/NE]. Pine Cheer Limited 2Sino Able
Investments Limited (58 MEHHEEE v SE P ])
26,537
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Keen Step and JVs of the ITC Properties Group are associates,
within the meaning of the Listing Rules, of ITC Properties, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews

of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

The auditor of the Company has reported his conclusion on
these procedures to the board of directors of the Company.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected

transactions as set out above have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinory and usual course of the business of the

Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(i) according to the relevant agreement governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

FrBRER 7 (8)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO

As at 31 March 2017, so far as is known to the directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the substantial shareholders/other persons in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company

Long
position/
short position/

lending pool
we/
wB/
I 4v)

Name of shareholder

RERBHE

Michael Lerch Interest of controlled  Long position
corporation (Note 1) 55}
NS
1R (HiEE)

Long position
e

Tiger Trust Interest of controlled

corporation (Note 1)
REEFEEZ
s ()

Evolution Capital
Management, LLC
("Evolution”)

Global Allocation Fund
("Global Allocation”)

Interest of controlled
corporation (Note 1)
RE2EGER
Tz (M5

Beneficial owner

BERHEA

Long position
"B

Long position
"B

RIBE S M ERAIEI36MREF B B L MATEE sk £
ERRHMALTZERZR KR

RIB-—LFZA=1—0H, BARBEERERTH
ANBFIH, RIEESNEHRDBEBGRFELANT
R TBRE S HMATRARE 2N R
R BESOARINT

(o) EERRNARB D MABRERND Z L

Number of | Total number
underlying shares of shares |  Approximate
Number of (unlisted equity | and underlying | percentage of
shares of the derivatives) of shares of the |  shareholding
Company held | the Company held | Company held |of the Company
FRSALNEIER | FARARHE EARRE
FREFALNE] | GELTRA | RO RIERH i
ROBE | TEIE) A RiriEs | BHESL
- 338,628,459 338,628,459 36.77%
- 338,628,459 338,628,459 36.77%
- 338,628,459 338,628,459 36.77%
- 338,628,459 338,628,459 36.77%
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RIBE S M ERAIEI36MREF B B L MATEE sk £
ERRHMATZERR KR (18)

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO
(Continued)

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and

(o) TERENARBRM MABRR M < (1)

underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Name of shareholder

RERBHE

Capacity

5%

Long
position/

short position/

lending pool
we/
wB/
IR 4v)

Number of
shares of the
Company held

ZiE SR /N
RH#BE

Number of
underlying shares
(unlisted equity
derivatives) of

the Company held
[Riksz YNGILE L
Bty GE LA
fTETE) 88

Total number
of shares

and underlying
shares of the
Company held
ST /NG

B in e AE
R RS

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

of the Company
(F: /NG
i

BHBE L

Sean Hung Interest of controlled Long position 892,477,999 88,235,294 170,713,293 18.54%
‘;#f%m% corporation Q?E
(Notes 2 & 3)
REREGEE
2% (MEtok3)
S Hung Limited Interest of controlled Long position 892,477,999 88,235,294 170,713,293 18.54%
corporation =
(Notes 2 & 3)
REEHEE <
sk (Mistes3)
| Hung Limited Interest of controlled Long position 892,477,999 88,235,294 170,713,293 18.54%
corporation 59
(Notes 2 & 3)
MR EGIEE
R (fFEE2ke3)
Chief Wise Beneficial owner Long position - 88,235,294 88,235,294 9.58%
(Note 2) 55=)
Etes T DN(ED)
Pride Wisdom Group Beneficial owner Long position 892,477,999 = 892,477,999 8.96%
Limited (Note 3) "Ee
("Pride Wisdom") EREE A (53)
("Pride Wisdom)
Omega Advisors, Inc.  Investment manager Long position 131,774,576 23,664,122 155,438,698 16.88%
RERIE 55
Omega Overseas Beneficial owner Long position 38,086,806 16,564,886 54,651,692 5.93%
Partners, Ltd. (Note 4) I5-)
("Omega Overseas’) ERHE A (54
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RIBE S M ERAIEI36MREF B B L MATEE sk £
ERRHMATZERR KR (18)

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO
(Continued)

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and

(o) FERRNRAL TR RAERRMD 2L (18)
underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Long

Number of

underlying shares

Total number
of shares

Approximate

position/ Number of (unlisted equity | and underlying | percentage of
short position/ shares of the derivatives) of shares of the |  shareholding
Name of shareholder | Capacity lending pool | Company held | the Company held | Company held |of the Company
we/ AL EER | FTREARLE HARE
#B/ | FRARE |RB GELETRA | RAKXIERH Rt
BRER T S a] & A ROEE | TEIR) #E RriEE | BB
Chan Kwok Keung, Interest of controlled Long position 101,985,600 = 146,985,600 15.96%
Charles ("Dr Chan") corporation (Note 5) He
BBl (MRiE L)) RREGEE
G ED)
Beneficial owner Long position - 45,000,000
EREBA "E
Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse Long position 101,985,600 45,000,000 146,985,600 15.96%
("Ms Ng") (Note 5) [55=
hE (Mazt)) BB (fEks)
ITC Properties Interest of controlled Long position 101,985,600 - 101,985,600 11.07%
B corporation (Note 5) e
PARIERE
P G
ITC Properties Interest of controlled Long position 101,985,600 = 101,985,600 11.07%
Management Group  corporation (Note 5) He
Limited ('ITC Properties A5 #2745 E
Management”) ZKE (HIEES)
Advance Tech Limited  Beneficial owner Long position 101,985,600 - 101,985,600 11.07%
("Advance Tech”) (Note 5) He
BLEGRANE EREE AN (HEs5)
(TRl ])
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL BIEESNPERAENRMEEEC B LM £
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN ERE T HMA LT BRRKE (E)

THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO

(Continued)

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and (o) TEREMNANE G RIBREKRM 2R ((E)

underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Number of | Total number

Long underlying shares of shares |  Approximate
position/ Number of (unlisted equity | and underlying | percentage of
short position/ shares of the derivatives) of shares of the |  shareholding
Name of shareholder | Capacity lending pool | Company held | the Company held | Company held |of the Company
e/ FRSALNEIER | FARARE EARRE
wB/ | FRARE (RO GELHRA | ROKREMH i
R 5 & H ARG RH&E | TEIE)HE RiriEs | BESL
Deutsche Bank Beneficial owner/ Long position 117,624,757 240,000 117,864,757 12.80%
Aktiengesellschaft Person having a 5=
("Deutsche Bank") security infterest
(MEEELRT) in shares/Custodian
corporation/

opproved |enc|ing

agent

ERBEN/FE

RinERIER

AL/ FERE/

o] EMRAIE
Deutsche Bank Beneficial owner Short position - 10,406,000 10,406,000 113%
EELRT ERHEN )
Deutsche Bank Custodian corporation/  Lending pool 106,068,257 = 106,068,257 11.52%
EEERT approved lending agent A& AR

SEENRE R

BRAIE
Janus Capital Investment manager Long position 109,727,800 - 109,727,800 11.92%
Management LLC SEIR Sy
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO
(Continued)

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. Global Allocation was wholly owned by Evolution, which
was in turn wholly owned by Tiger Trust. Mr Michael
Lerch has 100% interest in Tiger Trust. Evolution,

Tiger Trust and Mr Michael Lerch were deemed to be
interested in the 338,628,459 shares to be issued by the
Company pursuant to conversion of convertible bonds.

2. Chief Wise was jointly owned by S Hung Limited and
| Hung Limited, which were wholly owned by Mr Sean
Hung. S Hung Limited, | Hung Limited and Mr Sean
Hung were deemed to be interested in the 88,235,294
shares to be issued by the Company by way of
exchange for shares in Falloncroft.

3. Pride Wisdom was jointly owned by S Hung Limited
and | Hung Limited, which were wholly owned by
Mr Sean Hung. S Hung Limited and | Hung Limited
and Mr Sean Hung were deemed to be interested in the

shares of the Company held by Pride Wisdom.

4. Omega Advisors, Inc. has direct interest in Omega
Overseas, Omega Capital Investors, L.P., Omega
Capital Partners, L.P., Omega Equity Investors, L.P.,
Beta Equities Inc., GS & Co Profit Sharing Master Trust,
VMT ll, LLC and Omega Charitable Partnership, L.P.
(collectively, the "Omega Group”). Omega Advisors
Inc. was deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by the Omega Group.

5. Advance Tech was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
ITC Properties Management which was in turn a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Properties. Dr Chan
and Ms Ng (the spouse of Dr Chan) indirectly held
approximately 26.22% and 23.73% interest in issued
shares of ITC Properties respectively. ITC Properties
Management, ITC Properties, Ms Ng and Dr Chan
were deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Advance Tech.

RiFES M GRAIFEI6RFE B LMz =
ERRHMAT SRR (8)

(o) EERRNARBRMN RABRRG 2 it (1)

MEE -

Global AllocationFHEvolution = E#£75, TEvolution
FiTiger Trust2 E#EHo Michael Lerch/tE#EH
Tiger Trust 100% £ 450 Evolution. Tiger Trustz
Michael Lerch/t 41958 2 R AN BRI AT R i E
SR T 8517 2 338,628,459F% B 17 T HE A 12
o

Chief WiseFHS Hung Limited 2| Hung Limited £ [F)
WA, MzmBErsBERrT &S, S
Hung Limited. | Hung Limited Nz 71278 50 2 154 46
ARARRB)E B Falloncroft &7 M i 8% F 2517
288,235,294 8% A I B 2o

Pride WisdomHS Hung Limited 2| Hung Limited +£[7]
WA, MzmBErsBERET &S, S
Hung Limited. | Hung Limited Nz 7278 50 A 1545 46
#312 Pride WisdomPfi 55 2 A2 5 i 10 TR #E S 1B 7o

Omega Adbvisors, Inc./20Omega Overseas. Omega
Capital Investors, L.P.. Omega Capital Partners, L.P..
Omega Equity Investors, L.P.. Beta Equities Inc.«

GS & Co Profit Sharing Master Trust. VMT I, LLCA?
Omega Charitable Partnership, L.P. (578 [Omegafe
B ) PR BEHE i, Omega Advisors Inc #7872
R Omegafs B AT #5522 AR B R0 AR A S,

RIE AITC Properties ManagementZ = & [ & A
&), MITC Properties Management 2 {25 2 1~ &
BB E. MBLRAELE RBL R
B A B MEDSZITRN 7 51#926.22% K%
93.73%o |TC Properties Management. &1
B RRIE IO AR ENERR T 2 AR B R
0 RS .
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO
(Continued)

(b) Interests of other persons in shares and underlying shares
of the Company

Name of person Capacity

HW A L2 St
FIL Limited

INSREG N 2

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the Company
has not been notified of any interests or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group's refirement benefit schemes is set out
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provides that directors of the
Company shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits

of the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain in the
execution of their duty in their respective offices, provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
illful negligence, illful default, fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance during the year and as at the date of this

report.

Interest of controlled corporation

RIRE S M ERAIEI36MRF B B CMATEE S £
ERRHMA LT ZRRER KR (5)

(b) Eftt AL RARBIRAD MABRARR D 2 AR

Approximate percentage

Number of shares of shareholding of
the Company
HAREIRIE
ZBBED

of the Company held

Long position

5 A ARARMEE

Long position 51,250,500 5.57%
Sy
R EXPTiREEN, RZE—tF=H=+—H, BE

o A BRAB336IR AN B AT E ZE L MPTECER,
AREMEEN S B EMATHERLE RN KR
Betn i R B B

RIREFFTEY
AEERNENETE 2 BRI EIINRE M B iRkER M
39

EEGH
FAMES U FEEFA LR S BREMEREL DX
B BERATHER,

EHEFFREIRX

RRBZRNEHRAIRE, ARDESHAEHAER
TRHREEERAS IR ETZ 2 —VIFFaA A X
H. BiR. BENES, BRUEARTEEKETTE
SmE, HEETERNEIHERR. HEKE.
HEF A BB B R E I EE,

FARRARE D, ARECERFREBZEFNER
BEEERR.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive righfs under the
Company's Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2017 and has
adopted most of the recommended best practices stated therein.

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 33 to 54
of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of
this report as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations of approximately HK$519,000.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 28 June 2017, a subsidiary of the Company entered into

sale and purchase agreements in respect of the disposal of its
51.76% interests in Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ("PYE"),
an indirect subsidiary of the Company, to ITC Properties and

Mr Chan Fut Yan, the deputy chairman and executive director
of PYE and also the managing director and executive director of
ITC Properties, for a total consideration of HK$300,000,000.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 June 2017.

BREEE

ARB RN ERIRIS A RE ARG P B A B R B
IS, MEARBREFREAAHRERRESHE
.

©eEER

BE_S—tFE=-RA=1T—HLEE, 2R882E8TL
MARBN B+ R EE X E B TRIZABE TGRS 7T
EHEMAED RN EZRES R

CEEARESCEINAFREIIEEEME,

R RNRFTFRE
BEBEAREFABZ B ERAELRBDESEAN, AR
BRBE_E—tLF=RB=T—HLFERBEARS
H—E#F BRI RzRELARITRE.

BE. HENBRIANE LHES

W, ARTHEEFHRNBELADHERE. LEWEM
RRBZ EHES

BR
REERAFEAFHKI519,000/8 702 HE K EH MR,

BEHRER

RZF—LFSNATTNAR, ARF—EHBAERL
ERERXEBERENR (REREX), ARE B
(YN F]) 51.76% 4 TR HE KRB RLLE (RER
FBIRERNTES, ARFTAREHMEZESRKE
BERUTES FTUEEWZ, BANEREET.

N

EREMES, F2REARSHR S —tF A
“+/\BZ R,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. Information on the work of the Audit Committee
and its composition are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of the annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2017 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, who will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Stephen Hung
Joint Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of

The 13 Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 103 to
256, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of

Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibihﬁes in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BH+=Z&£BEERAFLERR
(FEREZMRILBERAE)

$&%%ﬁ8%ﬁﬁ%#%wgﬁwﬁ+5$§ﬁ@
NE (TERE)) RENBAE MBIEEE) BFEE
MHWRE, ZERAMBPRERUENR-_F—tF= E

=+ BN EMBRRREBEXALFENRGE
é% ﬁ BRHME2EWRRE. FERRBFRN
RaRenER, UNREMBRENNE, SBEE
Eﬁﬁﬁm%o

ARZEENTERR, FEoVBREXCERBEEEEIAE
(IEBGFNLE) B BBV BREER (EEHM
BHREER)) BEEMATHRE SEER-_FT—t4F
ZR=T—HZREMBRRURBEZE LFEZR
EMBERBELNHGERSRE, LEEREBLIEM
B IRTE Z AR,

EREER

FBEMTIRBE B G NN S BN GBS ER

(TEBEER) E1TE K. EXFERT, AREE
TREEEAZEETHRE N B E AR M
BWRZARENEE) —BE— T, RESES
BN ER IEXGEEERTRL (ISFR) , AEBENTT
B E5E, TEEETABRTHEMBERSEE. &
REEDITIRE, AREEMTIRESHNERERETER
BEMASABENTHERERREHER
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss

of HK$40,224,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017 and

as of that date, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by HK$300,941,000. In addition, the Group

had capital commitments contracted for but not provided in

the consolidated financial statements of HK$369,009,000 as
disclosed in the note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
The directors of the Company are considering and negotiating

a number of financing measures to improve the Group's liquidity
and financial position and consider that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to pay its
financial obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable
future upon successfully implementing these measures. However,
these conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 1
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not

modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a who|e, and in Forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

R ECEERACERTRERR

HIRREUBREWE, ETRE SBEER
BHE_ES—tHF-A=-t—HLEFEELFBEY
40,224,000 T e E L2 H EEERHBEBHRE
EE300,941,0008 7T, b4, BEREELHRESHMFBR
40PN EC BTN EBRANFEEV B RERE
EHAHIE369,009,000E L, ENBESIEESREIWIE
AR B EEELNE BEEZRIES NEEIR
o, WERARMINERZSEmE, SEESEREHN
EELENENEESBESFTE NN 0] BiF #2828
BEMT. A, ZFEGURGEMBERENEE
MEIEXRE, FESEATHEERRJEY S£E#EE
HECE ZBETE A E AR, AEEN T E R b=
BREXEEER,

REREE

RIBAREEMTHF XN, BREBRFRSALEE
TEENAHENR Y BRETREZNF R, £
FETEERGEMTRENMILENERB SRR
F518, MASHLEEEEREXRER. REREL
EHEBC ERTEERR —EIFMNZ EIBIN, AR EHED
TR T EEEER/RS P HRERER,
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RREZEE AT EERPRIES A

Impairment assessment of hotel under development

BRI 2 BRI

We identified the impairment assessment of hotel under Our procedures in relation to assessing appropriateness of
development as a key audit matter due to the significance of the the impairment assessment of the hotel under development
balance to the consolidated financial statements as a whole, due to included:

the management judgemenfs involved in the determination of the ARHEMTH EEERBEZRETHEES B
recoverable amounts of the hotel under deve|opmenf based on the 7’]{%%@1{5 .

anticipated cash flow generated by these assets.

AN TS RTEE 2R EFEHER A BREME +  Evaluating the reasonableness of the value in use of the

B, JTHREEASGEFROMBREEEMREHEE, hotel under development by comparing the valuation

AR SEEES B IR nEERETB/S W technique and the key assumptions adopted by the

Cl&ERETEEEB Y, management to enﬁfy-specific information and market
data or research. In particular, we assessed, on a sample

Hotel under development of the Group is located in Macau basis, the accuracy of the information underpinning the

and carried at HK$7,718 million as at 31 March 2017, which key assumptions including average hotel room rate,

represents 57% of the Group's total assets. The Group's hotel occupancy rate, net win of gaming tables, growth rate

under development is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated of hotel and gaming business, and discount rate for hotel

impairment. As set out in notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial under development by comparing to the market data

statements, the management reviews the carrying amounts of from comparable hotel and gaming operations;

the hotel under development to determine whether there is any - BBREREEEMRBCHERTDNEERHE

indication that the assets have suffered impairment loss at the end ERNEERNMIGEIRNM IR ETBE

of the reporting period. If any such indicator exists, the recoverable [EEHAEEEEAIE, TEZ, AT S

amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent 18 B P] HBIE N ISR 555 v 5 BURETT LR,

of the impairment loss (if any). The management of the Group WS T B2 REBAEEECEE Y, JIEFY

considered that the material uncertainty related to going concern /@E%%\ J\TEZ{E\ /ﬁ%?fﬁfﬁf@}ﬁj\ /EE&Tﬁ;F?%f%

may give rise fo an impairment of the hotel under deve|opmen‘r, I8 EXR N EEEMHEANIEEK

and determined the recoverable amount of the hotel under

development by estimating the value in use of these assets, which +  Assessing the total budget costs for the hotel under

are based on a number of key assumptions, including average hotel development by reviewing the budgets prepared

room rate, occupancy rate, net win of gaming tables, growth rate by the management and making enquiries with the

and discount rate for the hotel under development. No impairment management for the basis of estimations adopted in the

loss was recognised by the Group as at the year-end date. budgets with reference to the latest development plan

ATE—tHFE=ZA=+—H, EBEEERNEMIZEETH and progress up to date;

[ER7718(8ETT, 16 EEEREETR. BSEEZ® - EEEREEERECAEAAEEESHER

BRIBERNAREERRTRESR. SRS HBER PR et ER N T BB RTE NEFE

KMEE3IRRAPT, M|EHR, EEEERERTASEZ E, ftmaHa# R aS 2 BEMAEE ;

REE, UWEREECEEMNREBRZSEERTRE
BB, WBFLEA LR R, JifEst&EE I WEE5E + Comparing fhecdjusfmenfs made bymanogemenfin

BT RERBE WhE) vi2E, EEEEEER A, A future costs to comp|eﬁon to current market data with
FEKERBCBEATNEEREAGEEREETAIELIR reference to the latest construction contracts or agreements
BE, TEBHIZEEECREEUBEERETBEE L or quotation with suppliers, on a sample basis; and
BlcleEE, HIBBEZEFERIEL, ERIETHEE - MB2ERFEEGNIHHRIVEEER . RE,
EEE. AFR BiaMi. EEREECIBERKILR HEBEBY AR T LA CHEEER TS
K, RFEFEH, BXEEWHEEGDRESS, IBETIE ; &

Performing sensitivity analysis on the key inputs to
evaluate the magnitude of their impacts on the value of
hotel under development.
HEZ@HABBETEREDN, LA
RPAEBEREZEE,
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RREZEE AT EERPRIES A

Recoverability of trade debtors and retention receivables

E 5 BN RA R fE W RIE]Z < R [o] 1%

We identified recoverability of trade debtors and retention Our procedures in relation to recoverability of trade debtors
receivables as a key audit matter due to the significance of the and refention receivables included:

balance to the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and AIZEENTTH B 5 IEW RN FE W R E € 2 pT (a4
there is risk that the amount recorded is not fu||y recoverable. ZIEFROE

Trade debtors and retention receivables of the Group carried at

HK$1,076 million as at 31 March 2017, which represents 8% of the +  Evaluating the accuracy of the aging report of trade
Group's total assets. debtors and retention receivables, by checking to the
AIZEENTTHS B 5 FEW BRI FE R E < 2 BT Uk B4 37 construction contracts for the terms of payment, including
AREEZEE, DHREESGRREOMBREM G2 the milestone events sﬁpu|afed in the contracts or the
BHEEERA, BB eBrn—CEREWE, © actual progress of the work performed, ona samp|e basis;
“E—tF=RA=1+—H, EEECEZERBKENKE - BBHEBREERE %Zﬁﬁ1#,@%A%ﬂ
H&ﬁ%lliﬁ%%ﬂ)76fﬁ%%7z, i BEEEBEES%. e EREMSFMBET IIECERER, tmat

(E1 %WW%%&WW@I%%%%iZE%@,

Agreed payment terms are sometimes extended particularly when

unforeseen delays occur in construction. The Group may be exposed +  Making enquiry with management on their assessment
to risk of default in respect of trade and retention receivables. on the recoverability of trade receivables, including
FEERTETARERE, THEEITREHENIERY understanding the trade debtors’ credit quality and their
AESA, EEEHO AT E ZIEWRINENRE ST past payment hisfory and Focusing on |ong—qgeo| trade
Kz B, receivables for which no provision had been made; and

MEEETHNEHE S BURERIZ JWEEZ
J%;@%Tﬁs%ﬁ%%%ib&“iﬁﬁﬁ
BEMECE, WEERPRETEFLERZE
PR RRR 5 2

Evaluating management’s assessment on the
recoverability of trade debtors with significant balances
past due but not impaired by examining the subsequent
settlement from these individual debtors on a sample
basis, or for those individual debtors without any
subsequent settlement, analysing the Group's business
relationship with them and their credit profile.
BRHRRE &S E W RREREREER,
W HEEREAMEE 2@ EWERMS, &
wotr EEREENECERNNEZEELRR,
HMHEEEENERMEERMECERLEEE
7 FEW ARz PR [a] 1% 2 5.
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Key audit matter

RREZEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AREBEMTEERPOERES A

Recogpnition of revenue and profit from construction contracts and amounts due from/to customers for contract works

HEERZRENRASRFIREL TR G TENIR
We identified recognition of revenue and profit from construction
contracts and amounts due from/to customers for contract works
as a key audit matter as it is quantitatively significant to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and judgements are required in the determination of

the total outcome of the construction contracts and stage of
completion. It is also one of the key performance indicators of the
Group.

FREENTR SR EE S ORA R GT R, ER
G IEFEHN SERERER, NERNESENGFS
BRELEMEERSEBER, BRNBEERESK 2R
KRN THEREAITEHE, T8 SEEIZEVER
<o

The accounting policy for construction contracts is disclosed in note
3 to the consolidated financial statements. Revenue and profit from
construction contracts and costs are recognised when the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated re|iob|y, by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activities at the end of the
reporting period, measured based on the proportion that contract
revenue for work performed to date relative to the estimated

total contract revenue. Variations in contract work and claims are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably
and its receipt is considered probable.
BEGHZESTBRNFEMHBREMEITIRE. ME
ROV ZBRAIERMT UGS, RIRERSHRALEH
RAETHBE SHEBN IR S IR 2 To A PEER 77 LAFESR.
BEReNTHERNZEERRALLABIT L2
MNEGFTERWABEZ LLAF R, GNITECEERF
KT ECHSB|OIEEM T U E, BESRARTRILCE
i & 28 R RM A BRo

As disclosed in note 6 and note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised segment revenue and segment
profit from construction contracts of HK$6,124 million and HK$90
million for the year ended 31 March 2017 and amounts due from/
to customers for contract work of HK$1,002 million and HK$864
million, respectively as at year ended 31 March 2017.

WIS H WKMo Tt E, SEBENE
FIE—TLFA=T—HUIFEEIERSKHDEWA
R BRI 73 Bl)61.2412 78 7T K29,0008 BT, MEE_F
—tFE=A=+—BHLFERK ENEREGNIENE
73 H0.02(F 75 7T N28. 641578 TTo
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Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue and
profit from construction contracts and amounts due from/to
customers for contract works included:
RIZEETHESRERSOBATRRF R FEWK,FER
ERENIRENBZERFIE !

+  Assessing the forecast revenue and forecast costs by
making enquiry with the quantity surveyors who are
responsible for the preparation of the budgets of
construction contracts on their basis of estimation of the
budgets, including but not limited to the variations and
claims that included in the budget, and inspecting the
under|ying contracts and documents with the emp|oyer of
contract works and subcontractors or supp|iers;
BERESRBEEMGTRMEERGNEE 2L
FHRI 2B ETRRWARTBAMAE, 2HEE
RERIIARE BB RRE, TREGHIIE
B E KA Sl (& 2 ABRE BRI R ST

Evaluating the reasonableness of their estimated profit
margins by taking into account the profit margins
of similar projects on a sample basis, to identify and
investigate if there is any significant difference;

- REBFREEMNFRBEEGEEATIERES
SENEMNTHREERRERERER

Assessing the reasonableness of the stage of completion
by re-computing the percentage of completion on cost
basis with reference to the total cost incurred in proportion
to the total forecast costs, and compare that with the
percentage of completion on revenue basis with reference
to the total progress billings recognised in proportion to
the total forecast revenue, on a somp|e bosis, to idenfify
and investigate if there is any significant difference; and
BEEE B EFTELERRAEBRANAZLHE
Mt B lA LT aD, SREBEEMH
B LIREETBREGTEARABRZ L AB T2
WK T A ETEE, fEmimikat e T
EEREASE, UHRTLHRERABEEMERE
il N

+  Checking the accuracy of the amounts due from/to
customers for contract works by agreeing the progress
billing received and actual costs incurred for the year
ended 31 March 2017 to the payment certificates/
invoices, on a scmp|e basis.
BERHBE_F-—tF=_A=T—HLFEE
W TEERRREELERERAETNE HE,
TR RE R BN ER e TR %
HEMES
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance COHClUSiOH fhereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
cmd, in doing SO, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears

to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that

give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary fo enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

Lth &k}
ERFEERHWHMENAES T, HMENIEEMN
FHROEH, EANIEREY BRI LZBENRS

\

AREETHFE Y BREXFHNERTENEEME
kL MAREET e it ERZEXR AT E

i amo

AR TERGEH BREMS, AUBENTHE
EAREEMER, EtMEBEMEHNERRRGHT
BENAZBEITESRERTEENERFEEAT
7, MFFEERERRD, MERZEEMTERE
Lﬁmlﬁwﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁi,ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
TRBRESAEMEE, B, ARBEMTERELRS

EXNEEEMFEMBRRARENSE

ENFEFREEREEEY ﬁ%“Aﬁ%méﬁﬁﬁ
BERENRBERERAMIREENR, REEEMAL
%&%hﬁmﬁAW$ﬁﬁ,&%$#Eﬁﬁ@% %
BRXBOENEREANEETE, UEXFFREMHRE
NEFERNRGFNIERMERBYE R TERERD

RGO BREKE, EFREENE SEERE
RERE), TRERHEKEENER WER) -
FRIFESRHT SERBEIEILEE, kAT
BHMERATHME SRIRRKALGHEKERSER
EEtE.

EEEEEREE ERENMFRE MR
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material h(,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve co||usion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

100

R ERFEMBRERARENEE

ARBENTTERACEEENERG M BIRREEM
ETEFEANRFFNERMETHEREREDL, 38
HEBEARBENTE RSO RSE, WIRB—I1/\—
FARELNEEFEOKNRTE, ZALEBRERE,
TMEEMMA R, AZBEIITERA AR SBIREBER
HMATBSNAREIAET. EETBSRE XX
7=, WERBEEETERETHNER TR RERRE
RERTFENERERRN, SR ERN P EMFFiER
ELE, RENNBETSERNER TREERAER
IR O M BREMFLVICERER, RHRESERER
BeRaho

ERBEBEFEAETEERET, AREBENTTE
REEYE, REFRIBEEE. AT !

A K EHE RN G SE R ME B G M Bk T
HEEREREOAVER. BT RRITEAEFLUE
HEFAR, UREBTTEMNBERNEES, F
AERBENTERAERE. BARIEFRIRES R HRR.
w5, ERER. EBRENIEENREZNIBR,
Bl It oK BB 32 3R R R R B BBV B K S5 3R RN BY FEL B
SRARERIFRERMERBEARERERNBI AR,

THRREFHRREINEERE, URHEENEE
F, I FEREY SEXEENNEZENUREXRE
Ro

ST AR B TR B (Et B B 5t
BN A,
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content

of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disc|osures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

HESRBHECEGSTERI R 2 FHGR,
WARBPTE IV EST /RS, HERSHFARSEEY
ERERNERTEENE, RmoEEsYs S5
BERREKERNELEERER. MAKHBAMTR
%ff%ﬁ?%i& RIB 0 BAERZBENIR S TR
BEAEIEFRGMBRETERKE. WG
W%TE,%%Jﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁ%oﬁﬁaﬁﬁ%
MmIENBERHANRE B HILEESRE &R,
R, ARFEAFBRAEER SEEFEARNE

KL,

SHEREMBRENERER I BBRAS,
@%ﬁ"éﬂ,uﬁﬁ M mREREDTE RIRAE
RHMEE,

B EEEANEBNETABNMBERERT
RBEENETRRE, WEHKRS W%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%o
ABENTTEEEEEFHN A B, BEENNT. &
REEITRABERERAREHE T,

AR BENTREEEN (AT aiE) BstostalgE. &
BT NEREAHITEE, AFRIFLEAEENTT
EEHERETHERIFA E M E AR K,

ARZEENTTIMEERBFHER, EHAKEEMTER
SREATITIEMEREN, WRESEEVERS
BERASGREARBETEI MR ERERKEME
ﬁ;%&ﬁ%%@ﬁﬁ%w%%%
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From the matters communicated with those chorged with WHEEEEEENEEF, AEENITETCHAEBR
governance, we determine those matters that were of most éﬁ?%%ﬁ% E’\]%Eﬂ'% %%EE@ %IE\, ﬁ'ﬁ*%ﬁ%%ﬁ%*ﬁ
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements F1H, AREENTAEREAMR S PIELRZESEE, RIE
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. ERIER AT AN EZEER, ERKEERD
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or BRT, MEBEEREAKYMTHREPEBRRESIES
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, RN EBEEEREBHEENLMHIL, AIAKEENTTAE
in ex’rreme|y rare circumstances, we determine that a matter T\ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁb%%%ﬁ%lﬁo

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resu|’ring in the HEAB I REMRENETZEEZEaRARERE,
independent auditor’s report is Li Man Kei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu EE A=A EETENTT
Certified Public Accountants HZEGETAD
Hong Kong, 28 June 2017 5%, _E—tHFB+/\H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
e Em

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_ZE—tHF=-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
TFHET T

Revenue WA 5 6,127,109 6,811,519
Cost of sales PREMA (5,880,358) (6,613,685)
Gross profit =1 246,75 197,834
Other income Hazs 7 5,547 8,617
Administrative and other expenses 1T E A R EL MBS, (284,028) (406,342)
Finance costs AL & AA 8 (8,609) (8,91)
Gain on disposal of an associate HERE N B & A 5,247 -
Share of results of associates b UNETES (2167) (1,531)
Share of results of joint ventures BEEE xRS 4,808 1
Loss before tax [RigaIE51E (32,451) (210,332)
Income tax expense PSR & A 10 (7,773) (22,484)
Loss for the year FEBIE n (40,224) (2392,816)
e i e (ST (8548 1B

attributable to:

Owners of the Company RNEHEB N (44,559) (197,361)

Non-controlling interests FEIERGHERS 4,335 (35,455)

(40,224) (239,816)

Loss per share SRES 13

Basic (HK cents) AR (B (4.9) (21.7)

Diluted (HK cents) #5E 5L (4.9) (21.7)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

iroBEm E M E SR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_ZE—tHF=-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tE —E N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH7T TH7T
Loss for the year FER5E (40,224) (232,816)
Other comprehensive expense FESHATEES
for the year:
[tems that may be reclassified P st el 3
: HEAJREE BT Ao EHE .
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchcnge'difference's arising fr'om T@%/@’f’*%%}%iil&ﬁ%%ﬁ (6,314) (6,518)
translation of foreign operations
Share of translation reserve of A i NI
an associate and joint ventures S ED R (4,830) (3,580)
(11,144) (10,098)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FELHEPBSZIEEE (51,368) (242,914)
Total comprehensive expense T A BrE -
: 3 fa%s .
for the year attributable to: LCRSEE SR
Owners of the Company P /NCIEZ= AN (50,327) (202,519)
Non-controlling interests JEIRR R (1,041) (40,395)
(51,368) (242,914)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
NN R

At 31 March 2017
ATE—tEFE=A=+—H

plelv
—B—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IEREEE
Hotel under development WREIEE 14 7,718,317 6,139,370
Property, plant and equipment YN I N 15 135,261 176,745
Deposits paid f isition of ty, g < BEM A ER R
eposits pai or' acquisition of property 154 ﬁﬁlr@%/\ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂ{ﬁz 5 336,547 196,654
p|cm’r and equipment [N
Deposits for investments W& & 16 110,000 110,000
Prepaid land lease payments FEN T HIFEEFUE 17 1,507,712 1,612,303
Goodwill Bk 18 61,646 61,646
Other intangible assets HMmr&EE 19 7,627 7,627
Interests in associates N s 20 = 22,867
Interests in joint ventures BEPERER 21 87,640 87,8600
9,964,750 8,345,012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2017
ATE—tEFE=A=+—H

NN YR NI

2017 2016
“EF—tF “ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR FE
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepaid land lease payments A IR EFUE 17 104,591 104,591
Amounts due from customers for e A _
ERE RGN IIENA 22 1,001,835 851,251
contract works
Inventories e = 23 38,937 -
Trade and other debtors, deposits and H 5 A eI RIS,
= o 24 1,683,891 1,752,666
prepayments 1 NTENFUE
Amounts due from associates NI E ] 25 15,863 18,700
Amounts due from joint ventures FEUR & (D ENTE 25 158,423 391,926
ioi i | A N
Amounts due .fr?m joint o!oerohons/o’rher e S E%i%/\: LEW o5 118,438 118,572
partners of joint operations HBH7Ia
A ts due f bsidiaries of P —A A%
mounts due from subsidiaries o FEW ::/%\}ix;ﬁ % 94,849 26,564
a shareholder M B BFRIE
Other loans receivable HihpEw &EF 97 35,542 48,000
Pledged bank deposits BRI 28 16,247 17,065
Short term bank deposits kRERER TR 28 36,876 458,388
Bank balances and cash RITIEER IR 28 393,553 483,859
3,559,045 4,201,582
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2017

\=B—tE=A=+—H

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amounts due to customers

NN YR NI

nEaRE

2017
“E—tF

HK$'000
TERT

2016
A
HK$'000
TR

FENEREHIIENIE 292 863,604 1,169,067
for contract works
Trade and other creditors B 5 N EMENTUE
and accrued expenses N EETRS. 2 B 27150 1629508
Amounts due to associates FENBE N B FUE 25 - 10,970
Amount due to a joint venture FE—RIEE (ZEIE 25 67 49
Amounts due to joint FETEEZER,/
operations/other partners BEEBEM 25 113,551 115,948
of joint operations BHAIA
A ' //§ Sr— _
mount due to a sub5|d|ory Fgﬁf“ %_H%%Z Bl 26 647 44]
of a shareholder BB ERIE
Loan from a subsidicry of —HRE—E
a shareholder BN EER 50 32,000 30,000
Taxation payable AN EE] 16,287 33,134
Bank and other —ENEHZ 3R1T
borrowings - due within one year N EMERR ! 888,070 o4
3,859,986 3,448,671
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) ASSETS &) (B1&) EEFRE (300,941) 752,91
TOTAL ASSETS LESS N -
REERREEE 9,663,809 9,097,923

CURRENT LIABILITIES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2017
R _E—TF=A=+—H

NSRS

2017 2016
—E—tF TEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHER
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREIBE
Bank and other — BB BT
borrowings - due after one year N EMERR ! 3,060,284 2,261,693
Convertible bonds ElREc g g 32 576,707 485,835
Obligation in exces of BHBEATRRLEE 20 6134 i
interests in associates
3,643,125 3,047,528
6,020,684 6,050,395
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAR Kl
Share capital iE%N 34 1,841,734 1,841,734
Reserves (G4 3,838,712 3,867,648
Equity attributable to PR — -
2 /NSIE 2SNy e 5,680,446 5,709,382
owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests Elssenli g e
BRI/ NS
Share option reserve of a subsidiary Egaggigég\;z 37,103 35,953
Share of net assets of subsidiaries BHENB AR FEE 303,135 305,060
340,238 341,013
TOTAL EQUITY RS 6,020,684 6,050,395
The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 256 were FNEI0IBE EFE 6 AT MR EREN B —TFN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on B+ N\BESE=SERERETIE, TR TIEERE
28 June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: BEERE .
Peter Lee Coker Jr. Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
=R
Joint Chairman (Executive Director) Deputy C;hoirmon (Executive Director)
BELE (BITEE) BIZ/E (BIITEE)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
R oM EN R

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BE_E—tF=A=T—HLEFE

Shares held

for share

Special

Share
VPY?m,Nm
kinaE
HK$ 00

T

Translafion
res
EREE
HK$§ 000

Refained

HKS 000

iR

reserve 0{ a
subsidiary

Share of
et assets of
subsidiories

Subfotal

HK§ 000

A1 April 2015 RIE-REMA-O 18473 2080474 (153761) 1794972 (54,818) 54,692 3978 21973 91369 5885907 30,168 31,741 401909 6,287,816
Exchange differences arising from & B EHEL 7
translotion of foreign operations R ERE 057 W) 40 e e
Shore of ranslafion reserve of on -~ HE—TEBENF R
associate and joint ventures AECFERHERE 6% 8280 =
Loss for the year EEEE (9736)  (19736]) (35455) (35455 (232816
%ﬂzwﬁwmﬂmth FEEERER 559 (9736)  (200509) B Uow) ()
Recognition of equiy-settled Hﬁ?g\zﬁﬂi :ﬁggﬁ
share-bosed payment expenses  EIRAHEE LR
of the share option scheme of RAERZANE w07 o7 o
the Company (Note 35(a)) % (W%SS(G))
Recognition of equity-settled Bz Falloncroft AR 12
share-bosed payment expenses 5T EILIRAGEN
oftheshare option scherme of R AE RV 131 e e e
Falloncroft (Note 35(o) Bt (53 ()
Recognition of equity-setfled [ ﬁﬁ%ﬁg@]
share-based payment expenses RARBEN
0{ ﬁ‘e Shum UWU(d SChEmE 0{ H&“ %%z{q%ﬂ: 5584 5’564 5’584
the Company (Note 36(a)) B (H5E36(a)
Shares vested under the share: RERAREHES
award scheme (Note 36(a)) BRA (HizE36(0) e (1249 106 e
D'\Y'\dends paid fo non-controling T (15,019) (15019) (15.019)
inferesfs
Rﬁﬁﬂxd$wwh EE-HEATRN (1532 (1539 Mo M2e)  (2799)
A3 Mach 2016 BIETR jum amomn () Ve @3 BB 83 w5 0SW) (0590 50930 B9 M50 OB 605035
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
R oM EN R

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BE_E—tF=A=T—HLEFE

Non—coﬂho”mg inferests

Share of
Speciol Shares held d et ossefs of
Converle |~ forshare subsidiori
Sh(ﬂ? TVUHS‘U?WH
Sub—!oto\
K000 | HKs000
TER TER
Exchange differences arising REEN
from fronslfion of SALIIEN (938) (938) (5376) (5376) (6314)
foreign operations EEVETER
Share of translation reserve o
‘ Bi-mRenaR
of on associote and AN B (4830 (4830) (4830)
foint ventures EEXERAR
(Loss) profitor he year £ (58) 57 (44559)  (445%9) 43% 435 (409%)
Total comprehensive .
xpns ot e FELARRAE (5,769) (44359)  (50377) (104) 004)  G13%Y)
=01 /\=
Recogntion of equity-settled ﬁx;ﬂﬁéﬂg?%@
‘2";*%:‘”5 pamer apes ERLEH 1876 1676 1816
of fhe share option scheme g ! ! !
of the Company (Note 35(a)) ?(%W%BES%J gﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Recognition of equity-seftled ﬁﬁgfﬁgr‘\‘c‘mﬂfﬁ%
share-based payment expenses iy /Q’/pf 1150 1150 1150
of the share opfion scheme of 725%2 ﬁ%ﬁﬁ ! ! !
Falloncroft (Note 35(s)) (WEHS(ED T
Recognition of equity-settled AL FRAREE
shcr@bavzd puymen? expenses u&ﬂiﬁgumﬁ
of the share aword scheme ARBATET 4 20 R
of the Company (Note 36(c)) (Mf3E36(0))
Shares vested under BERNEEHE
the shore awerd SRR 561 (5.566) % %
scheme (Note 36(al) (H5536())
Repayment of
s EFERRL T T R
(VON non~c0nfr0”mg
inferesfs
At 31 March 2017 RIE-LEZR=+-0 18473 2080474 (153767) 1794972 (46,755) 93,544 5980 16,347 (1539) (150,551) 5,680,446 37,03 303,135 340238 6,020,684
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
N Ay E S

Notes:
(i) The special reserve of the Group includes the following:

(a) a credit amount of HK$1,000,000 representing
the difference between the cost of acquisition of two
subsidiaries and the nominal amount of their share
capital at the date on which they were acquired by Paul
Y. Management Contracting Group Limited ("Paul
Y. Management Contracting”), a subsidiary of the
Company, before the reverse acquisition as mentioned
in note (b) below; and

(b) a debit amount of HK$154,767,000 representing
the reserve arising from the reverse acquisition of
Paul Y. Management Contracting and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Paul Y. Management
Contracting Group"), net of refund from ex-shareholder
of Paul Y. Management Contracting for the shortfall
in net asset value of Paul Y. Management Contracting
Group upon comp|eﬁon of the acquisition by the
Company from PY| Corporation Limited, the former
ultimate holding company, of the entire equity interest
in, and shareholders’ loan to Paul Y. Management
Contracting Group in January 2005.

(i) The other reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the redemption amount paid and the carrying
amount of the share of net assets attributable to the

non-controlling interest redeemed by Paul Y. Engineering

Group Limited ("PYE").
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
%ﬁ/\ ﬂ&uw%ﬁ%&

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tF=A=T—HLEFE

2017
—E=—t&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi FE%
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Loss before tax fRAQ 0 #5418 (32,451) (210,3392)
Adjustments for: oL NAIEB ETHRE
T oA m EAYr=S
Depreciation of property, plant and M. AR R 37.937 39,887
equipment ZINE
Release of prepaid land lease payments SEETA( T AR ERIE 575 575
Loss (goin) on disposo| of property, HEYZE. B HRE2 BB
3,369 (773)
plant and equipment (&#))
(= AL /N=
Gain on disposal of an associate ﬁ;wgﬂﬁﬁ Sy (5,247) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of SLIEWN— B E - —E
amount due from a subsidiary of a I 8 N B IBTERR 235 -
shareholder < RIBEE5E
Interest income IISUEas (5,547) (8,617)
Finance costs EIE=g5 %N 8,609 8,911
Share of results of associates G A NI S = 2,167 1,531
Share of results of joint ventures HEEEPEEE (4,808) M
LRG58 LR
Share-based payment expenses X??l;] %i 2 3,579 8,900
Operating cash flows before KRETEBEESEHFI 2
7,718 159,919
movements in working capital b A%f’&}ﬁﬁ M= ( )
Changes in amounts due from/to K:L&/@Lg)f' =0
_ 435,481 488,112
customers for contract works TEFIESES) ¢ ) ( )
Increase in inventories EFEEE (38,937) -
i =1 HMEW I
Decrease in trade and other debtors, E\:%/)S\Z/ \Tﬂlmi&ﬂ:: 101,511 892,078
deposits and prepayments 5] & N FENFUIER D
Decrease (increase) in amounts due FE L B 45 A B Z IR ) (B8 ) 1,708 (2,654)

from associates

Decrease in amounts due FE M 5 £ 2 20 TE /> 163,503 173,401

from joint ventures
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BE_S—tF=A=1+T—HLFE

Decrease in amounts due

%ﬁ/\ ﬂiuw%ﬁ%%

2017
—Et&

HK$'000
TET

20]6

HK$ OOO
FE

] e = s
from joint operations/other i SEXB AERBROBN 134 27,149
o . RIERD
partners of joint operations
Decrease in amounts due from P — 2 B MY B A B BB 1,480 16,166
subsidiaries of a shareholder
Increase (decrease) in trade and other 85 N EMEMAFIE
creditors and accrued expenses FESTEasZ 2 () 255,874 (614,744)
Decrease in amounts due to associates N —NEIE SN (959) (17,085)
Increase (decrease) in amount FE—BaEhERIE 18 (2,819)
due to a joint venture =n G '
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to ERNEEER/ 6%
joint operations/other partners of joint EFRHMEB L RUIE (2,397) 2,926
operations CRIA) 18710
Increase (decrease) in amount due to a BT —2RE —BWEL S FIE 164 (15,363)
subsidiary of a shareholder B2 Ca) '
. . KRB (AR KEE%
Cash from (used in) operations SEe 54,336 (188,976)
Overseas tax paid 27BN IRIE (24,585) (41,559)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RE (BAR) KEXE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZBERER 20731 (230.535)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
fﬁ/ﬁ\/\ ﬁmu@]%

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tF=A=T—HLEFE

2017 20]6
—B—t
HK$'000 HK$ OOO
FiH7 FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REX
Additions to hotel under development NEETAE (1,195,397) (3,192,758)
Additions to deposits paid for acquisition NEWEYE. B
204,795 87,701
of property, p|cmf and equipment B AN ( ) ( )
Advance of other loans receivable B EHMEKRENER (21,000) (55,000)
Additions to property, plant and equipment  IREBYIZE. B R E (16,809) (28,468)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABEHRITER (297) @)
Repayment of other loans receivable HEWETER 36,000 99,073
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMZ. WG
e 2,919 1,966
plant and equipment PSR
Interest received BUH B 2,847 43,716
Release of pledged bank deposits EEEIRIFRIT TR 204 28,529
Placement of short term bank deposits FEAGBRRITER - (501,371)
Deposits paid for investments HIREENET 2 - (110,000)
Advances to joint operations/other partners == %%%/Qﬁ%? _ (47,953)
of joint operations Hin B Em '
Release of short term bank deposi’rs BRSO IR T - 1,401,371
Repayment from joint operations/other é%%ﬁ/é%%% _ 91797
partners of joint operations HHBHEN '
NET CASH USED ININVESTING s P e PREr (1,396,328) (2,426,506)

ACTIVITIES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tF=A=1+—HILEFE

el

VI ﬁ/)lb@]%%

2017 2016
—FtF “EAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES E= ST
New bank and other borrowings raised FEIR1T R EMER 2,199,861 2,963,474
Loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder _g i;ﬁz ERLES 2,000 -
=¥
Repayment of bank and other borrowings  1E3E 817 & E (& FN (1,272,354) (1,527,255)
Interest paid [SXNES! (1m,286) (93,921)
Loan management fee and transaction ENEREEER
e A 28,7 9,135
costs paid RZ A (26,705) ( )
Repayment of-con‘fribu‘rions from B RERTE (884) B
non-controlling interests
Advances from joint operafions/ofher ﬁ%?ﬁz/ EER _ 47 953
partners of joint operations HB M '
Repayment to joint operations/other BEsE %fi/ _ (21.797)
partners of joint operations %fzﬁﬂ@%ﬁifﬂa—f '
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests {0 FEE GBS AR 2 - (15,019)
Redemption of shares of a subsidiary EEIEis i) = WNEIli el - (12,799)
Repayment of loan from a subsidiary BE—2REC—HE _ (7,000)
of a shareholder BB ZfER '
NET CASH FROM FINANCING SN N
REE W P8 , ,324,501
ACTIVITIES REMEZBHCRE PR 788,632 1,324,50
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH IR& NS EEIER
EQUIVALENTS W RER (577,545) (LI
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE y =, 90
RATE CHANGES ﬂ’#f&$ﬁ§ﬂz A= (3,873) 282
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HehEESEE
BROUGHT FORWARD 5 B &Hi oS Gl
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRRREFE
CARRIED FORWARD THE 5 > 360429 424
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
 E_E—tF=A=1T—HLFE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures
and joint operations are set out in note 47.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that
the Group incurred a net loss of HK$40,224,000 for

the year ended 31 March 2017 and as of that date, the
Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$300,941,000. In addition, the Group had capital
commitments contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements of HK$369,009,000,
the Group also had the capital expenditure authorised but
not contracted for regarding the hotel project amounted
to HK$581,833,000 as disclosed in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment of the Group's future liquidity and cash flows,

taking into account the following relevant matters:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

HE_E

—tFE=A=+—HLEFE

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

0

Likelihood of successful execution of the financing
plans

The Group has been actively considering and
negotiating with a number of commercial banks and
other financial institutions as well as certain shareholders
of the Company to secure certain new sources of
funding in the form of debt and/or equity. The Group
has received offers and indications of financing in excess
of its net current liabilities, the outstanding capital
commitments as at the reporting date and the capital
expenditure authorised but not contracted for. Based

on the current status of these negotiations, the directors
of the Company are confident the Group will secure
sufficient funds to support the Group's working capital
requirements for the next twelve months from the date
of approval these consolidated financial statements.

Likelihood of the opening of the Group's hotel in
Macau

Certain loan covenants of the Group's bank borrowing
of approximately HK$3,023 million outstanding as at 31
March 2017, which require the opening of the Group's
hotel in Macau to be no later than 31 July 2017 and alll
authorisations for the operation of hotel business will
be obtained. If in mid-July the Group anticipates that
the hotel cannot be opened according to the above
schedule, the directors of the Company will obtain an
extension of the opening date under this covenant. The
Group has successfully applied for an extension from
31 March 2017 to 31 July 2017, in mid-March 2017.
Therefore, the directors of the Company do not expect
the application of further extension will be withheld by
the relevant bank.

(i) Likelihood of successful extension for repayment of

outstanding borrowings

The Group is actively negotiating with the lender for
the extension of the maturity date in relation to a
borrowing of HK$300 million outstanding as at 31
March 2017 which falls due on 12 July 2017. Based on
the negotiations with the |ender, the directors of the
Company believe that the lender will approve extension
of the repayment date in stages up to a latest date of 1
April 2018, subject to progress made towards securing
the funding as described in (i) above.

117

RAFS R M EE

1L —RENKRRREZE (8

0

(i) &= R 1E7

RINAITREE T R FTREME

FEE-ERRERIT RSB HERTREME
REBLURAERNBRETRREBUERETHE
SRR, BAREBRSREABE. AEEE
BRERBEEZNNIET, TEENRE AR
BEFR. KMEEEFAENCEBERTNZ
EXRR. RBULEBCERL AREEEE
EO,K%I%TEEE“%uWﬁﬁﬁlF%
M BREEL TS AR T ERZE

N

B3 o
AEBRPVEERSZ FTeEM
FEEBR -FB—tF=—A=+—HRBRKRERR]T

FK%%%F%EZE?“* ZEE B E AN
ZEENEERAERRPFVAER —E—tF
TRA=1T—HiRABKEGKEBEEXBELAE
. Rt RARERESAERERRBU £
R xR, ARBEERFRFRRBICESE
ZHABHB. E-F2—tF=A%, AREMI
BER_E—CtEF-H=T—HWRE"F—L
FEA=T—H. Fill, AREAEEEH, B
IRIT TS EEERBERRFR.

R HARRIE IR 1R 2 AT AT 1%

m

FEBEEBREERNGEHR—FEN_F—C
F=ZHF=t—HEREESEMIEETZENR
ZBBE EI-E—CtELA+"H) . RERE
RAZEHE, B T%$m%,ﬁkkf“ B R
HEMRENHEERE _F—/\FMUHE—H,
%Eﬁ¥iYOE% NEINE & ER.

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
 E_E—tF=A=1T—HLFE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that, taking

into account the above-mentioned financing plans and
measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
for at least the next twelve months from the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has applied the following amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations

Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation

and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities:
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Applying the

Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012 - 2014
Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and

2. FERFEI MBI 2 EEHHREZEL (18)

AREE W ARIE BRIV LT EMRME B RERZHTE]

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

RIMER e BEFHREER !

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments' BB RS 2R ZEo5k LRI T B

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EBMHRSEL B BELEH
Customers and the related Uz ARz
Amendments' MERREET

HKFRS 16 Leases? EEMHEREELBEesr HE?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency 55 (BRYHREEE NEXS
Transactions and HEE)— 2EE20E NeFafs
Advance Consideration' HE

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and BB RS 2R F505R DURE1D 2
Measurement of (1EET) BN
Share-based Payment R D5
Transactions' NETE!

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 HEAMBREEELE45 KA EUBRELEL]
Financial Instruments (EET) Eant MR A K0 B
with HKFRS 4 Insurance —HIERE A
Contracts' HEZERF o5

e TE

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an

BB BI| S ERIZ105%
REBGFHERIZE285

KREEBHHE

P

HEELE M

Investor and its Associate (ﬂ%gﬂ ZEBELHE
or Joint Venture® AR A
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative* EESETAERIFBT7H (1B5]) ZEINE
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred EBSFHEREI5E (1B5]) RikBIREFE
Tax Assets for Unrealised T SRIR AERR
Losses* IB&EE
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment EAE 2T ER]E405% EHEBIGEYE

Amendments to HKFRSs

1 January 2018
1 January 2019
date to be determined

1 January 2017

Property!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016
Cycle’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017

E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial |iobi|iﬁes,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are as follows:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objecﬁve is to collect the contractual cash ﬂows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end

of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
se||ing financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes

in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only

dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

120

2. ERIFEIREETEEBMBRS

ZER (1)

EEMBRESENESREHMIE
BEUBRELENREFSIATHEHMEE. £ME
B —REPEHEACDBLFTEFERREHME
EZREZRK,

HEASEEREEMBREER B EERTE
mr

E BEBMBREERIFORELEAN <PTA SHER
TR EEHRBREBEMNANNFESTE, 5

E,&EEF%WW %ﬁimi%%&ﬁ%ﬁ

B BEHRERGNREAES B REER

& MEFBRBEZEHRE —&W%%"%%W

TERE RN AT 8, RENARRKESH

RenAhbEEMEECEBHRIPEE, Uk

BREN SRS E BIEE 2 RS RS
FENAEEXRECNNECEHTLE, —RKUE

RNFEFARMEEE DS RS INETE. FIE
HMEHRERREREGNRES T HBER
B N PEFT B, b5, BEBEEBHMHRSE %R
o5k, BREAFENIRHEZES, MEE@
2HBAZRRAKE WHFFHEEEE) L

%ZE@“@,AEHMWAEEKEEﬁMO

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments” (Continued)
in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have an impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial assets.
In addition, the expected credit loss model may result in
early provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred

in relation to the Group's financial assets measured at
amortised cost. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 "Revenue”, HKAS 11 "Construction
Contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled

in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,

the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:
Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract(s)
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract(s)
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017

E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furfhermore, extensive disclosures are

required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, however,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
financial effect until the Group performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on

the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by

a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
 E_E—tF=A=1T—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 "Leases” (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value

of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modification,
amongst others. For the classification of cash ﬂows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use while other operating lease payments as operating cash
flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation

to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be both presented as financing

COS|’1 HOWS.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues fo require a lessor to classify a lease either

as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group as lessee has
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$120,338,000 as disclosed in note 42. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
licbility in respect of all these leases unless they qualify

for low value or short-term leases upon the application of
HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not procficob|e
to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until

the directors of the Company complete a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
 E_E—tF=A=1T—HLFE
2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

2. FERFEI MBI 2 EEHHREZEL (18)

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 "Disclosure Initiative”

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Specifically, the amendments require the following changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes arising from
obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses;
(iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv)
changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application
permitted. The application of the amendments will result

in additional disclosures on the Group's financing activities,
specifically reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
for liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided
on application.

Other than that, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the financial performance
and position and/or the disclosures of the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
Oddiﬁon, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “"Share-based
Payment’, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases’, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair vo|ue, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets".

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
2 or 3 based

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements are cofegorised into Level 1,

measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement dofe;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has righfs, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, odjusfmen’rs are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution
of the relevant equity component, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or

loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value

of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control

is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition

for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, when
0pp|ic0b|e, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017

3.

E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair vc||ue,
except that:

deferred tax assets or |iobi|i’ries, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS

12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits”
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered info to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);
and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)

over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired

and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess

is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests” proportionate share

of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made

on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-conh’o”ing inferests are measured at their fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried

at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups

of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the

lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units). Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures

used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in
the associate or joint ven’rure), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised on|y to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of

the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediofe|y

in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is

acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate or a joint
venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposo| of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date

and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposo| of the associate or joint venture. In addition,

the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised

in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required

if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of

the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to

fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
 E_E—tF=A=1T—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from

the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to

the assets, and ob|igoﬁons for the |iobi|i’ries, re|oﬁng to the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in
relation to its interest in a joint operation:

its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
joinﬂy;

its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising

from the joint operation;

its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by

the joint operation; and

its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in joint operations (Continued)

The Group accounts for the assets, |ic|bi|iﬂes, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, |iobi|iﬁes, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale

or contribution of assefs), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase
of assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the
gains and losses until it resells those assets to a third party.

Property, p|cmf and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than hotel under
development are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
|osses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than hotel under
development less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful |ives, residual values and deprecioﬂon method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
 E_E—tF=A=1T—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Hotel under development

Properties in the course of construction for hotel operation
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
The relevant costs include acquisition costs, development
expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct
costs attributable to such properties. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Deprecioﬂon of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their infended use.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Prepaid land lease payments

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interest in land
are accounted for as operating leases and are stated initially
at cost and released over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. The released prepaid land lease payments in respect
of a parcel of land in Macau is capitalised into hotel under
development during the construction period and recognised
as expenses subsequent to the completion of the hotel

property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tF=A=1+—HILEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible
assets, measured as the difference between the net disposo||
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine

the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where

a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to

the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
In addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs

of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tF=A=T—HLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)

is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less cost of o|isposc1| (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period, measured based
on the proportion that contract revenue for work performed
to date relative to the estimated total contract revenue,
except where this would not be representative of the stage
of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
shown as amounts due from customers for contract works.
For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
|osses, the surp|us is shown as amounts due to customers for
contract works. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position, as a liability, as advance receipts from
customers. Amounts billed for work performed but not

yet paid by the customer are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under trade and other
debtors, deposits and prepayments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a firsf—in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as

described below.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the value of work certified during the year.

Development management, project management and
facilities and asset management services income are

recognised when services are provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is accrued on a time bosis, by reference

to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time

to get ready for their infended use or sale, are added to

the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as expenses or capitalised in contracts in progress or hotel
under development, where appropriate, when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for

the year. Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit before

tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to

the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profi’r nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,

and interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no |onger probob|e that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017

E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
|iobi|ify is settled or the asset is reo|isec|, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combinoﬂon, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised af the rates of exchanges prevailing on the

dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting

period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchcmge differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
licbilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on

initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating

the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or cliscoun’rs)
fhrough the expec’red life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017

E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (inc|uo|ing trade and other deb’rors, amounts
due from associates, joint ventures, joint operations/

other partners of joint operations and subsidiaries of a
shoreho|o|er, other loans receivob|e, p|eo|ged bank deposifs,
short term bank deposits and bank balances and cash)

are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
fhof, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debfors, assets that are assessed not to be impoired
individuo”y are, in oddiﬂon, assessed for impairment

on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment

for a portfolio of debtors could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit periods
ranging from 60 to 90 days and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on debtors.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a debtor is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, iF, ina
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profi* or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of

the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity

are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity

in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting alll
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Where the shares of the Company are acquired under the
share award schemes by the share award scheme trust,
the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presen’red as “shares held for share
award” and deducted from total equity.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounfs)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity components
Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
mainly the liability and conversion option components

are classified separately info respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds contain liability and equity components
(Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The difference

between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible

bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability component,

representing the conversion option for the holder to convert
the convertible bonds into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
bonds reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible bonds reserve will be released
to the retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the period of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
 E_E—tF=A=1T—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (inc|uding trade and other credifors,
amounts due fo associates, a joint venture, joint operations/
other partners of joint operations and a subsidiary of a
shareholder, loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder and
bank and other borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

the amount of ob|igo’rion under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee

period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asseft,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecogniﬁon of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of

the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees and advisers
providing similar services as employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the date of
grant is expensed or capitalised in hotel under development
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss or capitalised in hotel under development such that

the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve. For share
options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss or capitalised in hotel under development.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to directors, employees and advisers
providing similar services as employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.

Awarded shares granted to employees, consultants and
advisers providing similar services as employees

The fair value of service received, determined by reference
to the fair value of awarded shares granted at the date of
grant, is expensed or capitalised in hotel under development
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share award reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of the awarded shares that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss or capitalised in hotel under
development such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
award reserve.

When awarded shares are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share award reserve and the amount of the
relevant treasury shares (presented under the shares held for
share award scheme) will be transferred to retained profits
or capitalised in hotel under development.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not reodi|y
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

E_E—CF=R=+—HLEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

(a) Construction contracts
The Group recognises contract revenue and profit of a
construction contract according to the management’s
estimation of the total outcome of the project as well
as the percentage of completion of construction works.
Notwithstanding that management reviews and revises
the estimates of both contract revenue and costs for
the construction contract as the contract progresses,
the actual outcome of the contract in terms of its total
revenue and costs may be higher or lower than the
estimates and this will affect the revenue and profit
recognised.

(b) Trade debtors and retention held by customers
When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2017,
the carrying amounts of trade debtors and retention
held by customers are HK$598,527,000 (2016:
HK$596,062,000) and HK$477,365,000 (2016:
HK$622,825,000) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment, hotel under

-~

development and prepaid land lease payments

The Group assesses regularly whether property, plant
and equipment, hotel under development and prepaid
land lease payments have any indication of impairment
in accordance with its accounting policy. The Group
determines the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment, hotel under development and
prepaid land lease payments based on the estimation
of the economic benefits generated from these assets.
Management is confident that the carrying amount of
these items will be recovered in full based on the results
of assessment of the estimates of anticipated cash

flow generated by these assets. The situation will be
closely monitored by the Group, and adjustments for
impairment will be made in future periods in which there
is an indication of such adjustments are appropriate. As
at 31 March 2017, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment, hotel under development and
prepaid land lease payments are HK$135,261,000
(2016: HK$176,745,000), HK$7,718,317,000 (2016:
HK$6,139,370,000) and HK$1,612,303,000 (2016:
HK$1,716,894,000) respectively.

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 March 2017, a deferred tax asset has

been recognised in respect of unused tax losses of
HK$70,105,000 (2016: HK$77,502,000) in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the
remaining unused tax losses of HK$716,215,000 (2016:
HK$670,953,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams (see note 33). The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will

be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits generated are less or more than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of future taxable profifs estimation, a
material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax
asset may arise, which would be recognised in profit

or loss for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.
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For the yeor ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tF=A=T—HLEFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(e) Share-based payment expenses
The recognition of share-based payment expenses
requires the estimation of the number of options and
awards that will ultimately vest at the end of each
reporting period. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period is recognised in
profit or loss or capitalised in hotel under development
whenever a revision arises.

(f) Goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of goodwill is
HK$61,646,000 (2016: HK$61,646,000). Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note

18.

5. REVENUE

Revenue of the Group represents the total value of contract
work certified, the gross proceeds received and receivable
from deve|opmen’r management and project management
services in connection with contract work and income from

facilities and asset management services during the year
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HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Revenue from construction contracts BEASHWWA 6,123,924 6,795,908
Revenue from development management, BHREE BEEEMUN

project management and facilities and asset E&ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ&%ﬂ&)\ 3,185 15,611

management services
6,127,109 6,811,519
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
 E_E—tF=A=1T—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers,
is organised info divisions for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment focusing on
the types of services provided. Specifically, the Group's
reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8
"Operating Segments” are as follows:

Management - building construction and
contracting civil engineering

Property development - development management,
management project management

and facilities and asset

management services

Property investment - investment in properties
through investment in a

joint venture

Hotel development - hotel operation with ancillary

facilities

The Group had invested in an operating segment of the
hotel operation in Macau with provision of ancillary facilities
which are under deve|opment The remaining segments

are held under a major subsidiary of the Group, Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited ("PYE").

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3.

Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned or loss
incurred, by each reporfob|e and operating segment without
allocation of corporate income, central administrative costs,
finance costs and gain on disposal of an associate. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision makers
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

The assets of the Group are allocated to repor’rab|e and
operating segments except for p|eo|geo| bank deposi’rs, short
term bank deposifs, bank balances and cash and other

unallocated assets.

The liabilities of the Group are allocated to reportable and
operating segments except for certain bank borrowings and

other unallocated liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_ZE—tHF=-A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERL ()
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates PDERZ B2 BBETHIRIRTT i EWEN DY (e 1 F& 7] (22
or at terms determined and ogreed by both parties, where E7HE) IMERBENRE ZIEFE,
no market price was available.
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and UTAREBW A NREBIROHRE MIKEDEZ 5
results by reportable and operating segments. Mo
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BEE—tE=B=1+—HIEE

Property
Management | development Property Hotel Segment

contracting | management i development Eliminations | Consolidated

REEE | EE| MERE |RE BIE% : HiA e
HK$'000 | HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 | HK$'000
TER TET TER TER TER AT TER TET

SEGMENTREVENUE 9l A

External sles HHHE 6,193,924 3,185 - 607009 - 697109 - 6197009
Inter-segment sales N EHE 896,719 - - 86,719 - 896,719 (826,719) -
Segment revenue DEUWA 6,950,643 3,185 - 6,953,828 - 6,953,828 (826719) 6197109
Segment profit (loss) AEar (B8 195,81 (1,832) 5,265 18,714 - 18,714 (35,343) 93,371
Corporate income esy 5,547
Central administrative costs  FRATELALA (128,007)
Finance costs BEMAK (8,609)
Gain on disposal of an HERERT

associate &BH 24
Loss before tax e EE (32,451)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE_ZE—tF="B=1+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

6. DERER} (FE)

jfﬁ-o

At 31 March 2017

R-E—t&=RA=+—H

Property
Management | development Property Hotel Segment

contracting | management investment development total | Eliminations

REER |M=%EEE BIERE | DEEE Hi

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

e = wsn | wEm| TRl R
ASSETS B
Seqment assets NEBEE 3591360 90,612 85304 3607076 10084840  B37ON6  (636109)
Pledged bank deposits BEFRTED
Short term bank deposits 52 HIR1 TR
Bank balancesand cosh ~ SB{THEER IR E
Other undllocated assets ~ HAIADEERE
Consolidated assefs RREE
LIABILITIES &
Segment libilties NEaE 2,800,534 5,976 5 2806505 4738178 7544703 (707,559)
Bank borrowings BITER
Other unallocated liabiliies  EfIRDELEE
Consolidated liabilities GREE
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Consolidated

HK$'000

S

13,074,007

16,247

36,876

323,553

73112

13,523,795

6,837,144

578,070

87,897
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tF=A=T—HLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DERER} (FE)
The following is an analysis of the Group's other information UTAREBHMERIR IR E MK E DB DT

by reportable and operating segments.
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE_E—tHF=A=1+—HILFE

Property
Management | development Property Hotel
confrqchng management investment PYE total | development | Undllocated | Consolidated

YREE| WERE |REEX BIESE ADE

a
HK$ 000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HK$000| HK$000| HKS000 | HK$000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER

OTHERINFORMATION ~ Efti&#

Amounts included in the measure of segment profif (loss) or segment assefs:

FENBET (R AnHEET IR EHE

Additions to hotel under

NERETEE . . 2 - 1,578,947 - 1,578,947
deve|opmen’r
Additions f h . . e
Hions o property. FEYL BHLRE 11144 ] - 11144 9.1 4158 17513

plant and equipment

Additions to deposits paid for FERENL BRLDE

acquisition of Proper‘ry, SafE4s = = = = 209,893 = 209,893
plant and equipment
Depreciation of propert . S
AN PRI, RDRETE 2,594 10 - o604 : 865 393
plant and equipment
(Loss) gain on disposal of e T
Y EN N E
proPeﬁy, plont and () B (3,375) - - (3,375) - 6 (3,369)
equipment
Release of prepaid land .
BERN T HRENE 575 - - 575 - - 575
lease payments
Interests in joint ventures BEMERR 9,336 - 85,304 87,640 = = 87,640
Share of results of associates BBENTR
2,31 338 5290 2,641 - - 2,641
and joint ventures RELERE 231 %)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision makers but not included in the measure of segment profit (foss):
R FIBEEARE T IR E SRR BR) 28
. 4K/ \
Share of revenue of associotes B EHENEI 497,078 R 6,068 433,146 - - 433,146

and joint ventures RERERA
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE_ZE—tF="B=1+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

6. DERER} (FE)
LU B AR EIRA N ER LR HRE RS E D8
#ro

results by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE_FT—NFZA=T—HLFE

Property
Management | development Property Hotel Segment
contracting | management investment development total | Eliminations | Consolidated
EEEE |=%EEE BIERE | 0ERE Eaf i)
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
il I o B e i
SEGMENTREVENUE ~ #EIKA
External soles HHHE 6,795,906 15,611 - 6,811,519 6811519 6811519
Inter-segment sales DI EBE 3,147,794 800 - 3,148,524 - 3,148,524 (3,148,524)
Segment revenue DEWA 9,943,632 16,41 - 9,960,043 9,960,045 (3148504 6,811,519
Segment profit ([oss) AEaR (B8) 157,959 1,021 (483) 158497 (100,000) 58,497 (139,344) (73,847)
Corporate income PERG 8,617
Central administrative costs  FRATELALA (136,191)
Finance costs MEMNAK (8,9m)
Loss before tax RREIEE (210,339)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE_ZE—tF="B=1+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

6. DERER} (FE)

jfﬁ-o

At 31 March 2016

RIEB—RE=A=1+—H

Property
Management | development Property Hotel Segment

contracting | management investment development total | Eliminations

EEEE M=%EeR BIERE | 0ERE Eafi

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT TEL TATT TAT AT TAL
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NHEE 3,619,205 91,297 84900 3795330 8508629 12,3396l (746,268)
Pledged bank deposits BEARTED
Short term bank deposits 52 HIR TR
Bonkbalances and cash ~ B1715ER RS
Other unollocated assets AR DEEE
Consolidated assets FREE
LIABILITIES aff
Segment liabilities NH&E 3,010,061 4,960 5 3015036 3462004 6477040 (535,31)
Bank borrowings BITER
Other unallocated liabilities KD & &
Consolidated liabilities =t
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Consolidated

HK$'000

S

11,487,693

17,065

458,388

483,859

99,589

12,546,594

5,941,809

459,154

95,236

6,496,199
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tF=A=T—HLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DERER} (FE)
The following is an analysis of the Group's other information UTAREBHMERIR IR E MK E DB DT

by reportable and operating segments.
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BEE—RNE=B=1+—HIEE

Property
Management | development Property
confrqchng munogemem investment PYE total Unallocated | Consolidated

REEE g ) RE ) ADE

a
HK$'000 |  HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HK$000 | HK$000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER

OTHER INFORMATION HipER

Amounts included in the measure of segment profif (loss) or segment assefs:

FENBET (R AnHEET IR EHE

Additions to hotel under development NEBEIES - - - - 3,505,807 = 3,505,807
Additions to property, REME
R 12,817 - - 12,817 10,677 4,36 97,630
plant and equipment e
Additions to deposits paid for NEUEYE,
acquisition of property, WK - - - - 87,847 - 87,847
plant and equipment Sk
Additions to deposits for investments  FRERE3] & - - - - 110,000 - 110,000
Depreciation of property, ME. Wk
S i 29,618 10 - 29,628 - 10,259 39,887
plant and equipment RIEITE
. . i S >
Gain on dlsposa|.of property, u“ji#?ﬁ\ B’k 669 ) ) 662 ) m 7
plant and equipment Ml B
Pre-opening expenses for FETBE
o - - - - 100,000 - 100,000
hotel under deve|opmen’r HERIEY
i i
Release of prepaid ﬁﬁkfﬁi it 575 ) i 575 i ) 575
lond lease payments REFE
Interests in associates Henahag
28,106 2,339 84,900 110,667 - - 110,667
and joint ventures PEER (2359
Share of results of associates ﬁﬂﬁ H@%M NS
591 503 436 1,530 - - 1,530
and joint ventures == ﬂ?%%%ﬁ 1) 1503 ) 1550) 1150}

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision makers but not included in the measure of segment profit (foss):

EHEUTFLIEEBRRE BT ALK AEDWET BR) 28

Share of revenue of associates Bulanak
846,979 - 6,165 853,144 - - 853,144
and joint ventures BERERA
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_ZE—tHF=-A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERL ()
The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, AEEZEGFEUNREE. B REAREM
Macau, the People’s Republic of China ("The PRC") (TeREHL) (BB REPIFRSN) Kl K & 2R P8 et
(excluding Hong Kong and Macau), and Singapore and
Malaysia.
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue based UNAAREBW AR EE TR HMARE T
on geographical location where construction works or other EHERAEZ DT

services are provided:

2017 2016

—E—tE TEEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

B 87

Hong Kong 55 5,068,846 3,993,825

Macau AP 694,687 2,493,497

The PRC o 244,872 275,896

Singapore and Malaysia BTN N B 2R PR ER 118,704 118,371

6,127,109 6,811,519

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of M RAERSEEEREREEMETHRAUBE Y
non-current assets based on the geographical location of the o

assets:

2017 2016

“E—tHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FE
Hong Kong a5 204,098 296,311
Macau B 9,670,419 8,003,384
The PRC =5 87,406 112,288
Singapore and Malaysia FOni K B AR PE R 2,827 3,029
9,964,750 8,345,012
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE_ZE—tF="B=1+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERL ()
Revenue from customers contributing more than 10% of the WA BEMEAEBEW A EIE0%NELT !

total revenue of the Group are as follows:

2017 2016
gtz —=As
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FEm
Customer A ZRA 2,042,615 940,911
Customer B =B 667,462 1,115,263
Customer C (Note) ZAC (MEh) N/A A& B 1,299,724
Customer D (Note) ZHD (fED) N/A & A 981,342
Customer E (Note) ZFE (M5E) N/A R 3&E B 782,230
Note: These customers contributed less than 10% of total Wit . ZERR WA SRV G AEREE_E—+
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March F=B=+—HIEEELK A DRI0%,.
2017.
All these customers are under the management contracting ZERRYHBAEEESE,
segment.
7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hkas
2017
“E—tHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FE7
Bank interest income RITH) B 1,867 10,427
Interest income on amount due FEW — %4 B 58 — R B 1846
from a subsidiary of a shareholder NEIFIB F) B W !
Interest income on other loans receivable HEWEZH] B 3,783 5,090
Others Hth 38 1
5,688 17,364
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel under B BRERTEIS (141) (8,747)
development v '
5,547 8,617
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BE_E—tHF=-A=+—HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS

2017 2016
—E—tF =K
HK$'000 HK$'000
F FE
Interest on bank and other borrowings WITREMERZHE 170,706 99,899
Effective interest on convertible bonds DR EE v EEA A 90,872 76,532
261,578 169,431
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts in A }ﬁﬁﬁ%?%@l%%é 17,319) (16,229)
progress PN |
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel under B BT R EIE YY)
development and property, plant and . B AFREE (235,650) (144,298)
equipment K2 E58
8,609 8,91

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on funds
borrowed specifically for construction contracts, hotel under

deve|opmen’r and property, p|c1n’r and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNEYp e N

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE_ZE—tF="B=1+—HILFE

9. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND FIVE 9. EENFETBABRANUESHMABSME
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (o) EENRFTETHAEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine EfHENILE (CE—F N2 EE (BE
(2016: nine) directors which include the Chief Executive TBHER) S A ST !

Officer are as follows:

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme | Share-based
benefits | contributions payment
Fees 7 DS RORER DB 7
e HAtE7 TR | BRI
Name of director and chief executive HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00
BEENFETHRASES FEIT 57T 57T 57T 57T
2017
—E—+F
Executive Directors
WITES
Stephen Hung (Note i)
= - 347 - - 3,737 4,084
KBS (MY EE)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Note i) ([F5Ei) 347 6,981 310 2,587 10,225
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Note i)
L - 579 6,981 3 2,587 10,150
Bl= R (M5
Walter Craig Power (Note i) (Ffi5£i) 347 8,268 413 2,587 1,615
Independent non-executive Directors
BIIEPITES
James Chiu (Note ii)
N - 1,366 - - 2392 1,598
R (P i)
Lee Chack Fan (Note ii)
o - 1,162 - - 232 1,394
=25 (Bt i)
lain Ferguson Bruce (Note ii)
- 1,246 - - 232 1,478
e+ (i)
Francis Goutenmacher (Note ii) (i 5Fii) 1,343 = = 232 1,575
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny (Note ii)
_ 44] - - 207 648
fR B8 (b EEi)
7178 22,230 726 12,633 49,767
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BE_FE—tHF=A=1T—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND FIVE 9. EERFETHABRANUGRSHMASWE (B
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executives” emoluments (o) EEREFETBAEME (8
(Continued)

REENE
Salaries benefit Share-
and other scheme based
benefits | Discretionary [cor TU ibutions pavme nt
Fees iR bonus il

Be HAtiaF] BETEAL iz | Eftz ﬁT’K
Name of director and chief executive HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HKS000 HK$ 000
' TERT BT FAET BT FETT FET

Executive Directors

HITER
Stephen Hung (Note i)
s - 33 = - - 8,970 9,301
KB (P EE)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Note i) (B 5Hi) 33] 6,981 - 336 3,185 10,833
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Note i)
i - 551 6,981 3,000 18 3,185 13,735
2R (M)
Walter Craig Power (Note i) (¥ i) 33] 8,268 - 448 3,185 19,39
Independent non-executive Directors
BIUFPITES
James Chiu (Note i)
N - 1,301 - - - 298 1,599
R (FE)
Lee Chack Fan (Note i)
= e 1,107 - - - 298 1,405
27 (i Eti)
lain Ferguson Bruce (Note i)
- 1,186 - - - 298 1,484
e L (MEE)
Francis Goutenmacher (Note i) (Ffi 5+ii) 1,279 = = = 298 1,577
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny (Note i)
_ 4920 - - - 157 577
BED (Mt
6,837 29,230 3,000 802 19,8674 59,743
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BE_E—tF=A=1+—HILEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors” and chief executives’ emoluments

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

(i) The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their service as
directors of the Company.

Mr Walter Craig Power is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
above included those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive Officer for both years.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether direcﬂy or indirecﬂy,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to
the Group's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. Neither the directors
nor the chief executive waived any emoluments for both

years.
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BE_E—tHF=-A=+—HILFE

9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND FIVE 9. EERFETHAENAUESFMASHE ()

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) BEEENE
The five highest paid individuals in the Group for AEERAFEA IR ASTROLES
the year included four (2016: three) directors whose (CB—RF  =82F%5), HMeFB8NLEX
emoluments are disclosed above in note 9(a). The fi5E9(a)e BR F—R (CE—RNE | &) IFAK
aggregate emoluments of the remaining one (2016: SEEEHTETHRAEBCRSFMA B 2N
two) highest paid individuals who are neither a director SHEIWOT

nor chief executive of the Group are as follows:

2017 2016
“E—t&

HK$'000 HK$'000
B 87
Salaries and other benefits SN K H A2 A 6,886 14,568
Discretionary bonus B ETE AL - 3,333
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIREFNETEHE 18 36
Share-based payment expenses DR AER RS 2,587 3,393
9,491 21,330

The emoluments were within the following bands: WEMSFTBEENT

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—N
Number of Number of

employee employee
ploy ploy

BEAH BEAH

9 .I: —— Ay
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 /000,008 7%

9,500,000/ 75
10,000,001E 75
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 10,500,000 7 - ]
11,000,001 75 &
HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 1,500,00035 7 - ]
1 2
During both years, no emoluments were poid by the Group REMEEN, AEBTEOANESHINAS (B
to the five highest paid individuals, including directors and REENFTETHAL) TNMESLUEANMAEREER
chief executive, as an inducement to join or upon joining the R IMAREB R 2 ZE), IEABE@EE,
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRISIRE R
2017 2016
—B—t& e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH7T THET
Hong Kong 55
Current tax RERFR IR 1,096 -
Overprovision in prior years 1B 1E F E AR = (146)
1,096 (146)
Macau and other jurisdicﬁons BT N EMh B A e &
Current tax AERFRIE 6,194 29,631
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFERE (B%8) 151 483 m
6,677 29,630
7,773 29,484
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% of EBNBRIRFEAN G EFR BN 216.5%5T o
the estimated assessable profits for the year.
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made in AR IERIR BT # AR RIS B IR S SR,
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 REE_E—ARNFE_RA=T—"HILFEZREUH
March 2016 as the assessable profits were wholly absorbed R P R (F B AN S IR B .
by tax losses brought forward.
Taxation arising in Macau and other jurisdictions is RPN EMBEAEE E L CRIBIBEBR B A
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. BRBITCNETE,
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FRIGIRER (18)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to REEFEREREFREERETNY ZBRREE
the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit B HERWT

or |OSS as ](O”OWS:

plelv 2016
—E—t N

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Loss before tax FRAG FIE51E (32,451) (210,332)

AR =RI65% (B —N

Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) 1 16.5%) SHECIOIE (5,355) (34,705)
Tax effect of share of results of associates and G2 fal /N &/\ﬁﬁ\% (436) 959
joint ventures BB E
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax E*FM’&H/@KE_HD B 2349 90 34]
purpose MBETE
N\ 2 EEE ~\
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose fﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁi BRI a2 (1,286) (2,528)
%ﬁﬂ’& 'J_"\/ =
i i E/LA VL E E
Tax effect of -deducf|b|e temporary differences RHES Z—HD BERERC 5,068 16,673
not recognised iR
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible temporary El) I N uu—HD T R @) ©)
differences previously not recognised ERRCRBEE
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERRIBREE R B & 20,812 29,688
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously 5 B S il A FE umZﬂ:'uIE
not recognised BRECREEE (13,427) 6077
H =1 ey NEE=E
Tax effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions ,\;2152%[27 PRS2 (428) (3,007)
D=
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFERE (B%8) #H 483 (147)
Income tax expense for the year FECPERER 7,773 292,484
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 33. TEIERR I8 & S B & F IR B 5E33,
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1. LOSS FOR THE YEAR . FEBE

Loss for the year has been arrived at

2017

HK$'000
FET

2016
EPRY=

HK$'000
FET

after chorging (crediﬁng): FEBREARE GIA) -
Auditor’s remuneration BB & 4,762 4,554
Contract costs recognised as expense R A v BRI 5,877,240 6,599,747
Depreciation of property, plant and St T 7L .
. Y. AR ITE (a) 37,237 39,887
equipment
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEYZE. BB NERES 3369 (773)
p|0nf and equipment B8 (Z&F)) ’
Legal and professional fees EENEEER 26,531 34,237
Pre-opening expenses for hotel under }e . o
ERTBERSIRX - 100,000
development
Net exchange gain FE R H 558 (59) (422)
Impairment loss recognised in respect TLIEU — LB B — B B
of amount due from a subsidiary NEFIBRESR < BEE 235 -
of a shareholder 18
Operating lease rentals KRETHEHS (b) 26,513 97,748
Release of prepaid land lease payments B35 78 1= 1170 & 718 (c) 575 575
Staff costs BT A (d) 167,494 175,170
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1. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) . E£EEE (@
Notes: MIEE :

plelv 2016
—B—tf

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

(o) ¥R, BRI

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment: e
Owned assets HE&EE 592,547 55,863
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts BBREESN IR
in progress BEAR 2 (3:247) (4,441
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel B EBRERPERE
under development EiNa | (12,063) (11535)
37,237 39,887
(b) Operating lease rentals: (b) MEHEES !
Premises IS 62,101 67,517
Plant and machinery T AR Ko 1 B 85,120 104,063
147,221 171,580
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts B BREREH AR
in progress EARTSEE (87,835) (107.679)
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel B BRERTPBERE
under development N (32.873) (36,153)
26,513 27,748
(c) Release of prepaid land lease payments: (o) BRTE(THIHE RIS !
Release of prepaid land lease payments HETE TR E A 104,591 104,591
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel B ERERTEEE
under 0|eve|opmen’r Wi (104,016) (104,01¢)
575 575
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1. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) . FEBE
Notes: (Continued) fIEE (18) -
2017 2016
—E—t%F —E—X
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
(d) Staff costs: (d) BEIRA :
Directors emoluments (Note 9) SE=W<® (MI5E9) 49,767 592,743
Other staff costs: HME T A :
. . . o Si= n H
So|or|es,'o||screhonory bonus and other %@Jﬁ\ BV B N E At 846,346 934,450
benefits Eisyil
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRIREN] 5T B HER 27,470 27,573
L\ ""“:t L\ L /\/m
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses Xg;ﬁgi}ﬁ%g A 6,449 5,996
923,032 1,020,762
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts B EBRTEEENIRE
in progress v (473,266) (535.719)
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel B BRERTAEER
under development and property, plant Mz, WA R (282,272) (31,873)
and equipment BEAR 2
167,494 175170
12. DISTRIBUTIONS 12. IR
No dividend was recognised as distributions to owners of the REMEFEE, HEEREANSHE ADRE S,
Company during both years.
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend EEfEERNEBE_S—tEFE=B=+—HIHF
for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil). EZRE(ZE—RF  #H),
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13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Loss

13. EREE
ANBHEB NEL 2 SRERNEEFEEET
BT E

B8

plelv
—B—tf

2016

=K
— /N

HK$'000
FE7

HK$'000
FET

Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted loss per 5T E S AKE A NS
share: BB e

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

RNBHEBNEBIEFEBE

(44,559) (197,361)

Number of shares

4L 4=

Number of

SI’]OY@S

RINEIE

Number of

shores

REE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for STEEREANES
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share E518 7 @ AR N AE 909,336,644 908,245,076

(Note)

T8 (5

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares
adopted in the calculation of basic and diluted loss
per share for both years have been arrived at after
deducting the shares held in trust for the Company by

an independent trustee.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 March 2017 and 2016 does not assume the exercises

of convertible bonds and the unvested shares awarded
outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016
since assumed such exercises would result in a decrease

in loss per share. In addition, the computation of diluted

loss per share for year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016
does not assume the exercises of exchange right granted

to option holders under a subsidiary’s share option scheme
and the Company’s share options outstanding during the
year because the adjusted exercise prices of those exchange
rights and options were higher than the average market
price of the shares and assumed such exercises would result

in a decrease in loss per share during both years.
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14. HOTEL UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The movement of the hotel under development for the year
ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 is set out below:

14. FERFIEE
BHE_E—tEN_E—NF-A=-t—HIEE
BERTAISBEHETAT

HK$'000
FE5T

COST A

At 1 April 2015 RIE—RAFMHE—H 9,633,563
Additions NE 3,505,807
At 31 March 2016 N _E—ARF=B=1+—H 6,139,370
Additions NE 1,578,947
At 31 March 2017 R E—tHF=B=+—H 7,718,317

The hotel under development is erected on a piece of

land on the Cotai Strip of Macau which is held under a
medium-term lease. The amounts capitalised in the hotel
under development mainly represent the release of prepaid
land lease payments, depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, effective interest of convertible bonds and bank
and other borrowings, share-based payment expenses and
share award expenses, directors and key management’s
emo|umenfs, other staff costs, direct construction costs as
well as other professional fees including design fee and
consultancy fees. The capitalised share-based payments,
share award expenses, directors and key management’s
emoluments are based on the roles and functions of each
individuals and their relevant time spent in relation to the

hotel under development project during the year.

HROVAERNRPIRKS BN — B,
WLPHHEERE. IEETBERTELA ZER
TREBBRAN I HMBEERIE. WX, BH&ERH
ZITE. PR ESNRTREMEEERNA
Lt BB TR R EB A=, EFK
TEEEASME. HtETA ERAREIE
ARHMEXER (QERFBERRBEBER) -
BRATERZURNAER IR RO ERIF.
EEkEFEEEABZMEEESEIALTZAE
Ko BRI BE R S PR A 38 J CP A i AR R s ] B
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/DEPOSITS 15. ¥, WmMARREIREYE. BRARREBEN
PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT HES
AND EQUIPMENT
(a) Property, plant and equipment (O ENR: 1G]

Plant, Furniture,
machinery fixtures and
Leasehold and Motor office

improvement equipment vehicles equipment

AEEE ' =25 +

HK$'000 | HK$000 | HK$ 000 ’ HK$ 000
FET FET FET =y FET

CosT A
A1 April 2015 RIE-—RFEMNE—H 31,681 973,130 4,829 90,437 437,077
Translation adjustments R 18 5 (253) (87) (317)
Additions B 4,545 6,006 7,503 9,576 97,630
Disposals HE = (2,373) (3,759) (1,088) (7,220)
At 31 March 2016 AZE-RE=F=1+—H 36,044 976,768 45,390 98,838 457,170
Translation adjustments ERiaE - 9) (361) (150) (520)
Additions HE - 7,580 3,540 6,393 17,513
Disposals & - (12,185) (4,483) (1,325) (17,993)
At 31 March 2017 RIE—tHE=A=+—H 36,244 979,154 44,016 103,756 456,70
DEPRECIATION e
At1 April 2015 RIBE—AFMEE—H 10,346 125,858 97,813 66,725 230,742
Translation adjustments ERRERES 5 5 (233) (90) (313)
Provided for the year KEERRE 13,050 26,176 5,379 11,258 55,863
Eliminated on disposals HE®RKH - (1,779) (3,366) (729) (5,867)
At 31 March 2016 RIE—RE=A=1+—H 23,401 150,267 29,593 77,164 280,425
Translation adjustments P 3 R - @) (224) (127) (358)
Provided for the year REERRE 1,477 95,629 5,548 9,893 59,547
Eliminated on disposals HEREH - (6,7) (3,772) (1,229) (11,705)
At 31 March 2017 RIE—tE=F=1+—H 34,878 169,178 31,145 85,708 390,909
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2017 AZE—tE=A=+—H 1,366 102,976 12,871 18,048 135,261
At 31 March 2016 RZB—RE=F=+—H 12,843 126,501 15,727 91,674 176,745
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HE_E

15.

—tF=A=+—HLEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/DEPOSITS
PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
(a) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term

of the lease or 3 years

10% - 33/ %

Leasehold improvement

Plant, machinery and

equipment
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20% - 33"/ %

office equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has deposits of
HK$336,547,000 (2016: HK$126,654,000) paid to
independent third parties for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment.

. DEPOSITS FOR INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has a refundable earnest
money of HK$50,000,000 (2016: HK$50,000,000)
paid to an independent third party as deposit to secure an
investment right in production of a movie. Also included in
deposifs for investments, is refundable earnest money of
HK$60,000,000 (2016: HK$60,000,000) paid to an
independen’r third party in respect of a po’renfio| property

investment.
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17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. FEN Lt ERRIA
Analysed for reporting purposes as follows: HERENMOAOT !
2017
—m—tx
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE5 %
Non-current assets EREMEE 1,507,712 1,612,303
Current assets MEEE 104,591 104,591
1,612,303 1,716,894
The Group's prepaid land lease payments comprise AEB BN T HBAERBIBEMNR U TG -
leasehold interest in land situated in: WA SRR
2017 2016
—E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi FE
Hong Kong =55 17,386 17,961
Macau (Note) P (PED) 1,594,917 1,698,933
1,612,303 1,716,894
Note: New Concordia Hotel Limited ("New Concordia”), MiEE - FIAEBEERAE (FEl, AR FEze
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has BB AT B TREFRKEEAEL—
been granted an irrecoverable and exclusive power Mg (T3h)) 2 R ARl RIE R < IR
of attorney ("POA") in respect of interest in a parcel (MLER)) . REBLERRER, REREW
of land situated on the Cotai Strip of Macau BARMERERCEENE, URH. 18
(the "Land”). Taken into consideration of a legal Eol R 1 MARRE < REF. R NFE T,

opinion, POA is considered to be a legal instrument
commonly used in Macau to grant, assign or
transfer rights, interest and powers on or relating to

the Land.
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BE_E—tF=A=T—HLEFE

18. GOODWILL 18. FE

HK$'000
BT

COST A
At1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 2017 \*ﬂiﬁigﬁﬁ El\—kiiEil_/ ’ 64,412
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT RETBE
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 2017 \ii “ figiﬂ ?;:?7/ o (2,766)
CARRYING VALUES FREME

N— = —
At 31 March 2016 and 2017 \:g_jr\iéz_“ tF 61,646

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount
of goodwill has been allocated to the cash-generating
units ("CGUs") of building construction in the management

contracting segment.

The recoverable amount of the above CGU has been
determined based on value in use calculations. The Group
prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management for the next
two years (2016: two years) and extrapolates cash flows
for the following five years (2016: five years) with a steady
growth rate of 5% (2016: 5%). The rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows is 9% (2016: 9%). The value in

use calculations is calculated based on the budgeted
gross margin, which is determined using the unit’s past
performance and management's expectations for the
market development.

Management believes that any reasonable possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable

amount.
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BE_E—tE-RB=+—RHIEE

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. HER & E

2017 & 2016

HK$'000

BT
Other intangible assets comprise: Hh\FE EEDE !
Club membership in Hong Kong, at cost EEC OGS, LAk 7,000
Motor vehicles registration marks, at cost BENE 5, Rl 627

7,627
The above intangible assets have indefinite useful lives. The iﬁﬁﬁ?é_@ﬁﬁi@@ﬁﬁ FH, %%f@é%% =301
directors are of the opinion that the club membership and MISERERA, SHEELNEMEDRIGECEE
motor vehicles registration marks are worth at least their EOHEEREREE,

carrying amounts by reference to latest market prices.

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/OBLIGATIONS IN 20. B N TR BHEE N TR ET
EXCESS OF INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2017
—_E—tHF — 7

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

RENIFLHHMERTZ

Cost of unlisted investments in associates A 1,561 28,533
Share of post-acquisition losses and other BLWERCBELEMS (7,695) (5,666)

comprehensive expenses, net of dividends received  [H] Bz, HBRBWERE ’ '
(6,134) 292,867
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20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/OBLIGATIONS IN 20. B N B R BHEE N TR 2 BT (E)
EXCESS OF INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Aggregofe information of associates that are not f /%'JIE?EEE%ZH%%@ = Ziﬁﬂqﬁ%@ .

individually material:

2017 2016
=t —m
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE5 %
The Group's share of loss AEEE(LER (2167) (1,531)
The Group's share of other comprehensive income  Z<£2 B (5 H it 4 @ W 4% 138 88
The Group's share of total comprehensive expense  Z<£2 B (5 4 [H 5 5% f2%8 (2,029) (1,443)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEER (BHBEERNT
(obligations in excess of interests in associates) ER2EMT BERNT (6,134) 292,867
interests in associates fea o RERE
Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31 March AEBFERENTN _S—CERS—RE=
2017 and 2016 are set out in note 47(c). B =1+—HB <5 BE5 R EE47(c)o
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21 BELFEER
2017 2016
—B—t% e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
T3 A PNPTIN
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures Txii FEPEEERZ 51,773 51,773
Share of post-acquisition profits and other BLHWER AT NEMmSe 35 867 36097
comprehensive income, net of dividends received EHQE, ?D I%EH&HWQ,%\ ’ !
87,640 87,800
The summarised financial information in respect of the ERASEREESEAEMNIEMBEEBRRE N
Group's material joint venture, T LS BEZE R/, HeENB AT /NITEMEREERARZHHE
and its wholly owned subsidiary, FUN gl BB IR BRZEI] T UTHBERNBEZNIERESE
08 is set out below. The summarised financial information IR ELELREMA B E XM BREKTILZ
below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's G
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
Financial position of the joint venture as at 31 March: BEPER=ZA=+—"HZHBIKR
2017 2016
—E—t —=—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FE5
Non-current assets ERIFEE 211,862 216,476
Current assets RENEE 5,326 4,704
Current liabilities REEE (23,987) (11,587)
Non-current liabilities JERBEE (22,593) (39,793)
Net assets of the joint venture BEPEEESRE 170,608 169,800
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 21 FEMRER (18)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the T EENESBEEREUE TR
following:
2017 2016
—B—tF =N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET ;
Cash and cash equivalents B hEIEeEFEER 4,625 4,199
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and mETREeE TaEES 16.930 4785
other payables and provisions) Re ELAH & FRIE Kz 4t i) ' !
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade JERFesad (raiEs 17.943
and other payables and provisions) 5 e HAFEAT FU I8 K2 55 1i5) ) '
Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying amount of the rECEEFEHEEREMBCHE

interest in the joint venture:

2017 2016
—E—t&
HK$'000 HK$'000
:F%FE ‘T‘/ETE
Net assets of the joint venture GEEXCEEFE 170,608 169,800
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in FEBEEETPEHEEE 50% 50%
the joint venture FE % LAl : :
. o - EN A=
Corrylhg. amount of the Group's inferest in FEBRGELFEBERZ 85,304 84,900
the joint venture REE
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 21 EEPEMER (E)
Results of the joint venture for the year ended 31 March: EECERER=+—HIEFEECHEE
2017 2016
—=—tx| —=x
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FEm
Revenue WA 12,136 12,331
Profit (loss) for the year FERA (BB 10,580 (872)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHMeERE (9,772) (7,443)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year  FE L E NS (Fis) 258 808 (8,315)
The Group's share of profit (loss) AEBE( 7 (B518) 5,290 (436)
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not BRNEFEFE v BE P ECERFEE

individually material:

2016
—s—tE| —EAs
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR FEm
The Group's share of (loss) profit AEEEL (B5B) 2F (482) 437
The Group's share of other comprehensive AEEBEEMeE ()
) (82) 53
(expense) income e
The Group's share of total comprehensive AEBEE#GLE D) (564) 490
(expense) income ey ot
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEENREGEPERTC
. - 2,336 2,900
interests in joint ventures EEEAEE
Particulars of the Group's principal joint ventures as at 31 AEEFESGEPENR_ST—CLER-SE—R"FE=
March 2017 and 2016 are set out in note 47(d). B =+—BZFFEEHY PR HIEE47(d)o
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22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR 2. FEUY I EF &K IEMNIEA
CONTRACT WORKS
2017 2016
—E—t% —BAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T8
Contracts in 'progre.ss at the end of AR Rk~ R A TS
the reporting perlod:
Contract costs incurred BEEECZ G 72,500,214 70,650,749
Recognised profits less recognised losses RS A B SR 518 1,842,024 1,702,700
74,342,238 72,353,449
Less: Progress billings B EER (74,204,007) (72,671,265)
138,231 (317,816)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HERENM DA -
Amounts due from customers for contract works B E R &N TERIE 1,001,835 851,251
Amounts due to customers for contract works BRI =R &N IIERIE (863,604) (1,169,067)
138,231 (317,816)
In response to the lead contamination of drinking water FEETENIERKIKEH, RABEERA
in certain contract works, the directors of the Company BT RARIGREHHERE S EH T D B .

consider that the provision made for the costs of remedial
works in the consolidated financial statements is adequate.

23. INVENTORIES 23. 78
The inventories were carried at cost and represent principally GEZEAATR, FTEEFNEBEFBIETERE
food, beverages and operating supplies which are to be ZEMm mKkEEYE,

utilised in the ordinary course of operations.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 24. B N EMPEWFIE, 5T MFERFRIE
PREPAYMENTS

plelv 2016
—E—t —E R

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Trade debtors B S ER RIS 598,527 596,062

, ZRFHETRIR T YA
Retention held by customers expected to be settled: EELRES

- within twelve .monfhf from the end of R AR ho(E A P 346,254 418,009
the reporting period
- after twelve nl'lom‘hs from the end of —ﬁﬁﬁé,ﬁﬂﬂiﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁ ﬁé 131, 004,816
the reporting perlod
Advance payments to sub-contractors mAHEE N BNRIE 165,242 157,646
. . ) S| - i
Construction and material purchase costs paid on (W) fﬁji’iﬁfZEL& 036,504 193,581
behalf of sub-contractors A RHE RS Al A
HiEWAIE, 1<
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments /\;gg;i%g k2 206,163 182,552
1,683,891 1,752,666
Trade debtors mainly arise from management contracting B2 EWHIBEEERERETIEX, AEERE
business. The Group's credit terms for its management BEER EEHNREE SR RER N 1L, B8
contracting business are negotiated at terms determined HAFR6OH E90H T,

and agreed with its tfrade customers. The credit periods are

ranging from 60 to 90 days.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The aged analysis of trade debtors, net of allowance for
doubtful debfs, presen’red based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

ST RFEMRRIE ()

RI|ERAR, UBRAMAAHEBESREINBRE
Bipk e E 5 BUGEZ KRB DT

2017 2016

—E—tF TEREF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FiE5 %

Within 90 days 90HW 544,654 525,632
More than 90 days and within 180 days B1B0H{BRIB0OH Y 2,309 37,734
More than 180 days 1B1E180 H 51,564 39,696
598,527 596,062

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the
credit quality of the trade customers. The collection is closely
monitored to minimise any credit risk associated with these
trade debtors.

The aged analysis presented based on the invoice date of
the trade debtors which are past due but not impaired is as

'FO”OWS:

AEEETHREEERRUFEESER ZEEE
2, WAHTFRBEYGRZEUREREEMEZER
7 EW B FE AR,

EBRHRERAECEZBIHENEZEAHA/ESE
SR OMTOT

2017
—E—tF —E—K
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FE7
More than 90 days and within 180 days #1890 H B R180H N 2,309 37,734
More than 180 days 88180 H 51,564 32,696
53,873 70,430

The directors of the Company consider that there has not
been a significant change in credit quality of the trade
debtors and there is no recent history of default, therefore
the amounts are considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 24. B 5 N H WA, T RFAMRIE (8)
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Maijority of the trade debtors that are neither past due nor REBD BB EA S R (B 2 B 5 FE WG IE T f HB /K
impaired have no default payment history. T FRED #o

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts of individuo”y RERN, EREREEZEREIEC RERFEE)
impaired trade debtors during the year is as follows: BERuT

2017 2016

st “ENE

HK$'000 HK$'000

T8 TFHT

Balance at beginning and end of the year T FERAEER 3,833 3,833

The Group's trade and other debtors, deposits and AEEDEMEBRERIEEK YN EE A BN

prepayments that are denominated in currencies other than < B 5 NEMBEKEIE. Ze MTANRIBEHSOT !

the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set
out below:

2017
—E—tF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR Fa5
Macau Pataca ("MOP”) B P (T8 P |) 194 194
Renminbi (‘RMB") AR (TARE)) 35,386 4,771
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RIS MY 5E

BHE EBE—tHF="H=+—HIEE
25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/ 25 FEW (THAENT] S b SEER SEE
JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER BHMB RIS
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS
(a) Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures (o) FEM STEHE N S EECFE
(i) Amounts due from associates: () BUEHENEIFIA .

2016
It SO
HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT
Trade and other balances 85 N HiEER
Trade balances =0k - 3,326
Retention held by an associate —REE N BB TER
expected to be settled within REREHAZRELET 199 199
twelve months from the end of 1218 B G E <
the reporting period REE
Other balance HiEer 15,734 15,245
15,863 18,700
The trade balances due from associates had a FEW B E N B 2 B S iEer 2 FHEE R A90

credit period of 90 days on average and the aged
analysis presented based on the invoice date at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

H, MRREPFRURZAHAS/ELEZ R
FRESOATIOT :

plely 2016
—F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F%
Within 90 days 90H A - 2,130
More than 180 days Bim80oH - 1,196
- 3,326
The above balance aged over 90 days as at 31 RTE—RNF=B=+—H, LAEKER

March 2016 was past due but not impaired. The
directors of the Company considered that there had
not been a significant change in credit quality of the
associate and there was no recent his’rory of defouh,
’rherefore, the amount was considered recoverable.
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/
JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures
(Continued)

(i) Amounts due from joint ventures:

Trdde cmd o’rher bo|onces

25. FEUR (IR E RN F]
BHHMB A (8)

BEMRE BEEE YR

(o) FEYR IBEERNE, BE LR ZRIEA ()

(i) BWEEREIA:

plelv
—B—tf

2016

=K
— /N

HK$'000
FE7

HK$'000
FET

85 R HMAEER

Trade balances B iEeR 133,873 282,438
Retention held by a joint venture —BaEtEREERER
expected to be settled: THEREAEE REE
- within twelve months from the end —IREHAREEET
of the reporting period 1218 2 7 24,550 24,678
- after twelve months from the end — R EHARECET 14810
of the reporting period 1218 5 % ) '
158,423 321,926
The trade balances due from joint ventures which Rl EE X B SR FHEEH A0
have a credit period of 90 days on average are H, MRBREHARUEZEZHAAEZE Rip
aged within 90 days based on the invoice date at A90H A,
the end of the reporting period.
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/
JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures
(Continued)

(iif) Amounts due to associates:

25. FEUWR IBtE NERELE B

R Y-

BHHMB A (8)

(o) FEMR IEHERTE, &

(iii)

B RZRIE

FEIBtE N EFUA

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT
Trade and other balances 85 N HiEER
Trade balance = - 912
Retention held by the Group expec’red AEEFHERR T
to be settled: BiE s 2RER
- within twelve months from the end — RS HARECET 3406
of the reporting period 1218 A A ) '
- after twelve months from the end —$§/‘_|:'|:,HH XE%’ 6979
of the reporting period 1218 5 % ) '
Other balance HAEeR - 360
- 10,970

The trade balance due to an associate which had a

credit period of 90 days was aged within 90 days

based on the invoice date as at 31 March 2016.

(iv) Amount due to a joint venture:

(iv)

RTEB-ARF=A=+—0H, BN —EKRE
NEZEZREEREERA0H, MRNKRS
HIRLIBRZH AR 2RI A908 Mo

BN —BaEhEE:

2017
—E—t#

HK$'000
FTET

Trade and other balance B 5 N A fuiEeR

Other balance HAbfEeR 67

2016

— =L/
—F/\

HK$'000
TET

49
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/ 25. FEUWR IBHENERE LR BEXE ¥R

JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER BHHMBHRIE (8)

PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to joint operations/other partners (b) FEM I EEH*TSEEBEMBRCNE
of joint operations
Amounts represent balances due from and to joint FTIBRRERWNENEEER RRABHEZS S
operations, which are deemed to be borne by other ﬁ%%ﬁfﬂ%Zﬁf??%) &é*ﬁ%%ﬁ@%ﬁ’z
partners of such joint operations, and other partners ThER. ENAEEBNEEFEBHMBH G
of joint operations. The balances due from joint BR97 517,585,000/ 7T (ZF—/S4F  7,719,00078
operations and other partners of joint operations 7t) 110,853,000/ 75 (& —7<4F : 110,853,000
are HK$7,585,000 (2016: HK$7,719,000) and BT o WHA*A%?‘&AM%%QEWJ%T#
HK$110,853,000 (2016: HK$110,853,000), ZKE8RY B A110,853,0008 7 (2B —/R4F -
respectively. The balances due to joint operations and 110,853,00075 71) ~22,698,00078 75 (fﬂ TNEE
other partners of joint operations are HK$110,853,000 5,095,000757T) o

(2016: HK$110,853,000) and HK$2,698,000 (2016:
HK$5,095,000), respectively.

(i) Amounts due from joint operations/other partners of () EWEEXEY SEXBEMBLZIIE

joint operations:

2017 2016
E—t & TE—RE
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET T
Trade and other balances B 5 X HAiEeR

Trade balance B 5 i5er 87 109

Refen’rionfh:kj bl: a jc:lrfdopil]éfion O S 3 4 A S B A
cxpeciecio pe serred Wi W& EREFN2ER 7,200 7,200

twelve months from the end of

. . Wi E RE T
the reporting perlod
Other balance HiiEer 298 410
Non-trade balances JEE S REeR 110,853 110,853
118,438 118,572
The trade balance due from a joint operation which BN —EEExHB B R MR EE/A90
has a credit period of 90 days is aged within 90 B, MRIREMARUEZARAELE 2R
days based on the invoice date at the end of the 90 H Ao
reporting periocl.
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/ 24. U IS NE,GELRE BEXEE SR
JOINT VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER BHHMB A (8)
PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)
(b) Amounts due from/to joint operations/other partners (b) FEM I EEXTSEEBHMBEZNIE
of joint operations (Continued) (18
(i) Amounts due to joint operations/other partners of (i) BNEEEE/ SEEBEMPBHEINIE

joint operations:

2017 2016
—B—tF “EAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T
Trade and other balances B 5 X HAiEeR

Trade balance =0k - 3,317
Other balances HAthiEeR 2,698 1,778
Non-trade balances IEE S i5eR 110,853 110,853
113,551 115,948
The trade balance due to a joint operation/other FETT_T_FE?@%%%/@%%%ET@%§T¥Z%
partner of a joint operation had a credit period of SiEere EEEA0H, MR EEARUE

90 days and the aged analysis presented based on ERPRARECRROTEIWT :

the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is

as FO”OWS:

2017
—E—tf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFETT
Within 90 days 90H M - 2,675
More than 90 days and within 180 days #BiE90 HER180H M - 316
More than 180 days HBiE180 H - 326
- 3,317
Other balances and non-trade balances due from/to ﬁ?%/ﬁ?fﬁﬂ%%@ﬁ/é%ﬁ%/é%%%/é%
associates/joint ventures/joint operations/other partners of EBHMB A HMiEer RIFE 5 iGEeR 2 EIRIR.
joint operations are unsecured, interest-free and repayable % ERBRERFFER,
on demand.
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26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES OF A 26. FEIL 4 —R R M B A BRIEA
SHAREHOLDER
(i) Amounts due from subsidiaries of a shareholder () BR—%EERHBLTNIE
2017 2016
—E—tHF AT -2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TTT
Trade and other balances B 5 KM EMIEER
Trade balances B S iEER 307 555
Other balance Hfhiger 24,5492 26,009
24,849 26,564
The trade balances due from subsidiaries of a FEN—2RB B REI B SR FHEER
shareholder have a credit period of 90 days on average HA790H, RExEHAR, MUEEH HH%H—%ZQE
are aged over 180 days based on the invoice date at BoiBiE180H, fEERA EBHBERBIE. AN
the end of the reporting period. The balances are past EEFAXLREZMB LB ZEE \Eilﬁé
due but not impaired. The directors of the Company K#Eth, BRI EA R, HEAZSZNIE
consider that there has not been a significant change f&r] % W o],
in credit quality of the subsidiaries of a shareholder
and there is no recent his’rory of default. Therefore, the
amounts are considered recoverable.
(i) Amount due to a subsidiary of a shareholder (i) FEN—%ERERe—HENB R BMNIE
2017 2016
—E—tF F—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR
Trade and other balance 85 KM HMIEER
Other balance Hith#her 647 441
Other balances due from/to subsidiaries of a shareholder JTE‘H&Z/H LR R BN B EL S R 2 fRIE
are unsecured, inferest-free and repayable on demand. . BRENENRERFFER
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27. OTHER LOANS RECEIVABLE 27. HthFEWRE R
The other loans receivable are unsecured, interest becring HtEWERT AR, BEEREENXRME
at ﬂoqﬁng rates at the best |eno|ing rate in Hong Kong p|us Bo6% (CE—7RFE I NF2%E6%) 2 FEAIRFTER
6% (2016: 2% to 6%) per annum and are repayable within BR—ERNER, E—F&£547,000,00057T (—
one year except for an amount of HK$7,000,000 (2016: B—NF ) CFUBREE SN SR (ZF—N
Nil) which is interest bearing at a fixed rate of 8% (2016: F ) SHRBRN REMEEE R ZEERE AR
Nil) per annum. The balances as at end of both years are all THIIE=T7,

advanced to independent third parties.

98. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK 28. BIEIIRITEN. HHRTEIKIBRITHENIRE
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH

2017 2016
—E—+t5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Pledged bank deposits BEIRRIRITIF 16,247 17,065
Short term bank deposits WERIRITIERN 36,876 458,388
Bank balances and cash RITHEER IR & 323,553 483,859
376,676 959,312
Less: pE
Pledged bank deposits EIRFERITER (16,247) (17,065)
Cash and cash equivalents B NMEIFEEEEE 360,429 942,247
The pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to EIERIRTERIEAEEAER T AR S ARE
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group —FRIPEZEITREMBETERZGER, 872
with maturity within one year from the end of the reporting BARINEE,

period and are therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits EIERRTER DR = @R R RRITFER
with maturity date of less than three months carry prevailing M5 E EFH0.01%52.4% (— 5 —/NF | 0.01%%176%)
market rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.4% (2016: 0.01% ZIRTHIEHE, RITEERNEEEH0%E0.5% (&
to 1.76%) per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing F—INE L 0%El%) ZIRITHIHHIER,
market rates ranging from 0% to 0.5% (2016: 0% to 1%) per
annum.
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28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK 28. EBIRIRITER. HHRBITERRBITERKRIRE
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH (&)
(Continued)
The Group's short term bank deposits and bank balances AEENERMERERREEEUN CER A8
and cash that are denominated in currencies other than the ZRERRIRIT ERNIRTTAEER IR EAI W T ¢

functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out

be|ow:

2017 2016

—E—tE TE—NE

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FET FET

MOP B S i 92,327 3,583

RMB NESL: 1,969 1,961

29. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED 29. B 5 M EMEMIBNFEFTREY

EXPENSES

plolv 2016
—m—t% A

HK$'000 HK$'000
FH7 T

Trade creditors B E(RIA 563,857 512,845

ESbs HR I
Retention held by the Group expected to be settled: AR B E AR T

SR REZ

- within f\fve|ve rr?onfhs from the end of the g EERARsHoEA K 550,533 534,409
reporting period

- after fw?|ve mcj)nfhs from the end of the *%&‘%ﬂﬂ%@gﬂﬂﬁﬂ ﬁ% 973,038 044,787
reporting period

Advance receipts from customers FERE L ZEWIE 128,996 7,699

Other creditors and accrued expenses EERTRIE R EET RS 429,136 330,168

1,945,760 1,629,908

The average credit period on trade creditors is 90 days. The B2 ENRIBZ FHIEEHRA0H, AEERBS

Group has financial risk management policies in place to B RREIRNE, BEMEENNIESTEERE

ensure that all payables are within the credit timeframe. Mo
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29. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED 29. B 5 N E thFE(T FRIE R FEFT R ST ()
EXPENSES (Continued)
The aged analysis of trade creditors presented based on the RIREHAR, U ELNHAEERR I ESIEN
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: B RE DO
2017 2016
—=—t&| c—EAs
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FEm
Within 90 days 90H 546,624 498,957
More than 90 days and within 180 days B0 H B 180 H A 2,291 662
More than 180 days BiE180 H 14,942 13,226
563,857 512,845
The Group's trade and other creditors and accrued expenses AREEBDEMEBRERIEEM YN EE A BN
that are denominated in currencies other than the functional 2B NEMEMTIENESTREZES T

currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

2017 2016
—E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FETT
MOP RPIE 7,201 8,463
RMB AR - 1,050
30. LOAN FROM A SUBSIDIARY OF A SHAREHOLDER 30. — R R ERz — M B LB AR

The loan from a subsidiory of a shareholder is unsecured, —ZRE—BNEBREERNAELEE, Z&ER
interest bearing at a floating rate at the best lending rate in BEHNESNE R 2% FEHAEFTR, WAREK

Hong Kong plus 2% per annum and repayable on demand BHEE (CE—RF  BR—FRNEE) .

(2016: repayable within one year).
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31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 31 RAT R HEAMERR
2017
—E—tF =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE5T F%
Bank borrowings RITER 3,648,354 3,020,847
Other borrowing HMES 300,000 -
3,948,354 3,020,847
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMER
Secured HHER 3,908,354 2,854,293
Unsecured I 40,000 166,554
3,948,354 3,020,847
The bank and other borrowings are repayable as follows: WIT R EMERTZEEROT
2017
—_E—tF )
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE5 F%
On demand or within one year RBHEER —FEREH 888,070 459,154
More than one year, but not exceeding two years  BiB—, B 218 MG 463,418 -
More than two years, but not exceeding five years BEmE, BAEEAE 2,596,866 2,561,693
3,948,354 3,020,847
Less: Amount due within one year shown under 78 : — N E| BRI 71 (F
=L & ,07 459,154
current liabilities mEN8 M’ IE (888,070) (459,154)
— LT EA T B D=
Amount due of.fer .o'n'e year shown under fifﬁij,ﬂ]ﬂﬂﬂzaf eI 3,060,284 9 561,693
non-current liabilities /TEZTJ_TKIE
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E_E—CF=ZR=+—HLEE

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 March 2017, carrying amount of bank borrowings that
contain a repayment on demand clause and are repayable
within one year based on scheduled repayment dates of

the loan agreements amounting to HK$578,070,000
(2016: HK$425,600,000) have been classified as current
liabilities.

The Group's bank borrowings carry interests at floating rates
ranging from the banks’ cost of funds plus 1.75% to Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") plus 3.5% (2016:
the banks’ cost of funds plus 1.75% to 110% of the benchmark
lending rate as announced by the People’s Bank of China
from time to time), with effective interest rate ranging from
2.36% to 4.77% (2016: 2.30% to 5.06%) per annum. The
Group's other borrowing carries interest at a fixed rate of
25% per annum (2016: Nil).

As at 31 March 2017, the secured bank and other
borrowings and the banking facilities granted to the Group
are secured by the Group's hotel under development,
property, plant and equipment, deposits paid for acquisition
of property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments situated in Macau, inventories and bank deposits
with an aggregate carrying value of HK$7,718,317,000
(2016: HK$6,139,370,000), HK$28,000 (2016:
HK$201,000), HK$158,107,000 (2016: Nil),
HK$1,594,917,000 (2016: HK$1,698,933,000),
HK$30,445,000 (2016: Nil) and HK$16,247,000 (2016:
HK$17,065,000), respectively, and charges over the
Group's benefit from certain construction contracts and the
Group's interests over certain subsidiaries.

Certain bank and other borrowings of the Group are subject
to covenant clauses, whereby the subsidiaries are required to
meet certain stipulated financial ratios. As at 31 March 2017,
the subsidiaries has fulfilled these financial ratios and did not
break any bank covenants. The Group will closely monitor its
financial position to ensure the compliance with the relevant
financial covenants and undertaking requirements at the
end of the reporting period.

31. IRITREAMER (18)

ﬁé:f—tfﬁfﬂ*+ H, MEAENEKRE
RIER MBI ER HE o BEESHIAR —F

&3 EEE@?%% 070,000/ 7T (ZF—/ 4 .
425,600,000/ 70) ZIRITEARDEAREE B

AEBIRZHN X ECBITENR, EFBF]ER
HBIR1TE & AN 75% 2R E B IR TR 2/ EH/=R
(FEBRITRZERENZE]) FMN35% (ZF—/NF .
HIZIRITE & M ANMN75%E R T E A RIRIT AL
e BEBFHIZR ZN10%) 5182, EBRERENF
2.36%%24.77% (—E—74F ! Qso%isom) AER
2 B E TR E EERNR5%:T B (ZE—7F L H),

RIB—tE=B=+—H, BiEERTLEME
JX&ZIK%I?@Q%Z%EG%% EMI%IEEE%'@

7 %7,718,317,0007E 75 (—F—754F : 6,139,370,000
BIT) « 28,0008 7T (T B — /\EE : 201,000 7T) «
158,107,0008 70 (—F—/ 4 | #) . 1,594,917,00075
70 (CE—/K 4 ©1,698,933,00057T) « 30,445,000
Bt (CTE—/REF | 8) X16,247,000870 (ZF—X
EE 17,065,000 70) 2 ERBHEIE. Y1z, HBMX

fm. WEYZE. BmMAREENET . ARE
F%Zﬁ%ﬁiﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬂ GFE MBI N AE
BETRRSNELECNRERAEERETHBER
B 2 RE LR VE I,

AREBE TIRT REMERR ZHRPARS,
Bit, WBARRNEE THEEMBLER R-F
—tEF=HF=+—H, HBX TEHG&%%?K
R, BUWEERMEMBITRN. AEBSETEE
HEHRON, FERREE RS ﬁﬁ%%%%%&
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 32. AR (E 25
(i) Convertible bonds issued on 5 February 2013 (the () RZE—=FE_BRHASFfTZzABERKRES(ZE

“February 2013 Convertible Bonds")

The Company issued 1,202,000,000 February

2013 Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.68 each (subject to
antidilutive adjustments) on 5 February 2013 for a total
proceed of HK$1,202,000,000 (the principal amount).
The maturity date is the twelfth anniversary of the date
of issue of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds (the
"Maturity Date”). The February 2013 Convertible Bonds
entitle the holders to convert them into ordinary shares
of the Company at any time commencing on the date
of issue of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds and

up to the close of business on a day no later than seven
days prior to the Maturity Date (both days inclusive). If
the convertible bonds have not been converfed, fhey will
be redeemed on the Maturity Date at the face value of
February 2013 Convertible Bonds. The Company, from
the fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the February
2013 Convertible Bonds, may redeem the convertible
bonds in whole or in part, at princip0| and interest of 5%
per annum accrued for the remaining period from early
redemption date to the maturity date. The proceeds of
the February 2013 Convertible Bonds were allocated
into two components, debt and equity elements on initial
recognition. The fair value of the equity component

is HK$1,029,614,000 and the fair value of the debt
component which is determined using the effective
interest rate of the debt component at approximately
18.1% per annum is HK$172,386,000.

With effect from 27 May 2013, the conversion price of
the February 2013 Convertible Bonds was adjusted from
HK$0.68 each to HK$6.80 each as a result of share
consolidation. With effect from 15 November 2013,

the conversion price of the February 2013 Convertible
Bonds was further adjusted from HK$6.80 per share to
HK$6.65 per share upon the completion of the general
mandate placing. Upon the completion of the specific
mandate placing, the conversion price of the February
2013 Convertible Bonds was further adjusted from
HK$6.65 per share to HK$6.55 per share.

Details of the adjustments to the conversion price as a
result of the share conso|ic|a’rion, the genero| mandate
placing and the specific mandate placing are set out
in announcements dated 24 April 2013, 15 November
2013 and 16 December 2013, respectively.
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

0

(ii)

Convertible bonds issued on 5 February 2013 (the
“February 2013 Convertible Bonds") (Continued)

On initial recognition, the transaction costs

incurred for the issuance of the convertible bonds
totalling HK$60,395,000 were allocated into

the debt component and the equity component of
HK$8,662,000 and HK$51,733,000, respectively, in

proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.

Convertible bonds issued on 16 December 2013 (the
"December 2013 Convertible Bonds")

The Company issued 299,942,350 December 2013
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an

initial conversion price of HK$8.23 each (subject to
anti-dilutive adjustments) on 16 December 2013 for

a total proceed of HK$299,942,350 (the principal
amount). The maturity date is on 5 February 2025. The
December 2013 Convertible Bonds entitle the holders
to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time commencing on the date of issue of the
December 2013 Convertible Bonds and up to the close
of business on a day no later than seven days prior to 5
February 2025 (both days inclusive). If the December
2013 Convertible Bonds have not been converted,

they will be redeemed on 5 February 2025 at the face
value of the December 2013 Convertible Bonds. The
Company, from 5 February 2018, may redeem the
December 2013 Convertible Bonds in whole or in part,
at principal and interest of 5% per annum accrued for
the remaining period from early redemption date to 5
February 2025. The proceeds of the December 2013
Convertible Bonds were allocated into two components,
debt and equity elements on initial recognition. The
equity element is presented in equity heading convertible
bonds reserve. The December 2013 Convertible Bonds
have been valued as at 16 December 2013 on the basis
carried out at that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The fair value of the equity component
is HK$252,551,000 and the fair value of the debt
component which is determined using the effective
interest rate of the debt component af opproximofe|y
18.5% per annum is HK$47,391,000.
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30. AJ AR RS (18)

0
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(ii) Convertible bonds issued on 16 December 2013 (the
"December 2013 Convertible Bonds”) (Continued)
On initial recognition, the transaction costs
incurred for the issuance of the convertible bonds
totalling HK$12,408,000 were allocated into the
debt component and the equity component of
HK$1,960,000 and HK$10,448,000, respectively, in

proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.

(iii) Convertible bonds issued on 8 January 2015 (the
“January 2015 Convertible Bonds")
The Company issued 755,300,000 January 2015
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an
initial conversion price of HK$3.00 each (subject to
anti-dilutive adjustments) on 8 January 2015 for a
total proceed of HK$755,300,000 (the principal
amount). The maturity date is on 5 February 2025.
The January 2015 Convertible Bonds entitle the holders
to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time commencing on the date of issue of the
January 2015 Convertible Bonds and up to the close
of business on a day no later than seven days prior to
5 February 2025 (both days inclusive). If the January
2015 Convertible Bonds have not been converted,
they will be redeemed on 5 February 2025 at the face
value of the January 2015 Convertible Bonds. The
Company, from 5 February 2018, may redeem the
January 2015 Convertible Bonds in whole or in part,
at principal and interest of 5% per annum accrued for
the remaining period from early redemption date to
5 February 2025. The proceeds of the January 2015
Convertible Bonds were allocated into two components,
debt and equity elements on initial recognition. The
equity element is presented in equity heading convertible
bonds reserve. The January 2015 Convertible Bonds
have been valued as at 8 January 2015 on the basis
carried out at that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The fair value of the equity component
is HK$629,747,000 and the fair value of the debt
component which is determined using the effective
interest rate of the debt component at approximately
19.9% per annum is HK$125,553,000.

On initial recognition, the transaction costs

incurred for the issuance of the convertible bonds
totalling HK$27,915,000 were allocated into the

debt component and the equity component of
HK$4,640,000 and HK$23,275,000, respectively, in

proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 32. AJ AR B (18)
The movements of the debt component of the February BE &S FF=-_B=1t—HNM_B—T&=4
2013 Convertible Bonds, the December 2013 Convertible —t+t—HIEFEE_E—=F"_F0BKkEs _=
Bonds and the January 2015 Convertible Bonds for the year —=F+_BrREsE~L_E—hFT Aok
ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 are set out below: B ERES D BB A .

February 2013 | December 2013 | January 2015

Convertible Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds
:E,E

J —H
FHRES | PBRRES | TBRRES BEt
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FET it I i
At 1 April 2015 N _E—hFNE—H 226,667 56,547 126,089 409,303

el B BT B

Effective inferest expense for the year MEERTREEREAR 40,955 10,440 95,137 76,532

capitalised in the hotel under development ZFERNEEFERAE
R-E—R"E=A

At 31 March 2016 —+-R 267,622 66,987 151,226 485,835
Effective inferest expense for the year MEBTREERER
= 48,354 12,369 30,149 90,872
capitalised in the hotel underdevelopment L ENBEBER S
AT E— =
At 31 March 2017 ﬁl\\;;_gi_ﬁ 315,976 79,356 181,375 576,707
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION 33, EEFRIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) RAEENMUETFECHDACETZRLRIEEE (B
recognised and movements thereon during the current and =) U BEEST
prior years:

Accelerated

tax Tax

depreciation losses Total
R

NHRITE RIBEIE #REt
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Fax|  FEE| B
At 1 April 2015 A—E—RAEMA—H 1,008 (1,008) .
Charge (credit) to profit or loss RIBEER GEA) 1,780 (1,780) -

RTE—RF=A

At 31 March 2016 -1 A 12,788 (12,788) -
(Credit) charge to profit or loss RI|x G A) 0kR (1,221) 1,221 -
At 31 March 2017 \:f ;lcfﬁ R 1,567 (11,567) _
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated IR R RAENEIMES, MEEARTEE &
statement of financial position, the above deferred tax assets &%ﬁa%?ﬁfﬁo
and liabilities have been offset.
As at 31 March 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of RIB—EF=B=+—H, AEEERIHHERE
HK$786,320,000 (2016: HK$748,455,000) available }8518786,320,00078 7T (— 5 — /1 4F : 748,455,000
for offsetting against future taxable profits. A deferred B7T) B B LUK IR R IR FERRAR 2. 7t iR EsIR
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses of 70,105,00078 7T (Z&F—7~4F | 77,502,00078 1) B0
HK$70,105,000 (2016: HK$77,502,000). No deferred SEERIAE Eo Hﬂﬁﬂiﬁ%ﬁ@mﬂ%j&mﬂ R, B
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining I 4 5 TR ER AR TE 5 18716,215,0008 75 (5 — /N4 ¢
tax losses of HK$716,215,000 (2016: HK$670,953,000) 670,953,00078 70) HESR A ELERIAE Eo E@Jﬁﬁfr“
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The TB 518 7] T~ (R B a8,
unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
As at 31 March 2017, the Group has deductible temporary R _E— JCEE B=+—H, x&EEHE256329,000
difference of HK$256,329,000 (2016: HK$216,015,000). BT (2B —7RF | 216,015,000/ 7T) AIHORRE R &
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation Ao EEﬁAZ_jKT e B ER AT AR E R E
to such temporary difference as it is not probable that BIEIRIN 2 B, SO Eps2E {0 RE RF = HERR
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible AIEEIRTEE 7o
temporary difference can be utilised.
In addition, there are no undistributed earnings of the PRC s, R_E—tEN_E—FRNF=A=+—H,
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2017 and 2016. v g enlEal N N e SN e
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34, BRAK

Number of
ordinary shares
at HK$2.00 Amount
per share G|
SR2.00757T HK$ 000
EERRNEE THET
Authorised: TR &
S _f AFEMB—H.
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 2017 —NENTZEFE—EF  2,500,000,000 5,000,000
=A=+-8
Issued and fully paid: BT REE
RZE—RFMB—H.
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and 2017 TEREAIE—EF 920,867,010 1,841,734
—A=1+—H
35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 35. RERR1ESTEY
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (a) AR j Eﬁﬁx*@ stE|
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme () —EEAFHERETE
On 7 September 2005, the Company adopted RIZBERAFNELH, ALEHKN—IEE
a share option scheme (the "2005 Share Option st (S AFERESTEL), UE
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentive or HRFSHAEB N EAIRERBIEHEER
reward to any employees, executives or officers, ZAEEFEAIRERE CERRES. 17
directors of the Group or any invested entity and ABHEREBE. EEFEMARERBE LA
any consultant, adviser or agent of any member %l&ﬁﬁk S /N B AR E RS 2 BB
of the Group or any invested entity, who have BAAWRE (EERATY) RIEER TR
contributed or will contribute to the growth and @d‘Ho FHEIE B H BB+ 5.
deve|opmen’r of the Group or any invested entity (the
“Eligible Person”). The Scheme will remain in force
for a period of ten years from that date.
Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company BIEFTE, AR EZIREREAEER
may at their discretion grant options to any Eligible ATRHERE, SiHEnRHcBEBRIES
Person to subscribe for shares in the Company. FZM.008 T B, ANEIEENIEE
Consideration to be paid on each grant of option EFEE M EBITER, MEEEMBEL TR
is HK$1.00. The directors of the Company may at BERFTEIEM B ARt 5. 1THEEHEA
their discretion determine the specific exercise period RNEIBEZUTNIRSEMERE ! Kd\%( )*E
which should expire in any event no later than ten B LEmRANAERFT < RBEE Ra (i) A2
years from date of adoption of the Scheme. The R 17 2 E B
exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company and will be at least the higher of: (i) the
subscription price as is permissible under Listing
Rules from time to time; and (i) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. BERRHE

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (a) =N
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) 0)

All the then outstanding share options granted
under the 2005 Share Option Scheme continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the

terms of the 2005 Share Option Scheme.

Details of movements in the share options of the
Company granted under the 2005 Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2017 are
as follows:

Nurmber of shares of the Company to ’
issuied upon exercise of the share options the Company's
i shares

immediately
QOutstanding | Granted during | Lapsed during Qutstanding | Exercise price d Exercise
at14.2016 the year the yea

Bt ()

NEI BRI (18)
_EEHFEREE (B)

BiE —EE L FBERESIIRIMNERH
RMIEZ A BREREIBET NP RE—
SR D FBRESTE 2 RRIT .

BB tEZ A=+ ALEEANT
R BT E RS RIS 7 R
BN T

be Closing price of

r . per share period

T8

Directors 5
1279013
Stephen Hung “E-= 3,600,000 3,600,000 680 645 N‘ie]
HKE FAL-R iz
197013 Note]
Peter Lee Coker Jr e 3,600,000 3,600,000 680 645 M%%
tA+ZH
1279013
Lau Ko Yuen Tom “5-= 3,600,000 3,600,000 680 645 Note
127013 Note]
Walter Creig Poveer “E—= 3,600,000 3,600,000 680 645 M%
tA+ZH :
. 1279013
J%’%‘gg““ “E-= 360,000 360,000 680 645 NM%
tAt+H
197013
giﬁ%‘“k Fon “E—= 360,000 360,000 680 645 %’g
tA+ZH
‘ 1979013
- 360,000 360,000 680 s
- tA+2H
127013 Note]
Francis Goutenmacher “5-c% 360,000 360,000 680 645 M%]
tA+H
e 15,840,000 15,840,000
INE
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. BBRRFESTEI (8)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) mNFIEERRESTE (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —EEAFERESE (B

Nurmber of shares of the Company to be Closing price of

issuied upon exercise of the share options the Company's
shares

immediately
Qutstanding | Granted during | Lapsed during Qutstanding | Exercise price before date Exercise

Name of grantee Date of grant at14.2016 the year the year at 313.2017 per share of grant

i .
m5-H =+-8
BLES wrinl | Enme | smkn|  wRee| SGeE

Employees (In aggregate) S (&5t)
12.7.2013

“R-cf 3,600,000 - - 3600000 680 645 %g
tB+CH
1279013
%= 400,000 . - 400000 680 645 %g;
tA+-H 5
1279013
8= 900,000 . - 900,000 680 645 %g;
tA+H
127.9013
5Tk 1160,000 - (50,000) 1,010,000 680 645 Note 4
- 2!
tB+-H
127.9013
—FcF 1150,000 - - 150,000 680 645 %22
tB+ZH ;
12'720]37 Note 6
—F—=F 460,000 - - 460000 660 o5
tB+H
127,901 fo
127.9013 7;Y§£
%§+E§ 138,000 - - 138000 650 645 tRt-pz
“5tx
tA+-H
309903 "
“F=% 688,000 - - 688000 690 689 e
NB=t+H
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. BBRRFESTEI (8)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) mNFIEERRESTE (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —EEAFERESE (B

Nurmber of shares of the Company to be Closing price of

issuied upon exercise of the share options the Company's
shares

immediately
Qutstanding | Granted during | Lapsed during Qutstanding | Exercise price before date Exercise

Name of grantee Date of grant at14.2016 the year the year at 313.2017 per share of grant

R_F—E i +E
MA—-H =1+-H
it H A HATR | ERRH | FRREM| BATE| ERTEE

15102013 N
“8-= 989,000 ; - 989,000 810 793 M%e
+B+1H
1870014 Nt
“E-mE 999,000 ; - 929,000 680 598 ﬁég
tA+N\H
1649015
“E-1E 401,000 ; ; 401,000 680 087 ';‘f;g
MA+75H ’

Sub-total

. 9,415,000 - (50000) 965000

NGt

Other Participants (In aggregate) Eft 2 EE (51)
12.7.9013
5= 1150,000 ; - 1150000 680 645 %’é;
tA+-R :
12.7.9013
- = 450,000 : - 450000 680 645 Nﬁ:
tA+=H ’
19.7.9013
- e 260,000 ; - 260,000 680 645 %’éﬂ
tA+-8 i
0839014
- fe12
—E-mE 112,000 : : 112,000 8592 897 NM§E£] )
—A-+/N\B i

S“E*““' 1,972,000 . - 1972000

NGt

27,227,000 | (150,000)] 27,077,000
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. BERR ST (1)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) RN EIEBERXMESTE (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —EFERFERETE (B)
Details of movements in the share options of the BHE_S—"F=-B=1t—HILEFEAXRNE
Company granted under the 2005 Share Option RIE —EE R FRERIET8)I% H 2 BB s
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2016 are BT -
as follows:

Number of shares of the Company to be Closing price of
issued upon exercise of the share options the Company’s
V. NUN=IE 7 [ shares
immediafe|y
Lapsed during | Outstanding |  Exercise price before date Exercise
Name of grantee Date of grant 4. the year at 31.3.2016 per share of grant period
o :
Rt B 11 FRE x| SROEE W3 1704
HK$
BT
Directors &5
19.7.9013
Stehen Hurg “E-= 3,600,000 - - 3600,000 680 645 Note
KBS tA1-A [iEa
19.7.9013 o
Pefer Lee Coker ). “E-=F 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 680 645 o
£A+2E e
1979013
%EQ};Y“Q”' Tom —E= 3,600,000 - - 3600,000 680 645 ng
= tB+=H
1979013 -
Walter Craig Power = 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 680 645 o
£A+-H fE
, 1279013
%‘gh‘“ E-=F 360,000 - - 360,000 680 645 %’fg
tA+=H ’
1272013
bfj;;“k Far “E-CF 360,000 - - 360000 680 6.45 Nofe!
, 1279013
2;@9“”” Bue g = 360,000 - - 30,000 680 645 ';‘T’f;
= tE+-H b
19.7.9013 Noe]
Frondis Goutenmacher ~ —Z—= 360,000 - - 360,00 680 645 o
£A+2R i
o 15,840,000 : - 15840000
It
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. FERRAEETE (18)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) RNFIFERESTE (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —ESHFERETE (8)

Number of shares of the Company to be Closing price of
i i i the Company's
shares
immedic‘re|y
Lapsed during | Outstanding |  Exercise price before date Exercise
Name of grantee the year at 31.3.2016 per share of grant period

B
s

Employees (In aggregate) S (&5t)
12.7.2013

= 3,600,000 . - 3,600,000 680 645 NM%
tA+-H :
127.0013 Nefe
2= 800,000 - (400,000) 400,000 680 645 ore
tB+ZH lhE)
1279013 Note3
“E—= 900,000 . . 900,000 6.80 6.45 ore
tA+H s
127.0013 Nofe 4
E=F 1,160,000 . - 160,000 680 6.45 ore
tA+A Pzt
127.0013 Note
g8 150,000 - - 1,150,000 6.80 645 ore
tA+-AH fiEts
1279013 Noto§
E-=F 460,000 . . 460,000 680 645 ore
tA+A Hizs
127.9014 fo
127,903 o
- 138,000 . . 138,000 680 645 oo ok
tﬁ + — E' tﬁ +— E' £
- Btk
tA+-H
3099013 Note
“E--F 847,000 . (159,000) 688,000 690 6.89 ore
AA=+H fizE7
15102013 Note &
“E-= 289,000 - - 089,000 810 793 o
+A+%A fif&E8
1870014 Note 9
“E-mE 229,000 - - 229000 680 598 o
tA+/NH fifzto
16.49015 Nete [0
"I - 401,000 - 401,000 680 287 o
MmE-+5~H IfiEE0
/Sﬁ%m“' 9573000 401000 (559,000) 9415000
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. BBRRFESTEI (8)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) mNFIEERRESTE (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —EEAFERESE (B

Number of shares of the Company to be Closing price of
isstied upon exercise of the share options the Company’s
] shares

immediately

Lapsed during | Outstanding |  Exercise price before date Exercise

Name of grantee Date of grant : the year the year at 313.2016 per share period

‘ &
ey | ErEw : | waE| s

Other Participants (In aggregate) ELft1 2612 (B51)

12.7.2013

_ t

BTk 1,270,000 - (120000)  1150,000 680 645 %%;
tB+-H ;
10.7.9013
- 450,000 ; - 450000 680 645 NM?;
tB+-H 7
19.7.9013
8= 260,000 ; - 260,000 680 645 ';;’*f{ﬂ
tE+ZH ;
9839014
E-mE 112,000 . . 119,000 859 897 %;E
=A_+/\H

Sub-total

it 9,092,000 - (120000) 1972000

| 97,505,000 401,000 (679,000)] 27,227,000
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. BERRHEETE (18)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) mNEEERESTE (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —EEAFBERETE (B
Notes: BOEE

The share options shall vest in 3 fronches, as

to one-third on 12 July 2013, as to a further
one-third upon topping out of the hotel under
development on the Cotai Strip of Macau and
as to the final one-third upon opening of the
hotel under development on the Cotai Strip of
Macau. The share options are exercisable from
the dates on which the share options are vested
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

- The share options shall vest in 3 fronches, as

to one-third on 12 July 2014, as to a further
one-third on 12 July 2015 and as to the final
one-third on 12 July 2016. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 8 fronches, as to
10%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 10%, 10%, 15% and 10% on
31 May 2013, 31 August 2013, 30 September
2013, 1 April 2014, 30 September 2014, 31
January 2016, 31 March 2016 and 31 December
2016, respectively, subject to the fulfilment of
certain vesting conditions. The share options

are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are Fuh‘i”ed, but
in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

. The share options shall vest in 7 fronches, as

to 15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15% and 10% on 31
August 2013, 1 April 2014, 31 December 2014,
31 March 2015, 31 January 2016, 31 March 2016
and 31 December 2016, respectively, subject

to fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The
share options are exercisable for 18 months from
the dates on which certain vesting conditions are
fulfilled, but in any event, exercisable until 11 Ju|y
2017 (both dates inclusive).
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%k%“*ﬂ%f,iﬁ Z%&%K:

—OFECA+HER, BN=n—x
%W@wa AFEERA+T E%%,
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

5.

The share options shall vest in 4 fronches, as to
25%, 25%, 25% and 25% on 31 August 2013,

1 April 2014, 31 August 2014 and 31 January
2016, respectively, subject to fulfilment of
certain vesting conditions. The share options
are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are Fuh‘i”ed, but
in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 fronches,

as to 30%, 30% and 40% on 31 May 2013,

3] December 2014 and 31 March 2016,
respectively, subject to fulfilment of certain
vesting conditions. The share options are
exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are Fu|1ci||eo|, but
in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 fronches, as to
one-third on 30 September 2014, as to a further
one-third on 30 September 2015 and as to the
final one-third on 30 September 2016. The
share options are exercisable from the aforesaid
vesting dates until 29 September 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 frcmches, as to
one-third on 15 October 2014, as to a further
one-third on 15 October 2015 and as to the final
one-third on 15 October 2016. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 14 October 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 frcmches, as

to one-third on 18 July 2015, as to a further
one-third on 18 July 2016 and as to the final
one-third on 18 July 2017. The share options are
exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 17 July 2018 (both dates inclusive).
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

0]

2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

10. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as
to one-third on 16 April 2016, as to a further
one-third on 16 April 2017 and as to the final
one-third on 16 April 2018. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 15 April 2019 (both dates inclusive).

11. The share options shall vest in 2 tranches,
as to 75% and 25% on 15 January 2014 and
31 December 2015, respectively, subject to
fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The
share options are exercisable for 18 months from
the dates on which certain vesting conditions are
fulfilled, but in any events, exercisable until 11
July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

19, The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as
to one-third on 28 March 2015, as to a further
one-third on 28 March 2016 and as to the final
one-third on 28 March 2017. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 27 March 2018 (both dates inclusive).

2015 Share Option Scheme

On 11 August 2015 (the "Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
2015 Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentive or reward to the Eligible Person.
The 2015 Share Option Scheme will remain in force
for a period of ten years from the Adoption Date.

Under the 2015 Share Option Scheme, the directors
of the Company may at their discretion grant options
to any Eligible Person to subscribe for shares in the
Company. Consideration to be paid on each grant of
option is HK$1.00. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company and will be at least
the higher of: (i) the subscription price as is permissible
under Listing Rules from time to time; and (ii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. BERRHE
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (@) &R
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (ii)

Any options granted pursuant to the 2015 Share
Option Scheme will be exercised over a period
of not more than 10 years from the date of grant
of the relevant options (subject to the provisions
for early termination contained in the 2015 Share
Option Scheme).

The maximum number of shares that may initially
be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2015 Share Option Scheme

and any other share option scheme(s) adopted

by the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at its Adoption Date, i.e. 92,086,701
shares of the Company. Subject to the approval

of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting, the limit may be refreshed to 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting. Notwithstanding the
forgoing, the maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2015 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
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 E_E—tF=A=1T—HLFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. BERRHEETE (18)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) RN EEERRFESTE (18)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (iy —B—AFEBEBRETE (B

The maximum number of shares of the Company

in respect of which options may be granted to

each Eligible Person under the 2015 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including both exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares

of the Company in issue from time to time unless
such grant has been duly approved by shareholders
of the Company in general meeting at which the
Eligible Person and his associate (as defined in

the Listing Rules) abstained from voting. Options
granted to a substantial shareholder and/or an
independent non-executive director of the Company
or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess
of 0.1% of the total number of the Company in issue
and have an aggregate value exceeding HK$5
million must be approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting in advance.

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FE—tHF=A=1T—HIFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. FERRAEETE (18)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) RNFIFERESTE (18)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (iy —EB—AFEBEBRETE (B
Details of movements in the share options of the BHE_E—CtHF=A=1+—HILEFEARH
Company granted under the 2015 Share Option RIE—E—HFERESE RN BRES
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2017 are BT -
as follows:

Closing price of
the Company's
shares
immediately
Qutstanding | Granted during ' Exercise price before date Exercise
Name of grantee at14.2016 the year per share period

s

Directors and their spouses EENEER
18.9.2015

Sfeghen Hung % f& Note |
N = 9,207,500 - 9,207,500 300 2.28 =
18.9.2015 Nofe
Peter Lee Coker Jr. “E-1f 9,207,500 = 9,207,500 3.00 298 Fish
nA+TAH
18.9.9015
%ﬁ;‘}%yue”’ Tom . 9,207,500 - 9207500 300 298 '}%
S =R IN=
18.9.2015 Note
Walter Craig Power _E-1f 9,207,500 - 9,207,500 3.00 298 e
NA+NHE
) 18.9.2015
Jrs hi “3rE 816,000 © 86000 300 208 Pt
; RAHIE D
]6 9 2015
SSjﬁc,bé“k i hE 816,000 - 816,000 300 298 NM.}’*%}
T hﬁ+ﬂH :
lain Ferguson Bruce 1692013 Note1
S “E-RE 816,000 - 816,000 300 2.96 st
= AE+/\H ’
18.9.2015 Nofe
Francis Goutenmacher “E-IE 816,000 - 816,000 3.00 9298 e
RA+NE :
18.9.2015
%"”é"k Chung Johnny “E-1E 816,000 - 816,000 3,00 298 %’%}
= RAHIE :
Deborah Alejondra Valdez 153 QOlé
Perez (spouse of Stephen Hung) = R 180,000 ) 180,000 300 908 Note |
Deborah A|e|ondr0 Valdez Perez = H _I_ ﬁ A ' ' ‘ : i)
(KBRS
Subfotol 4,090,000 - 4,090,000
s
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BE_FE—tHF=A=1T—HIFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. FERRAEETE (18)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) RNFIFERESTE (18)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) ZB—hFERETE (B

Number of shares of the Company fo be Closing price of
issued upon exercise of the share options the Company's
shares
immediately

Qutstanding | Granted during Qutstanding | Exercise price before date Exercise
at14.2016 at 31.3.2017 per share of grant

A
L

Iﬂ Eﬁ?
1718

Employees (In aggregate) S (&5t)
18.9.2015

“E-RE 19,900,000 - 19,200,000 300 296 ng
=RwAN=
1539016 e
“ENE §75,000 - 875,000 300 206 ﬂ%
ZA+tzd ’
899016 N
TE-AE - 2100000 92100,000 314 36 %ég
AANH
-
ZTQFM| 90075000 2100000 99175,000
)
Other Participants (In aggregate) ELft 282 (51)
18.9.9015 e
“E-RE 1,290,000 - 1290000 300 296 @%
AB+/H
S“E”“' 1,290,000 - 190,000
INGT

| 62,455,000 100, 64,555,000
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BHE_E—tE-H=F+—HILEE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. BERR ST (1)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) RN EIEBERXMESTE (18)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (iy —EB—AFEBEBRETE (B
Details of movements in the share options of the HE_E—NEF-A=t+—HLEEEARALT
Company granted under the 2015 Share Option RIE—E—HFERESE RN BRES
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2016 are BT -
as follows:

Number of shares of the Company fo be Closing price of
issued upon exercise of the share options the Company's
3 shares
immediately
Granted during Qutstanding | Exercise price before date Exercise

Name of grantee ’ the year at 31.3.2016 per share of grant period

FRRL BAATE | SROEE Gl {7568

Directors and their spouses EENEER

Stephen H 169,200 Note
;;(BZ; ing “E-T1% - 9207500 9,207500 300 298 M%
A I=RVE
18.9.9015 o
Pefer Lee Coker Jr “E2-E% - 9207500 9207500 300 298 M;%
=R AV ’
189.2015
;E?E_Kf;y“e“' fom “E-1E - 9907500 9207500 300 298 ';E
o AB+I\R
18.9.9015 o
Walter Craig Pover “E-F% - 9207500 9207500 300 298 M;%
AB+N\R ’
, 189.2015
{%‘gih‘“ “E-5fF - 816,000 816,000 300 298 %’f;
. yI=R Ve ’
18.9.2015
;;CECk fel —2-%F - 816,000 816,000 300 298 ';_}’g
7 AA+AR
189.2015
loin Ferguson B fel
%;aig“”” fuee “E-TE - 816,000 816,000 300 298 NM}’%
- AB+N\R :
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BHE_ZE—tF="B=1+—HILFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. BBRRFESTEI (8)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) mNFIEERRESTE (18)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) —E—AFERESE (8B

Number of shares of the Company fo be Closing price of
issued upon exercise of the share options the Company's
shares
immediately

Granted during Qutstanding | Exercise price before date Exercise

Name of grantee the year at 31.3.2016 per share of grant

BB

18.9.9015 o
Francis Goutenmacher “E-T1E : 816,000 816,000 300 298 M;’%
hA+NR ’
18.9.0015
%ﬁgéd‘ Chrg Johmry — —g_ 7 . 816,000 816,000 300 208 ng
~ AB+/\H
Eebor(ah A|e|on{dsr(: VEHel: ) 153901 "
€16z \SpOse O JIEPENTUNG) — =50 : 180,000 180,000 300 206 o
Deborch Alejondra Valdez Perez — A+5A Mz
o) -
S“E'ml 4,090,000 41,090,000
gt
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BE_

E—tHF=B=+—HLEE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Employees (In aggregate) ES (A1)

35. FERRERTE (18)

(@) AR
(ii)

Granted during
the year

NEIEBBRR TR (18)

“E-LFBERESE (8

Closing price of
the Company's
shares
immediately
Qutstanding Exercise price before date Exercise

at 31.3.2016 per share period

cF

(4] fifE 7

18.9.2015 Note
“E-1E 19,200,000 19,200,000 300 298 M;’%
NB+N\R ’
1539016 -
B AE 875,000 875,000 300 908 M%
=A+taA ’

Sub-fotd 90075000 20,075,000

INGT

Other Participants (In aggregate) Eft1 2 E 2 (§5T)
18.9.015 o
“E-If 1290000 1,290,000 300 998 M%
nA+N\H ’

Sub-fotd 1990000 1,990,000

INGT

Notes:

1. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to
one-third on 18 September 2016, as to a further

one-third on 18 September 2017 and as to the
final one-third on 18 September 2018. The

share options are exercisable from the aforesaid

vesting dates until 17 September 2019 (both
dates inclusive).

2. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to
one third on 8 September 2017, as to a further

one-third on 8 September 2018 and as to the

final one-third on 8 September 2019. The share

options are exercisable from the aforesaid
vesting dates until 7 September 2020 (both
dates inclusive).
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BE_E—tF=A=1+—HILEFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 35. BERRHE

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (@) &R
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (ii)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, 2,100,000
share options were granted to employees

on 8 September 2016. The fair value of the
options determined at the date of grant using

the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model was
HK$2,066,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, 61,400,000
and 1,055,000 share options were granted on 18
September 2015 and 15 March 2016, respectively,
to the directors of the Company, employees of the
Group and advisers which perform similar services
as employees, of which 40,910,000 share options
were granted to the directors of the Company on
18 September 2015 and 180,000 share options
were granted to the spouse of a director of the
Company on 15 March 2016. The fair values of

the options determined at the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model were
HK$35,986,000 and HK$400,000, respectively.

The fair value was calculated using the
Black-Scholes Option Pricing model. The inputs into
the model were as follows:

B8 ()
\EI AR B (1)
— B REMREEE (D)

BHE_ESE—tCtFE=A=1+—HIFE,
2,100,000 BB EE R = —/RENA/N\
HETEE. REHBBRFNBRDR - &
B EERAEECEBRENTES
2,066,000 710

HEE—NF-A=F+—HIEEFE,
61,400,00017 Kz1,055,00017 BE B HE 7 B A —
E—FFNB+/\BNR-_FB—FFRFEF=A+hA
BEFANBESR. AEERSKRER (U
BESMIRMEMIRTS) , Er140,910,0009
ERERN_S—AFNB+HN\HEBETALNF
E=E, NI80,000DEBRIEN _E—"F=
BTRAABEFALNG —LEFCRB, N E
HRBAER NS - TR EERAE
TE o BB TE N B 79 51 A335,986,00078 7T M
400,0005 710

RNEEDHFARNR - SRR EER
8. RN ZBARBBNT ¢

18 September 15 March 8 September
2015 2016 2016

Closing share price as at the date of grant REEB R WHmE

Exercise price TEE
Expected life TERAEF AR
Expected volatility LN
Risk-free rate e )
Expected dividend yield TRHARR B X
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 E_E—tF=A=1T—HLFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model has been
used to estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables and
assumptions may result in changes in the fair value
of the options.

An amount of HK$18,116,000 (2016:
HK$20,736,000) of share based payment expenses
has been recognised during the year ended 31 March
2017 with corresponding increase in share option
reserve. Included in the amount of HK$18,116,000
(2016: HK$20,736,000) of share-based payment
expenses, an amount of HK$2,429,000 (2016:
HK$3,115,000) of share-based payment expenses
was recognised as expense in profit or loss and an
amount of HK$15,687,000 (2016: HK$17,621,000)
was capitalised in hotel under development for their
contributions to the hotel project.

(b) Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments
Limited ("Falloncroft’)
On 5 February 2013, the Company completed its
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Falloncroft
from an independent third party for a cash consideration
of HK$2,000,000,000 (the "Acquisition”) in which
Falloncroft becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Upon the completion of the Acquisition,
Falloncroft adopted a share option scheme and granted
options that would, for a subscription and capital
contribution, in cash, of up to HK$600,000,000,
entitle Chief Wise Limited ("Chief Wise"), an affiliate
of Mr Stephen Hung (joint chairman and the
executive director of the Company), to subscribe for
600,000,000 shares of Falloncroft. Chief Wise may
assign these options to the management of Falloncroft
as it sees fit.
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35. BBARAEETE (F8)
(o) ANFEIBRRIESTE (18)

~

(i) —F—hFEBERESE (8

B85 - SFEHTHREBRIN ARG E
RIEC RN FE. BLUGIEBRELTEZE
ERBRDEBEES CREMGFE. 28K
RERBE I EHERBL T ENE,

HE_S—tFE=-FB=+—HIFEEEmMRU
1 2 BB 2 (TR 2 2 #018,116,0005 7T (5

—7N4F 1 20,736,000787T) , HEFEBANGT AFERR
@@%f@o DU 23 Bt 2 (S 7N 5E 5218,116,00075
7T (CE—/K4F 1 20,736,0007870) B4, A2
2429000%7‘5(fﬂ 7NAE 13,115,000 7T) &
MBnAERNRBEZERERERARS,
T 73 #015,687,00078 7T (ZF —/54F 117,621,000
Bt) 2 UMD AER N EREEEE
B FERTERPAECER.

Falloncroft Investments Limited (MFalloncroftl) 2 88
B AEST 2
N_E—=F"HFAH, ARETHE—%
1% = 5 WhHEFalloncroft2 B AR 1E, IREB(LE
752,000,000,00078 7T (MU HEETE)) , 1R,
Falloncroftit AR NBl E BB LBl MRFEMU
FBEIETR, FolloncroftERiN T BE AR AESHE 3% T B8
AeHE, ERLUIRE R & H & & %600,000,000
78 71 BB F Chief Wise Limited (I Chief Wise ], 2<%
BlBEETERATES ARG RECHBR
&)) 5888600,000,000&Falloncrofth 17,2 #EF
Chief Wise PJ 12 R 2 B B a2 SR RIB1EZE T
Falloncroftz B2 &,
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments
Limited ("Falloncroft”) (Continued)
The scheme was structured such that the option holders
on exercise, will always have to pay the same pro
rata amount (up to the lesser of 10% of the equity
capital (including shareholders’ loan) of Falloncroft or
HK$600,000,000) for the shares of Falloncroft as
the Company pays for its interest in Falloncroft. Holders
of the options subscribing for Falloncroft Shares, on
exercise of the options, have the right to require the
Company fo purchase their respective holdings of the
shares of Falloncroft in exchange for an allotment
and issue of new ordinary shares of the Company,
determined based on a Formu|c|r, with details set out in
a circular of the Company dated 5 January 2013.

As Mr Stephen Hung is the joint chairman and the
executive director of the Company, the fair value of
the above share options are measured at fair value
and accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 2 with
reference to the valuation at grant date, 5 February
2013, carried out by an independent valuer. The fair
value of services to be received from Mr Stephen
Hung as a director is determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with

a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve) of Falloncroft which represents an increase in
non-controlling interests in the Group's consolidated
financial statements. An amount of HK$1,150,000
(2016: HK$5,785,000) share-based payment expense
has been recognised during the year ended 31 March
2017 with a corresponding increase in non-controlling

interests as the share options are granted by a subsidiary

of the Company.

35. BERG AT EI (18)
(b) Falloncroft Investments Limited (TFalloncroftl) =2 f&

RE#EET 2 (18)

SHEIE TR, UEEBRERE ARTHER L
BIREMEE, AL EIZE R FalloncroftZ BRI
T8, 1% AR (1 BR & Falloncroftiz 10%A% 7
(CHERERER) £2600,000,000E T2 BRIEE) o
A R EE RS R 1T B SR B Falloncrofth 17 2 BE A%
BREABRERARN T%%ﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁz
Falloncrofth 7, AL EE KB T AN B HT &
i, BREGTERINFHR AL Tﬁﬁﬁj%fﬁ**
F—HABZBEH,

R KB R E AR NB CHEETEFRANTE
=, EAEREC N FENEREB I EEMR
BHHSF EI-E—=F"_FAH) ETZEE
BNTEE S, WIREEBMFHREERH5H
AR, MWHKEAE HEESBESRE AT
ENEREMELERECANTEETE, TiRE
AN FBIANRIE, FIRFEESR IDFalloncroftig

= (BRERR) , HERNAEERREHMBRES
;H“Hﬂ%éi“ﬂuo EEEAE%HREEEHZK N5 — RS

NERH, #E_F—tE=ZHBA=+—HLE
ﬁﬁéﬁu/uuﬁyf’ﬁﬁjﬁ%w%ﬁ%ﬁi@ 150,00035 7T
(CZ=E—/N4F 57850008 7T) , [AEHEELRINIE
R HERS,
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments (b) Falloncroft Investments Limited ([Falloncroftl) 2 f&
Limited ("Falloncroft”) (Continued) BRHEETE (18)
There are 3 tranches of shares to be issued, in which BT =S, RAIANR5IBE Bt
180,000,000 options are attached to each of Series A H180,000,00010 BE R #E, MmAFICHIB
and B, and 240,000,000 share options are attached 240,000,000 BBRGHE, N ERIBIE - &7 8
to Series C. The fair values were calculated using the A EEENTE, BRREHBIHNZER

35. FERREETE (18)

Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The inputs based NZEASBWOT -
on assumed vesting period into the models were as
follows:
Series A Series B Series C
REIA 5B RAIC
Weighted average share price of NEIRD 2 N0 = SE=
the shores of the Company iﬁ% HK$0.60 A7 HK$0.60 A7 HK$0.60 7T
Exercise price (Note) ITEE (M5 HK$0.68 &7t HK$0.68 &7t HK$0.68 & 7T
Expected volatility SR 49.95% 49.95% 49.95%
Expected dividend yield B REX Nil £ Nil Nil £
Expected life fastEH 5 years £ 5 years £F 5 years £F
Risk-free rate JEl-wilEs 0.591% 0.591% 0.591%
- ; ; A2/ B AR 5
Assumedl vef’rlng parteluzan e B éx]ga%ﬁ%%*ﬁ%z Immediately BIEF 29 months 1& B 41 months 18 B
of option RE B
Estimated fair value fhEt N T E HK$9,922,000 A7t HK$11,472,000 7T HK$15,709,000 &7t

Note: With effect from 27 May 2013, the exercise price
was adjusted from HK$0.68 to HK$6.80 as a

result of the share consolidation.
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35. BEAR R (H8)
(b) Falloncroft Investments Limited (TFalloncroftl) 2 &

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments

Limited ("Falloncroft”) (Continued)
* The vesting conditions for the 3 tranches of

share options are as follows:

Series A:  Completion of the sales and purchase
agreement for the acquisition of Falloncroft
in which the agreement was completed on 5
February 2013.

Series B:  Completion of the Acquisition and the roof
topping out in respect of the hotel under
development (refer to the hotel under
development as disclosed in note 14) (the

"Hotel").

Series C:  Completion of the condition stated at Series
B above and the opening of the casino
operated within the Hotel.

No options were granted, exercised or cancelled under
the share option scheme of Falloncroft during the years

ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

36. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE FINANCING
PLAN

(a) Share award scheme

On 6 September 2006, share award scheme was
adopted by the Company. The share award scheme
allows the Company to make bonus payments to
eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) by way
of the Company's shares acquired by and held through
an independent trustee until fulfilment of specified
conditions before vesting.

On 15 February 2014, shares with fair value of
HK$6,000,000 were awarded to an individual
consultant (the "Consultant”) for his contribution to the
hotel project in which the number of shares awarded
will be calculated at the market closing price on the
date of fulfilment of specified conditions rounded to
nearest whole trading lots (500 shares per lot). The

shares awarded shall vest in 5 tranches, as to 30%, 10%,

10%, 30% and 20% on 26 March 2014, 31 July 2014,
30 September 2015, 30 September 2015 and 30 June

2016, respectively, subject to certain vesting conditions.
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36. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE FINANCING
PLAN (Continued)

(a) Share award scheme (Continued)

On 19 February 2014, total of 588,500 shares of the
Company were awarded to a consultancy company
for their contributions to the hotel project. The shares
awarded shall vest in 5 tranches, as approximate to
20%, 20%, 20%, 20% and 20% on 26 March 2014,
31 July 2014, 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016 and 30 June
2016, respectively, subject to certain vesting conditions.

On 3 October 2014, total of 22,000,000 shares of the
Company were awarded to a consultancy company for
its contributions to the hotel project. The shares awarded
shall vest on 31 December 2014, subject to certain
vesting conditions.

On 23 November 2015, 2,100,000 and 1,130,000
shares of the Company were awarded to various
employees and advisers respectively for their
contribution to the hotel project. The shares awarded
shall vest in 2 tranches, as to 20% and 80% on 15
December 2015 and soft opening of the Company's
Macau hotel, respectively, subject to certain vesting
conditions.

These transactions were accounted for as equity-settled
share-based payment transactions in equity over the
vesting period based on the market price of the relevant
shares at the grant dates.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, share-based
payment expense of HK$3,250,000 (2016:
HK$5,584,000) was recognised over the vesting
period and capitalised in hotel under development with
corresponding increase in share award reserve for their
contributions to the hotel project.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, total of 1,537,500
(2016: 646,000) shares of the Company have been
vested upon the fulfilment of specified conditions.

Upon vesting and transfer to the awardees, the related
costs of the vested shares of HK$5,611,000 (2016:
HK$2,452,000) are credited to shares held for share
award scheme, and the related fair value of the vested
shares of HK$5,586,000 (2016: HK$1,246,000) are

debited to share award reserve.
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36. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE FINANCING
PLAN (Continued)

(b) Share financing plan
On 6 September 2006, share financing plan was
adopted by the Company. The share financing plan
allows eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) to borrow
funds from the Company or from a company within the
Group to acquire new or old shares of the Company on
a non-recourse basis with the subject shares pledged to
the Company as security subject always to connected
transaction and other relevant provisions under the
Listing Rules.

None of the eligible persons of the Group acquired any
of the Company's shares under the share financing plan
during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes the bank and other borrowings and
convertible bonds disclosed in notes 31 and 32, respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital

Ond reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As a part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

38. R TE
(o) £RE T E455)

2017 2016
—E—t% it A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FB7
Financial assets ERIEE
Loans and receivables (including cash and B FEMFRIA (B35 1R
cash equivalents) S NEIBEHEIER) 2,148,974 2.985,99)
Financial liabilities ETRIBE
Amortised cost [ =i N 6,379,828 5,148,832

(b) EREREEBIRREE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other debfors, amounts due from associates,

joint ventures, joint operations/other partners of joint
operations and subsidiaries of a shareholder, other loans
receivable, pledged bank deposits, short term bank
deposifs, bank balances and cqsh, trade and other
credi’rors, amounts due to associates, a joint venture,
joint operations/other partners of joint operations and a
subsidiary of a shareholder, loan from a subsidiary of a
shoreho|o|er, bank and other borrowings and convertible
bonds. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risks (currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. SRITE (@)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) EREEEEEBZRBUER (B)
(Continued)
Market risks 35 & b
(i) Currency risk () EEEE

Several subsidiaries of the Company have trade
and other debfors, short term bank deposi’rs, bank
balances and cash and trade and other creditors
denominated in foreign currencies, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities as at the reporting date are as

fO”OWS:

ARBEHENBABFEUNESBEUCE
7 MEMBUGRIA, BHRITER BT
BNIREUNE S REMENIIR, A%
B A SN AR

AEERBEAUNESBUCEREEN
ERaGEREENT -

2017 2016
—E—tE —E—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BEE
MOP pralalict 92,521 3,777
RMB NS 37,355 6,732
Liabilities aE
MOP pedaalics 7,201 8,463
RMB AR - 1,050
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation

of the RMB against Hong Kong dollars as MOP

is pegged to Hong Kong dollars. The following
table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2016:
5%) increase and decrease in RMB against Hong
Kong dollars. 5% (2016: 5%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% (2016: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease
in post-tax loss for the year where RMB strengthen
5% (2016: 5%) against Hong Kong dollars. For a
5% (2016: 5%) weakening of RMB against Hong
Kong dollars, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss and the balances below
would be negative.

RMB

AR

RIS MY 5E

38. £ T B (18)
(b) EREMGEIEEZEREE (B)

Mz ER (1)

() BEREE (B
RIS EE T, HAREETEAR
REARBRETINBAR. FXRFMHR
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PO BRSNS L [ 3 5 B i P Az U R 235% (T
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2017
—EF—tE

2016

—==_ =
—3= 7\

HK$'000
TET

HK$'000
FET

1,560 237

This is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on trade and other debtors, bank
balances and cash and trade and other creditors
denominated in RMB at the end of the reporting
period.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest

rate risk in relation to other loan receivable of
HK$7,000,000 (2016: Nil), other borrowing
of HK$300,000,000 (2016: Nil) and
convertible bonds of HK$576,707,000 (2016:
HK$485,835,000) as set out in notes 27, 31 and
39, respectively.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. R T8 (18)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) ©RER R EIEBEZEREBUER (B)
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) T‘E%)ﬂ[‘ﬁ (#8)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIZEE R (18)

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest

rate risk in relation to variable-rate other loans
receivable, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposifs, bank ba|onces, loan from a subsidiory ofa
shareholder and bank borrowings.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on fluctuation of the best lending rate
in Hong Kong, the banks’ cost of funds, HIBOR and
the benchmark lending rate as announced by the

People’s Bank of China.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
for variable-rate other loans receivob|e, loan from a
subsidiary of a shareholder and variable-rate bank
borrowings. Certain bank borrowings in which the
related interest expense is capitalised in the hotel
under development is not included in the interest rate
sensitivity analysis below. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2016: 50
basis points) increase or decrease in interest rates
for variable-rate other loans receivqb|e, loan from

a subsidiary of a shareholder and variable-rate
bank borrowings is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. After
the analysis performed by the management of the
Company, the 50 basis points change in interest
rates with all other variables held constant would not
have a significant effect on the Group's post-tax loss
for both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of prevailing market
interest rate on pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposits and bank balances. The Group
considered interest rate fluctuation on these bank

deposits and balances is insignificant.

Credit risk

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from:

the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position; and

the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed
in note 41.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each individual debtor at

the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

As at 31 March 2017, other than those financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum
exposure to credit risk, the Group's maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due fo failure to discharge an obligation by

the counterparties is arising from the deposits paid

for acquisition of property, plant and equipment as
disclosed in note 15(b).
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Due to the fact that there are only a few major property
developers in Hong Kong, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers. In view of
their credit standings, good payment record in the past
and long term relationships with the Group, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk
is not material. At the end of the reporting period, the
outstanding balances from the five largest customers,
which have been included in trade debtors and amounts
due from joint ventures, amounted to HK$432,219,000
(2016: HK$975,721,000) in aggregate, of which
the single largest customer represents approximately
13% (2016: 21%) of the total trade debtors and trade
balances of amounts due from joint ventures at the end
of the reporting period.

In addition, the Group's other loans receivable as at 31
March 2017 amounting to HK$35,542,000 (2016:
HK$48,000,000) (see note 27 for details) expose the
Group to concentration of credit risk. The directors of the
Company continue to monitor and assess the financial
status of the counterparties, and they believe the
exposure to credit risk on these balances is not significant
as the counterparties are of good financial position.

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts due
from associates, joint ventures, joint operoﬂons/ofher
partners of joint operations and subsidiaries of a
shareholder, the Group's exposure to credit risk arising
from default of the counterparties is limited as the
counterparties have good reputation and a good history
of repayment and the Group does not expect to incur a
significant loss for uncollected amounts due from these
counterparties.

The credit risk on deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment is limited as the
counterparties have good reputation.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because these
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than the above, the Group has no other
significanf concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance its operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$300,941,000, which causes the Group in
significant liquidity risk. Subsequent to the end of
reporting period, the Group has taken appropriate
measures as set out in note 1 to mitigate such liquidity

risk.

The following table details the Group's contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are ﬂoo’ring rates, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. £ T E (18)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) &Rl E Pz EIE B REBER
(Continued) (18
Liquidity risk (Continued) mENE & Rk (1)

On
Weighted demand Total Total

average or within - undiscounted carrying

interest rate cash flow amount

P N
N+H : —FME] N
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BT BT TET TET TET
A—F_ =
At 31 March 2017 ‘;“;_JECE—H
Trade and other creditors 25 R HBEMNE - 1360419 74,845 073238 1708502 1708502
Amount due to a joint venture E—BagtEE - 67 - - 67 67
ioi i ER AL AL
Amounts due o ]oml'r t')perqhons./ FENE E%?’%{E = i 13551 i i 13551 13551
other partners of joint operations (BHMBATE
Amount due to a subsidiary of BN—BRRZ—
mount due to a subsidiary of a F’Eﬁ/%\ﬂ};ﬁz i i 647 i i 647 647
shareholder b)UNGIE O
Loan from a subsidiary of —BRE B
- 7.0% 39,184 - - 39,184 32,000
sharcholder NFER '
Bank and other borrowings RTREMER 6.0% 931,049 81,655 3376143 47388847 3,948,354
Convertible bonds ol B 18.8% - - 208542 2218542 576,707
2,437917 156,500 5,867,923 8,462,340 6,379,828
Financial guarantee contract SREREN - 18,000 - - 18,000 -
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

38. R T E (18)
(b) &REMGEIEREREE (B)

nBEE AR (1)

On
demand Total Total
91 days -

Weighted

average or within undiscounted

carrying

interest rate 1 year cash flow amount
REEREE

—ENE] O | RE

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

TBTT T TER

vz | At
A+E s

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

A—F_ L=
At 31 March 2016 R=B-7%=R

S
Trade and other creditors B2 LEMEMNFE - 883,319 356,636 044787 1484740 1484742
Amounts due to associates N H=UNEIE 0 = 4,698 = 6,272 10,970 10,970
Amount due to a joint venture [ER -SSRt EIB - 49 - - 49 49
S ) Fgﬁééﬁ%%/ ? - : 115,948 - - 115,948 115,948
other partners of joint operations EBHMBHFIE
Amount due to a subsidiary of a Fﬁﬁ*%ﬂ?;ﬁzfﬁ ) 441 ) ) 441 441
shoreho\der MTJ%/A\ETFKIE
L°:hr;t';r2|§:r“b“di°ry ofo _ﬁgféég 7.0% - 30,014 - 3014 30000
Bank and other borrowings BAOREMES 3.6% 484,350 71908 9,840,842 3397100 5,090,847
Convertible bonds R ES 18.8% - - 2218540 2,218,542 485,835
1,488,805 460558 5310443 7959,806 548,832
Financial guarantee confract SREREN - 90,000 = = 90,000 =
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 E_E—tF=A=1T—HLFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. R T E (18)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) ©RER R EIEBEZERBUER (B)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEE SR (18)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or within 9O days” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2016, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted
to HK$578,070,000 and HK$425,600,000
respectively. Taking into account the Group's financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid within one year
in based on scheduled repayment dates of the loan

agreements.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis have been determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on a
discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant
inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk
of counterparties.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their corresponding fair values.

Financial asset and financial liability subject to
offsetting and enforceable contractual agreement
The Group currently has a legally enforceable right

to set off the other loan receivable at the amount of
HK$7,000,000 (2016: HK$22,000,000) and the
trade and retention payable to a related company
(2016: a subsidiary) of the counterparty at the amount
of HK$11,000,000 (2016: HK$27,000,000) at the
end of the reporting period, irrespective of whether
they are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position. The amounts recognised for the other
loan receivable do not meet the criteria for offsetting in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position
since the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is
only enforceable upon an event of default.
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E_E—CF=ZR=+—HLEE

39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the schemes
are separately held in funds under the control of trustees.
The cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents contributions payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions. At the end of the reporting period, there were
no forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the Group's
contributions becoming fully vested and which are available
to reduce the contributions payable by the Group in future
years.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. Under the
MPF Scheme, there will not be any forfeited contribution
available to reduce the contribution payable by the Group.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss represent
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at the rates
specified in the rules of the scheme.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tF=A=1+—HILEFE

39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
scheme for eligible employee in Macau. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the

scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in reftirement
benefit schemes organised by the local government
authority in The PRC. They are required to make certain
monthly contributions based on the local standard basic
salaries. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required

contributions under the schemes.

39. RINEFIFHE ()
FEESRFISERESRE DA EHIURIMKET
58, B EERBURAAEECEZEES
RALEDRFE, — BN, AEEFER
I RE . HANIHAKER B EE R,
WIZBERST 8 2 SR B EEHR B HEIPT Rz
TR,

AEE < HEK B AE 2 EAPEE BT EEE
B 2ORINETIE Bl REAREMBERLFIME
AXNETHER. AEERAREBEIFLREMR
, HERITRAEN 88T,

40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. BARENE
2017 2016
—E—tHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH7 FHT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not [ERESHEESIN =P
provided in the consolidated financial WRABEEREUT
statements in respect of BECEARMS
- hotel under development —ERPAEE 181,783 596,298
- acquisition of property, plant and equipment —FEEYZE. B RE 187,226 766,676
369,009 1,362,904

As at year ended 31 March 2017, the Group has capital
expenditure authorised but not contracted for regarding
the hotel project amounted to HK$581,833,000 (2016:
HK$794,675,000).

RIE—tF=B=+—H, AEERNBEEES
BB ARETHIZ &AF 581,833,000 7T (—=
—NEE © 794,675,00057T) o
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

BE_E

41.

42.

F—tHF=A=+—HLEE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

RIS MY 5E

4. ABE

2017
—F—tF
HK$'000
FET

2016

HK$'000
FET

Indemnities issued to financial institutions for H—EHE RN NEEER
performance bonds on construction contracts of m/\%‘}ﬂ%#Z@%}M%Lﬁ'ﬁ 49,837 28,003
an associate and joint operations BT R ERERE

In addition, the Company has corporate guarantee issued
to a bank for facilities granted to an associate. The extent of
such facilities utilised by the associate as at 31 March 2017
amounted to HK$18,000,000 (2016: HK$20,000,000).

No provision has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as it is not probable that an outflow of economic

benefits will be required.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented

premises which fall due as follows:

S, ARFH—EHE N ERTHERRITE
HRANFER R_S—tF=A=1+—H, 5=
&= /18,000,000 7T (— = —754F 1 20,000,000/

7o) EEME NS A,
RN AR EEEMEAL, BIERREM
F5 R P E R
49, IRETHE A
RIEHR, AREET A HEE 2B REBY =K

EHEENEEBEARRREEEMTEE, HFRE
S ATERIOE

2017 2016
—E—tF —EFX
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —&ER 41,894 49,584
- -
In the second to fifth year inclusive %é%%%;%ﬁz (BRmE 78,444 93,622
120,338 143,206

Leases in respect of premises are negotiated, and monthly
rentals are fixed, for terms ranging from one to five years.

Leases in respect of plant and machinery are negotiated
based on individual contracts and the Group had no
significonf commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases of these plant and
machinery.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tF=A=T—HLEFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 43. BB AN TR Z M iEER
(a) The Group entered into the following significant (o) FN, AEEEAFBATITI TN TEARS !

transactions with its related parties during the year:

2017 2016
Class of related party Nature of transaction —_E—tHF —FNEF
RiE A48 RHEE HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Associates Construction works charged by the Group
NS AEERREETRE a2 S
Construction works charged to the Group
AEETNRETRE - 926
Joint ventures Construction works charged by the Group
BELE AEERRBETIRE LG IS
Project management fees charged by the Group
AEEEEE TR m 3,093
None of the related party transactions disclosed above *E%ﬂfffﬁii;?ﬁi%i%];)\ii% A% EhFRA]
constituted connected transactions or continuing FTE &R« BER 2 RIFERER o

connected transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

(b) The remuneration of key management during the year (b) FRNFZEBABCFHMUOT :

Wwdas as fO”OWS:

2017
—E—tHF L

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH7 FET

Short-term employee benefits DEiEEEA 36,294 38,970

Post-employment benefits BIKAEH] 744 820

Share-based payment DU AR 2 TF0 15,220 23,059

52,258 62,849

The remuneration of key management is determined FEBEBEABCHFM I BEFMES22EERA

by the remuneration committee having regard to the EvRIBNTIZBAMEE.

performance of individuals and market trends.

(c) Details of the balances with associates and joint ventures (c) REIREHR, HEIENBINEE XGRS
at the end of the reporting period are set out in the YR A I AR 2= e fT5E25,
consolidated statement of financial position and in note
25.
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BE_E—tHF=-A=+—HILFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. RNB 2 M EARRE

COMPANY
2017 2016
—E5—tF “E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RNELERE 7,096,732 6,066,792
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Other debtors HihrEW IR 153 1129
Short term bank deposits FRHASRIT IR R = 267,495
Bank balances SRITHEER 7,437 48,496
7,590 317,050
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Other creditors and accrued expenses HMEMRIB R ESTR 3,584 2,628
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEMTI B N BIRUR 680,530 56,961
684,114 59,589
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) ASSETS nE (BR) EEFRE (676,524) 957,461
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #ZERABER 6,420,208 6,324,253
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBEE
Convertible bonds Pl #R R 1R 25 576,707 485,835
5,843,501 5,838,418
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B AR s
Share capital & 1,841,734 1,841,734
Reserves (Note) CHEACIED) 4,001,767 3,996,684
TOTAL EQUITY TR 5,843,501 5,838,418
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. KRB 2 BT R (18)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: st -
Movements of reserves of the Company during the current KRNBRAREENBEEE FEiEEENWNT

Oﬂd pl’iOI’ years are as ‘FO”OWS:

Shares
held for Refained
Convertible share Share Share Copital profis
Share | Contributed Speciol bonds option award | redemption |(accumulated

prem‘\um SUV’plUS reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve

i}a:

ERES | BHERE ARG |ERERE - 2
HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HKS$'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HKS$'000
TEn| TEr| Thx| TEr| TEr| TEx TEn| TEr| TEn
ATE—
At1 April 2015 \ﬁg_gﬁ 9,280,474 3497 (10,0000 1794972 (54,818) 54,692 3978 255 1656 3,966,706
Profit and total comprehensive FERNLEE
income for the year leayird il il
. . DALEERE
Recognition of equity-settled B +
share-based payment expenses D\Jr EJL/X\HQMuﬁ
! U ARR - - - - - 076 - - - 076
of the share option scheme of s
the Company (Note 35(a)) e !
(Hi3835(0))
N . SRR IRNE
Recognition of equity-settled L3 B
share-based payment expenses gi?%%g? 5584 5584
of the share award scheme of Zﬁ%ﬂ}%% ‘ ’ ’ ’ i ’ ’ ' i ’ '
the Company (Note 36(c)) (WD_IH 5
15536(a))
RERNER
Shares vested under the share B =
award scheme (Note 36(al)) qu_;JE%Eﬂ% L (124) 1208
(H13836(a)
R-E-HE=R
At 31 March 2016 \;;75 - 9,280,474 3497 (150,000) 1794972 (59,366) 75428 8,316 255 4108 3,996,604
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. KRB 2 BRI ER (18)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: (Continued) Mi5E @ (8
Movements of reserves of the Company during the current ARNTREEENBEEECHERENWNT | (@)

and prior years are as follows: (Continued)

Shares
held for Refained
Convertible share Share Share Capital orofits
Share | Contributed Special bonds award option award | redemption |(accumulated

premium surplus reserve reserve scheme reserve reserve reserve Total

4B |
; sope | saE | wenn |emeas | e | # it
HK$ 000 | HKS'000 | HK$000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HK$000 HK$ 000
| | | vm| | | | | e

Loss ond fotal comprehensie ~ EEBELLEH (16308)  (16,306)

expense for the year TR
Recognition of equity-sefﬂed B@E@E\;ﬁ ﬁ%ﬁﬁ g
share-based payment expenses &Eé @ ﬁ'u
DARRY - - - - - 18,116 - - - 18116

of the share option scheme of 4 -
The Company (Nofe 35(0)) ﬁfﬁlﬁﬂﬁ (WE

5 0)
N , NI g
Recognition ofequwy-sefﬂed =13, +
share-based payment expenses gi%é%g% ) ) . B . B 3050 R _ 3950

of the share award scheme of :t -
the Company (Note 36(a)) st (et

36(a))
B R ER5E
Shaores vested under the share BELA (2 . i i i 561 i (558¢) . i 9
award scheme (Note 36(a))
36(a))
R=E-t#=R
At 31 March 2017 —1f 9,280,474 35497 (150,000) 1794972 (46,759) 93,544 5980 955 (12900) 4,001,767
The special reserve of the Company represented the ANB R HEIEEEFEER TRERZRLIE
difference between the aggregate of the net asset value #587250,000,000/8 T« BR R B R B AR 251 T 18
of, and shareholder’s loan to, Paul Y. Management {8 7/4400,000,000/8 02 &1 (1EA B FEEWER
Contracting amounting to HK$250,000,000 and the issue EFEHTEINE) 25,

value of the shares of HK$400,000,000 as consideration
for the acquisition of Paul Y. Management Contracting in
prior years.
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45.

46.

)

r the year ended 31 March 2017
E_E—tF=A=T—HIFE

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire interest

in an associate, PR _FE—EZRTIEGRELE], toa
third party for the consideration of HK$32,219,000 and a
gain on disposal of an associate has been recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The consideration
for the disposal has not been received and is included in
trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayment as at 31
March 2017.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 June 2017, a subsidiary of the Company entered

into sale and purchase agreements in respect of the disposal
of its 51.76% interests in PYE, an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, to ITC Properties Group Limited ('ITCP"), a listed
company whose shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code 199) and Mr. Chan Fut Yan, the
deputy chairman and executive director of PYE and also
the managing director and executive director of ITCP, for a

total consideration of HK$300,000,000.

For further details p|eose refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 June 2017.

044
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 47. TEMBLRE. HERE. SECENTEXRHE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT #
OPERATIONS
(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as (o) ZRBEIFEMBRENRZZT—ELER_FT—F
at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows: —A=+—HxHEBWOT:

lsued cnd fully peid Percentage of issued share capital/

share capital/ regmered capital/capitel

Narme of subsidiary Vaal idiari Principal activity

Britsh Virgin Islands

Challenge Shore Limited ("BVI') US$1 ordinary share Investment holding
e ; =g 100 100 100 100 ...
ERRNES Emzpel RER
(ZBRTEE))
Ching Earth Limited Hong Kong HKS ordinary share Investment holding
[ . [N 100 100 5176 576
EXERLE EE BT EER REHR
Corless Limited BVI US$Q ordinary shares Investment holding
e = 100 100 51.76 576 Lo
IBRTES ST el REfkR
Euro Dynasty Limited BVI USS$3 ordinary shares Investment holding
" ; — g 100 100 5176 576 s
FERNES EnEEk REER
5400,000,000
dinary shares
Falloncroft BVI ” Investment holding
e of no par value 100 100 100 100 .
e 5400,000000% i
EEELS B
The 13 Management Limited Hong Kong HKS$! ordinary shore 100 100 100 100 Management and secretarial services
TZERERLT EE B EER EERNERE
The 13 Management Ltd. Macou MOP95,000 capital 100 100 100 100 Management and secretarial services
T=EE-\BRAT AR 25,0002FTEEAR EERAERH
Manlink Limited BvI USS1 ordinary share Investment holding
e N 100 100 100 100 ..,
iERNHE EnEEk REHR
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 47. TEMBLE

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT # (18)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as (o) ZRBEIFEMBRENRZZT—ELER_FT—F

at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows: (Continued) —HA=+—HZFBEWT : (@

lsued cnd fully peid Percentage of issued share capital/

regmered capital/capitel

Narme of subsidiary

share capital/

Principal activity

New Concordia Macou MOP95,000 capital Hotel development
. ., 100 100 100 100 .
il A 95,000EFEER BE%E
HK$60,000,000 Provon of dectcal. mecharcal ond
Paul Y. (E & M) Contractors Limited Hong Kong ordinary shares rowaoh ° ee'c fecl mechancaran
PERETEARAT £ §0,000,000%7 99.9999 99.9999 51.7599 517599 building services
o REERLEERE
2Bk
Paul Y. Builders Group Limited Hong Kong HKS2 ordinary shares 100 100 5176 57 Investment holding
REREEEARLA &E WA AR ‘ T REER
HK$1,000,000
non-voting
deferred shares
(Nofe (i) below)
1,000,000 70
ERZERLER
:GE)
HK$200,000,000
Paul Y. Bulders Limited Hong Kong ordinary shares Building construction
e _ 100 100 5176 SI76 ey
FREREERLT &% 200,000,007 E7EE
el
Paul Y. Building Matericls Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares Tradig land rfolofon of g
w4 PETEER 100 100 51.76 5176 materials
BENME 2B REH
Paul Y. Construction & Engineering Hona Ko HK$]6§'OOO'I? 0 Bulding construction and specialist
Co.Limied é‘%g o " g(r) (')"Sg;g;_; 100 100 5176 576 works
RERATRERAT R BFRELERTE
LBk
Paul Y. Construction & Engineering 8 SG[?"OOO': 0 Conshac
- ingapore ordinary shares onstruction
Pte. Limif . . _ 1 1 17 176 e
e e i 3000 00087 57T 0 v 6 W mare
LER
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FE—tHF=A=1T—HIFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT

OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows: (Continued)

Narme of subsidiary

Paul Y. Construction and Engineering

San. Bhd. Maloysia

ERAD

Paul Y. Construction (China) Limited The PRC

RERZ (E) BRLE e
Paul Y. Construction Company, Limited Hong Kong
REREERLT &E
Paul Y. Construction Holdings Limited Hong Kong
RERREEERLT &4
Paul Y. Construction International Limited o
aul Y. Construction Infenational Limite
RERUES

Paul Y. Contracting Limited Hong Kong

&k
Paul Y. Foclifies Management Co, Limited  Hong Kong
FRERMERERLE e

Issued and fully paid
share capital/

RM1,000,000

ordinary shares
1000,0005 %
RMBI20,000,000
registered capital

N\ =%120,00000070
GIEES

HKS2 ordinary shares
9ETE AR

HK$50,000,000
non-voting

preferred shares
(Nofe (i) below)
50,000,000
ERZRELR
S EID)
HKS2 ordinary shares
BT EER
1S$50,002

ordinary shares

50,000% T EER

HKS100 ordinary shares
100B T E AR

HKS2 ordinary shares
WETEER
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47. T EHBE R T

# (18)
() ARBEEMBREANR_-_F—ELERF—RF

ZR=+—HZHBWOT : (@

Percentage of issued share capital/
regmered capital/capitel

Principal activity

Construction

100 100 5176 076
RETE

Civil engineering and bulding
100 100 5176 5176 consfruction
IATRREFRE

Civil engineering, building construction
100 100 5176 5176 and investment holding
TATE BFRERREER

Investment holding
100 100 5176 5176 Lo
REtk
Investment holding
100 100 51.76 576 .
e
100 100 5176 g o
' T OBRIE
100 100 5176 5176 Facilies management services
'  BREERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FE—tHF=A=1T—HIFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 47. TEMBRE. BERE. EEEEREGEEKRE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT L (18)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as (o) ZRBEIFEMBRENRZZT—ELER_FT—F
at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows: (Continued) —HA=+—HZFBEWT : (@

lsued cnd fully peid Percentage of issued share capital/

share capital/ regmered capital/capitel

Narme of subsidiary Vaal idiari Principal activity

Paul Y. Finance Limited Hong Kong HKS! ordinary share Provision of finance
L anays 100 100 5176 §76 o
REMBERLT &A IETEER RlRE
Paul Y. Foundation (Macau) Limited Macau MOP95,000 capital 100 100 7% 0% Civil engineering and foundation works
RENE (27 BRLT A %5,000EMEER ' ITRIERHETR
Paul Y. Foundation Holdings Limited BVI US$1 ordinary share Investment holding
- s 100 100 5176 576 .
IBRTES EnEEk REfR
HK$10,000,000
Paul Y. Foundation Limited Hong Kong ordinary shares 100 100 576 W% Civil engineering and foundation works
REHEERLT &% 10,000,000 ' T IAIERMELR
EER
HK$300,000,000 T [E———
Paul Y. General Contractors Limited Hong Kong ordinary shares " englnelerlng R
_ 100 100 5176 5176 consfruction
FERREEARLT &% 300,000,000 g —
o TAIERETRS
EhE
Paul Y. Interior Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 56 0% Interior decoration works and senvices
REEHTRERLT EE WETEER ' T EREBIRLES
Paul Y. Management (Macau) Limited Hong Kong HKS ordinary share 100 100 5% % Management and secretarial services
REEIE (M) BRLT &i BT E AR ' © EERNERB
Paul Y. Management Contracting 8] U5$2,000 Invesiment holdi
Group Limited AREAEE orinaryshares 100 100 5176 5176 }”ng ;}: oene
RERTREBARLT 200057 £ 8K o
Paul Y. Management Limited Hong Kong HKS2 ordinary shares 00 00 57 576 Management and secretarial services
REEEERLT EE VETEER ' © EERNERB
Paul Y. Plant Hire Limited Hong Kong HKS? ordinary shares 100 100 7% 0% Tradmgh.ond fingof plont ond
EREREERLS < PESEE . 76 moc |ner\gm i
FRERMEEERLE &E BT EER BRTABEELAS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FE—tHF=A=1T—HIFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as

at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows: (Continued)

Issued and fully paid
share capital/

Narme of subsidiary

47. TEMBAE. BERE. EEXRGERTE

el

# (58)

() ARBEEMBREAR_-_F—ELERF—RF
ZR=+—HZHBWOT : (@

Percentage of issued share capital/
regmered capital/capitel

Principal activity

Paul Y. Project Management Project management services and

Infernational Limited %o%g forg 14 c;r%n%n@%g 100 100 5176 5176 investment holding
RERRTRETERLT - EEEERRLAELR
HKS1,000 Consiuc
Paul Y. Specialist Limited Hong Kong &7 ordinary shares 100 100 5176 5176 é%%;on
100057 £ B :
PY Construction (Macau) Limited Macou MOP25,000 capital 100 100 7% 7 Construction
RERERE (RM) BRLA bl 950002F KER ‘ T OBRIR
HK$122,055,899.60
PYE BVI ordinary shares ., . Investrment holding
: o S OREENA  TEENA 5176 §76 .
RERg RERUEE mosgneozs VA TEEN Han
PYE General Contractors (Macau) Limted ~ Macau MOP25,000 capital 100 100 7% 0% Construction
EREEEIBRLE 2 95,000EFIEER ' T OBRTE
Manufacturing, trading and instalation
Unres onaeProducs () Limed.~ Hong Kong HK.$QOO/OOO of concrefe products and consfruction
BASEHS (BE BEAT w5 ormeuryshores 100 100 51.76 5176 \ works
900,000 T & &R ERIERRE. ERRERUR
BETE
HK$1,000,000
non-voting
deferred shares
(Nofe (i) below) 100 100 5176 5176
1,000,000
ERTEETR
G
All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the BB M B A EANE BERE.
Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tF=A=T—HLEFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows: (Continued)
Notes:

(i) The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are
not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends
for any financial year and are, on winding up or
otherwise, only entitled out of the surplus assets of
the company to a return of the capital after a total
sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of
the company.

(i) The holders of the non-voting preferred shares are
not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends
unless the net profits of the company available
for dividends exceed HK$100,000,000,000
in which case they should be entitled to fixed
non-cumulative dividends at the rate of 5% per
annum for any financial year and are, on winding
up, only entitled out of the surplus assets of the
company to a return of the capital affer a total sum
of HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed to
the holders of the ordinary shares of the company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group as at
31 March 2017 and 2016 which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period or at any time during both
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries, whose
place of incorporation/registration/operation are
mainly in Hong Kong or BVI, are construction, property
development management, other business, investment
holding or inactive.

250

47. TEMBRF. BEREN
# (18)

op
i3

SEERBEXRTE

() ARBEEMBRER _F—LERZF—RF

=B=+—HZ=HBEWTF : (&
BOEE

() EERERELERSE ABREBRE, 75
ﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁift%%,ﬁ 1B &
EZN BB EEMERL D ﬁ@%
1oooooooooooooo%75%éz NEIR=PELY:
%EA@WEEM“FZEE?,%EEN
Ao

(i) WEEREZBLRTEABEBRE, MR
BERKE, BRIEFZA B AR EFF &
100,000,000,0008 7, TEUEBERT, kS
BREMEAY BEEER—BS S A5% [E
EIERBERE, HREREEZNTS ﬁ%
JRAEZE10,000,000,00078 75 F 54/ B
FEAREBFE é%tﬁﬁ?,#&*ﬂ
Ao

U EBRFMIIBESHEASETBTEAKRENRN _F
—CFERTEBE-RF=A=1— E%%%féz
FEBENBLE. ESRN, FHEMABR
ZERRTREITR.

RS BAR B MIEF B EFIFE R, BN
B REHE R AEHEZ

RI|BERR, ARTDEEHAEEMSLIFBEE
ROEMNBLE. ZEMBLR ML/ &M
SEBMMATETEBNEBRLES, MEH

AERTIE. MEBEEE. HMER REE
REEEER,
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

BHE_ZE—tF="B=1+—HILFE

47. TEMBLRE. HERE. SECENTEXRHE
¥} (8)

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

(b) EEEARERBEZIIFEENB LR Z5FE
material non-controlling interests

TREIEEERFERER CAEEIF2EN
BRECEFHS

The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material

non-controlling interests:

Proportion of

ownership of
issued ordinary

Profit (loss)
allocated fo
non-controlling

Dividends paid to
non-controlling

Accumulated
non-controlling

share capital held by

| ( Principo| non-controlling interests [EEN interests inferests
- ~ Plceo olace of
Name of subsidiary incorporation .
01 sm business o o
: ) e | smeomes
B 2016
HK$ 000
TEr
g%ﬁ %@ggg Fong Kg”g BU U 4TB (359%) (493) 303135 304176
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
%ﬁgggﬁ}gg'g'@%ﬂm . . : : S - @ s 3
FEANEAT
435 (35459) (5009) 340238 341,003
251

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN G e

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tHF=-A=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 47. TEMBRE. MERE. GEERRGERBE

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT ¥ (18)

OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b) EEEARFLERERCIELEMB AR ZFHE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) (18
Summarised financial information in respect of the FEEEAIIERIER T A EBNB LN ZHMEE
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling REDRIN N, U T REREEIEER NN EE
interests is set out below. The summarised financial HIEF 2 5o

information below represents amounts before intragroup

eliminations.

PYE RERX
2017 2016
—E—tHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Non-current assets FEMEEE 246,753 295,999
Currents assets MEEE 4,127,763 4,126,606
Current liabilities mEEE (3,461,304) (3,563,900)
Non-current liabilities ERBBE (6,134) -
Equity attributable to owners of PYE RER TR AEILER 907,078 857,821
Non-controlling interests of PYE RERFEIETRER - 884
Revenue WA 6,953,828 9,960,043
Profit for the year FRRF 60,161 57,025
Profit attributable to owners of PYE REZZEHE AELRT 60,161 56,541
Profit attributable to the T%EE%#EH%EE ) 464

non-controlling interests of PYE i hap=yil
i == E
o o E e mup  coosn
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHEMsEMRZ (11,144) (10,098)
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BE_E—tHF=-A=+—HILFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 47. TEMBRE. MERE. GEERRGEXRBE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT ¥ (#8)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b) EEEARFERERCIELEMB LB ZFE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) (#8)
PYE REREZE
2017
—F—tF N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE5T FER
Total comprehensive income REZEHEE AE(HEM
attributable to owners of PYE I R KB5S 49,017 46,443
Total comprehensive income attributable to RIEEFEIF R IR S IE( 484
the non-controlling interests of PYE ESEERY S )
Total comprehensive income for the year FELEMNRIEEE 49,017 46,927
Dividends paid to non-controlling ENREEEIFERE L (88)
interests of PYE 2 )
Dividends paid to owners of PYE BENREZEHEEARE = (30,472)
Net cash used in operating activities ARNREER IR H%8 (44,133) (81,853)
. N . (AR REREESHZ
Net cash (used in) from investing activities 154 B iE (294,563) 62,855
N . A (AR MELEZ
Net cash from (used in) financing activities 194555 93,747 (179,088)
Net cash outflows B H IR (244,949) (198,086)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_E—tF=A=T—HLEFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 47. TEWWEB LT, HENF. BEPENESEERE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT # (&)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(c) Particulars of the Company's principal associates as at () ARFAFEMENTN_BE—LER_S—/"&E
31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows: =B=+—HZF5E QD_F :

Principal activity

ne of ossooa're i i Registered capital 1 N “ FEXH

e
/E

RMB200,000,000
istered capital 459 R 6 Civil engineering and
TECBE-BEIR  ThePRC e (Notei) ~ (Notel) — (Noteli)  (Nofeli) .. ,
ﬁﬁﬁ G lIP (Nofe (l) be|ow) be|ow) below) be|ow) be|ow) bu||dmg construction
K %200,000,00070 s 0 e jeey  TALERETES
Sk (TS (FoehizG) (FoCizhG)  (FMzk) (T o2hiE)
US$500,000
Zhong Yu - Paul Y. Project registered capital Poct and
Management Company Limited  The PRC (Note (i) below) © 0 207 207 1o n;fancgemeh o
IRPPRELR 78 5000007 ‘ i
BEERERLT Mk e
GED)

All of the above associates are held by the Company AP E B E N EIRA N B EERES,

indirectly.

Notes: B 5E -

(i) These companies are sino-foreign equity joint () ZEREHAPHEESENE,
venture companies.

(i) The Group was able to exercise significant influence (i) ARNAEEBEZTTE_SE 2R TIEER
over PE —FE—ERTIZHRLE because RECHEEHFP =%, BREBZLECEBE
it has the power to appoint three out of the seven AR EREEECRAZRAU =272
directors of that company and it is required to have EEREEB, WHENBHEBEATE S,

above two-thirds of votes of directors to have the
resolution over the relevant activities passed under
the Articles of Association of that company.

ZRBEREFEHE,

=

(i) The company was disposed of during the year. (i
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BE_FE—tHF=A=1T—HIFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(d) Particulars of the Company's principal joint ventures as
at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Issued ond fully paid

share capital/
Place of . ‘
. . reg\sfered cop\‘raV
incorporation/ .

o ccp\‘ro|
registration ,

pL/ F e

SGD300,000
. Singapore ordinary shares
[Y.- Ltd. i
Paul Y. - Lian Beng )V Pte. Ltd o 30000057157
LRk
Paul Y. - Omos Joint Venture MOPI00,000
o Macau )

Company Limited g capital
RE_REHEERNT 100,000 2P E A
RMB53,000,000
. _ The PRC registered capital
yTEmE N \ . i
DESH B ] NEH53,000,0007
HHER
RMBI0,000,000
. — ThePRC registered capital
ESYEs ST ‘ ’ a
LR AR BRAT ] 10,000,000
HRER
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47. TEMBRE. MERE). FELREREGEXBEE

# (18)

d) ARBEBERELER_F—LERZF—RF
ZR=+—HzZHBEOT:

Percentage of issued share capifal/

registered cop\fo|/copwq|

Principal activity
IEXH

Construction
50 50 25.88 95.88 e
BETE
50 5 05 88 05 88 Construction
' TOBRTRE
Investment holding
50 50 25.88 9588 .
REZR
Property holding
50 50 25.88 95.88
MEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FE—tHF=A=1T—HIFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 47. TERBRE. BERE. AELEREGEERE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT L (18)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(e) Particulars of the Company's principal joint operations () ARBEIFEREXHEN ZT—LERIEF—RF
as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows: =B=+—HZ=FEWT :

Percentage of issued share capital/
Issued ond fully paid reg\sfered cop\fo|/copm|

share capital/
Place of . .
registered capital/

e of joint operation incorporation/ Principal activity

ital N
copirel =z ; FEER

registration

AL/ s

Laing O’ Rourke - Hsin Chong -~ Hong Kong

Civil engineering

; (Note below) 225 295 11.65 11.65 5
. 7 - T
Paul Y. Joint Venture &5 (FhE) TAIRE
Laing O’ Rourke - Hsin Chong -~ Hong Kong R Civil engineering
i . (Note below) 295 225 11.65 1165 o
Paul Y. (WKCD) Joint Venture ~ &7 (F3hE) TARTE
Paul Y. - Omas Joint Venture Macau A Construction
. (Note below) 50 50 25.88 25.88 PR
I E s\ ) B © ST
fRE - AEHEN F (TSl BRTRE
) Macau R Construction
Paul Y. - Yau Lee Joint Venture #% (Note below) 60 60 31.06 31.06 BRTE
. (FaehiE) T
Note: There is no issued share capital/registered M5t - ARNEELNBAIFEANER, HIEESE
capital/capital for the joint operations as they v E;éé%‘ﬂﬁ"K/ﬁﬂ%éK/ﬁKo
are unincorporated bodies.
The above tables list the associates, joint ventures and EERBULBRRMINATEZEASEFTEER
joint operations of the Group which, in the opinion of the T%ﬂﬁ‘lﬁ%. 7( R EEFEAEEHE N
directors, principally affected the results for the year or EhENEEER, EFRA, FHEMBER
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. E\ BECENGEER CERESEIERE.

To give details of other associates, joint ventures and joint
operations Wou|d, in the opinion of the direc’rors, result in

particulars of excessive length.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
RIS T2

For the year ended 31 March

RESULTS E
Revenue A 7,131,575 8,579,708 9,323,418 6,811,519 6,127,109
Profit (loss) before tax bR EDm A (B518) 925,799 (2,906) 25,944 (210,3392) (32,451)
Income tax expense FTiSMER (3,624) (27,036) (33,856) (292,484) (7,773)
Profit (loss) for the year FEmA (B51E8) 22,175 (29,9492) (7,912) (232,816) (40,294)
Profit (loss) for the year FE(LFEm T
attributable to: (JE’_i ?E\) .
Owners of the Company KABHEE A 17,632 (50,586) (29,883) (197,361) (44,559)
Non-controlling interests JEVENR S 4,543 20,644 21,971 (35,455) 4,335
22,175 (29,949) (7,912) (232,816) (40,224)
At 31 March
E=4F
| 2017
= = 4 —EF—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHEIT TET FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERKE&E
Total assets eEE 6,677,257 9,003,511 12,375,203 12,546,594 13,523,795
Total liabilities by =KI= (3,287,403)  (4,649,482)  (6,087,387)  (6,496,199) (7,503,11)
Total equity TERER 3,389,854 4,354,029 6,287,816 6,050,395 6,020,684
Equity attributable to: FE(GHERS
Owners of the Company EN/NSTEZZEPN 3,048,571 3,983,236 5,885,907 5,709,382 5,680,446
Non-controlling interests FEIRRC RS 341,283 370,793 401,909 341,013 340,238
3,389,854 4,354,029 6,287,816 6,050,395 6,020,684
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS EFg

Stephen Hung Joint Chairman (Executive Director) ok B

Peter Lee Coker Jr. Joint Chairman (Executive Director) Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Deputy Chairman (Executive Director) =

Walter Craig Power Chief Executive Officer Walter Craig Power

(Executive Director)

James Chiu, OBE, JP Independent Non-Executive Director WIS, OBE, JP

Lee Chack Fan, Independent Non-Executive Director =455, GBS, SBS, JP
GBS, SBS, JP

lain Ferguson Bruce Independent Non-Executive Director HET

Francis Goutenmacher Independent Non-Executive Director Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny  Independent Non-Executive Director [RE&EE

AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREESG

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman) HHS, OBE, JP(F/E)

Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP F)855, GBS, SBS, JP

lain Ferguson Bruce mET

Francis Goutenmacher Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny [R& &

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FWEEE

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman) B, OBE, JP(F/E)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom Zr=yE

Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP =lg55, GBS, SBS, JP

NOMINATION COMMITTEE RHEEE

Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP (Chairman) =g, GBS, SBS, JP(E/E)

Stephen Hung IR BT

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom =R

lain Ferguson Bruce mET

Francis Goutenmacher Francis Goutenmacher

FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE HHERIREEES

lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman) mELT (F/E)

Stephen Hung ok BF

Peter Lee Coker Jr. Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom =N

Walter Craig Power Walter Craig Power

DISCLOSURES COMMITTEE KREZESE

lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman) mELT (FE)

Peter Lee Coker Jr. Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom ANSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
lain Ferguson Bruce

3 = o
TrREREES

BIE, OBE, JP(2/E)
2B
e+
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

L\

PYE COMMITTEE

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP

lain Ferguson Bruce

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Stephen Hung (Chairman)
Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Walter Craig Power
Richard Lico
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Richard Lico

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mui Ching Hung, Joanna

SOLICITORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda)

DLA Piper Hong Kong (Hong Kong)
Leonel Alves Law Firm (Macau)

Reed Smith Richards Butler (Hong Kong)
Winston & Strawn (Hong Kong)

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Banco Nacional Ultramarino

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China, Macau Branch

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd, Hong Kong Branch
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd, Macau Branch

BNP Paribas

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

DBS Bank (China) Limited, Beijing Branch

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank, Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited, Beijing Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
INEIER

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
2901 AlA Central

1 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel : +852 2577 6113

Fax: +852 2577 6213

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO8

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.thel3.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 577
Reuters 0577 . HK
Bloomberg 577 : HK

260

Y
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

FEEEMEL

H5E

FEEEE

R ERF0
2901=

5% | +852 2577 6113
{5 1 +852 9577 6213

D@ P B IR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO8

Bermuda

B R DR
BEEEFRNT
=5
EEAERI835F
S FIR00018

L

www.thel3.com

BRAD 5%
BB
e Svogan
EAL

AP 577
0577 . HK

577 - HK

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED







	封面
	內封
	目錄
	業務概覽
	財務摘要
	業務摘要
	主席報告
	行政總裁報告
	董事履歷簡介
	高級管理層履歷簡介
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流動表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	公司資料
	封底

